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CORPORATE PROFILE
2/

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: 2128) is a leading large-scale industrial group that
manufactures piping and building materials in China. After more than 37
years of rapid development, the Group has evolved into a leader in the
industry of building materials and home improvement. It provides high-
quality products and services such as plastic piping, building materials
and home improvement, new energy, environmental protection, and
operates a supply chain service platform.

Currently, the Group has established over 30 advanced production
bases in 19 provinces of China and in foreign countries. The Group has
established a nationwide sales network and has also developed long-
term strategic partnerships with 2,853 independent and exclusive first-
tier distributors that enable timely and efficient supply of
comprehensive, quality products and professional services to
customers. As an integrated manufacturer of a comprehensive range of
piping and building materials, China Lesso provides over 10,000 types
of quality products, which are widely applied to such fields as home
improvement, civil architecture, municipal water supply, drainage,
energy management, electric power transmission, telecommunication,
gas supply, fire services, environmental protection, agriculture and
marine aguaculture,
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBEEE

Change
2023 2022 25
For the year ended 31 December HE12B31BLEE
(RMB'000) (AR®T )
Revenue WA 30,868,289 30,767,221 03%
Gross profit E7 8,121,014 8241423 (15)%
Finance costs A& RN 1,112,761 681084 634%
EBITDA R BT BT A A 5,612,534 5,785,627 (30)%
Profit before tax B 1 A1 A 2,664,169 3190424 (16.5)%
Profit for the year F N T 2,320,346 2,520,550 (7.9)%
Profit attributable to owners of the Company A2 &) 8 A A FE k35 F 2,368,062 2521245 6%
At 31 December (RMB'000) R12A31B (AR¥TT)
Total assets BEHER 60,031,270 59,004,001 17%
Cash and bank deposits RE RRITERK 6,552,984 7361770 (10)%
Total debts® B4R 20,695,637 20614088 04%
Net debt®! BB FREY 14,142,653 13,252,318 67%
Total equity RSB 24,311,078 22,641,086 7.4%
Share information (RMB) BHER (AR
Earnings per sharel” =TT
- Basic —HK 0.77 082 61%
- Diluted — s 0.77 0.82 61%
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) B R B ERR S (BIL) 20 30 (333)%
Equity attributable to owners of BRARNRER AEIEER
the Company per share 7.58 704 77%
Financial ratios B LE =
Gearing Ratio (%) BEABEE©%) 46.0 477
Net debt to equity® (%) B 75 58 ¥ a5 tb & ©(%) 58.2 585
Interest cover! (times) FBRF RO () 5.04 849
Note: MaE
E) Represented borrowings and lease liabilities. (@ BEFRBEEEE -
(b) Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits. (b) TREBEERE S RIRITFR
(© Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the  (c) KRG EREARREERAN 2 EF AR GE B IRE
Company are set out in note 11to consolidated financial statements, BN o
(d) Represented equity attributable to owners of the Company divided by the number of () EARNTEA AEEERR AR R ERRSLEITROEK
issued Shares at the end of the reporting period. S
©) Represented net debt divided by total equity. e EERFRER A S 5 -
] Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs, ] R BRI AT B AR AR E AR -
* Restated TEES

2 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEMBEHME

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE

P o Al

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019*
RMB’'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RESULTS ARBTR ARBTRT AR®TT ARBTT ARETT
REVENUE WA 30,868,289 30767211 32057584 280730085 26,344,523
GROSS PROFIT EF 8,121,014 8241423 8447693 8383979 7537119
EXPENSES* X (4,531,700) (4645305)  (4441810) (3851675  (3459,637)
FINANCE COSTS (3= (1m2,761) (681,084) (546,149) (435,892) (577194)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE A SR 2,664,169 3100424 3807282 4753560 3,981,921
Income tax expense FrisHim X (343,823) (669,874) (744,359) (995,673) (952,777)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRER 2,320,346 2520550 3062923 3,757,887 3,029,144
Profit attributable to: LA R @ A -
Owners of the Company RAGIEARAN 2,368,062 2521245 3,087,112 3751337 3025473
Non-controlling interests FEfEH (47,716) (695) (24,89) 8,550 3671
2,320,346 2520550 3062923 3,757,887 3,029,144

At 31 December

M12A 318
2023 2022" 2021 2020* 2019*
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
FINANCIAL POSITION AR TR ARETRT ARETT AREBTT ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMENEE 39,217,270 35010956 30176907 26860475 23054296
Current assets MEEE 20,814,000 23993045 24351923 19,668,501 17,731,334
Total assets BEREE 60,031,270 59004001 54528830 46,529,066 40,785630
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities EREBARE 1,207,472 14915843 1,812,823 10115255 3163679
Currentliabilities mEaE 24,512,720 21447072 20863603 16058382 20,526,746
Total liabilities BERE 35,720,192 36362015 32676426 2673637 23600425
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ RBEEFE
(LIABILITIES) (B8 (3,698,720) 2545973 3488320 3,610209 (2,795,412)
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NECIEZ ZS DN
of the Company FE(LRE = 23,503,483 21842400 20815374 19,842,407 16,577,017
Non-controlling interests eSS 807,595 798,677 1,037,030 513,022 518,188
Total equity EIS B 24,311,078 22641086 21852404 20355429  17,095205
# Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, administrative expenses ~ # HEERDHEMAY  ITBRXME MR LR -

and other expenses.
Restated

K &5
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERFREE

2023 was the year when China just began to recover from the
pandemic outbreak. The country adhered to the tone of its economic
work — "pursuing progress amid stability” by promoting high-quality
development while working at full steam to stabilise growth and
employment rate and mitigate risks. Nevertheless, businesses were still
facing challenges and uncertainties in an operating environment
marked by the global economic volatility and geopolitical turbulence.

As China’s leading piping and building materials conglomerate, China
Lesso has developed over the years into a manufacturer with a
comprehensive product system of building materials and home
improvement in the country, boasting its own competitive advantages
and offering over 10,000 types of products. The Group will continue to
capitalise on the stable demand for infrastructure and piping arising
from the favourable government policies as it seeks to make steady
progress and generate good returns for the shareholders and investors
in the volatile business environment. For the year 2023, the Group
recorded a total revenue of RMB30,868 million and a profit attributable
to owners of the Company of RMB2,368 million. The Board proposed
payment of a final dividend of HK20 cents per share for the year ended
31 December 2023,

For 37 years, China Lesso has unwaveringly adhered to its development
direction, namely “further developing the piping business and
capitalising on the emergence of green energy for mutual benefit’, and
has also been striving for customer satisfaction by prioritising quality
and driving its development with industry-leading technology, thus
creating high-value products and services far society. Currently, the
Group has an extensive scope of businesses that encompass piping,
building materials and home improvement, environmental protection,
new energy, and a supply chain service platform. Keeping pace with
internationalisation and globalisation, China Lesso has established over
30 advanced production bases in 19 provinces of China and in overseas
countries. It has also been proactively optimising its business portfolio
and market coverage according to its business strategy and
broadening both its sales network and market.

Piping business has always been China Lesso's core and mainstay
business and the primary source of profit. The Group has consistently
maintained its leading position in the piping systems market and will be
able to continue leading the development of the piping industry by
expediting intelligent manufacturing, product innovation, the upgrading
of production, the improvement of both quality and efficiency, and by
maintaining high quality standards. The move will also help the Group to
enhance its operational efficiency, expand its market share and bolster
its profitability.

a China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFRES

To create better urban and living spaces, the Group actively offers
society high-quality products and solutions which are green, low-carbon
and environmental friendly. It continuously innovates and updates its
green products in its businesses of piping and environmental
protection. Meanwhile, it will proactively manage the environmental
impacts of its business operations by reducing their environmental
footprint It will also create a diverse and harmonious environment for
wark and cooperation while pursuing sustainable development and
striving to attain the dual national goals of carbon emissions peak and
carbon neutrality.

In the future, China Lesso will continue to fully capitalise on the ongoing
demand for infrastructure construction on the back of the state policy
and economic recovery by proactively developing and expanding its
piping business, enhancing the products at this mainstay business,
optimising the product portfolio and expanding its market share.
Meanwhile, the Group has established smart factories that integrate
intelligent manufacturing and automated production by adopting
technologies such as artificial intelligence, the Internet and the 10T in
combination with digitalised and intelligentized operation and
management with an aim to enhancing its core competency.

While continuing to face myriad challenges and uncertainties in the
future, I am confident about leading the management team as a
cohesive group, adapting to market trends through the upgrading of
business operation and innovation, grasping opportunities in overseas
markets, raising the standards of management, making steady
progress with prudence, providing quality products and services for
society, clients and consumers, and capitalising on the industry’s high-
quality development.

The Board and | would like to express our heartfelt gratitude to all our
staff for their contributions. China Lesso will strive for good results, share
the fruits with its customers, business partners and employees, and
continue to create value for society and the shareholders,

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREBEASEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 61, is the founder of the Group, the chairman of
the Company and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a director of various
companies within the Group. He is primarily responsible for the Group's
overall strategic planning and business management. Mr. Wong has
approximately 27 years of experience in plastic pipe operations and
management. He served as the chairman in Foshan Shunde Liansu
Industrial Co, Ltd. from December 1996 to April 1999 and was awarded
"Outstanding Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by Shunde People's
Government of Foshan in 2003, Mr. Wong has been a permanent
honorary president of Foshan Shunde Longjiang General Chamber of
Commerce since 2018. Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms, Zuo Xiaoping and
the brother-in-law of Mr. Zuo Manlun. Mr. Wong is the founder of a trust
which holds the entire issued share capital of Xi Xi Development and
New Fortune, the controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 51, is the chief executive of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various companies
within the Group. He is primarily responsible for the management of the
daily business operations of the Group. Mr. Zuo has approximately 24
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Zuo joined the Group
in December 1999 and has held various positions in operation
management since joining the Group. Mr. Zuo is currently (i) a non-
executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (stock code:
98), which is listed on the Stock Exchange; and (i) an executive director
of Keda Industrial Group Co, Ltd. (stock code: 600499), which is listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Zuo won several awards including
"Outstanding Worker of the Plastic Industry in the PRC" by China Plastics
Processing Industry Association in 2009 and was awarded as "Senior
Plastic Product Engineer (Technical Entrepreneur)’ by the Guangdong
Human Resources and Social Security Department in 2019, Mr. Zuo
completed a programme of EMBA from Sun Yat-Sen University in April
2001 Mr. Zuo is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Luen Hei and the younger
brother of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 57, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
She is also a director/supervisor of various companies within the Group.
She is primarily responsible for procurement control and logistics
management of the Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 27 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Ms. Zuo served as a director of
Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co, Ltd. from December 1996. In 1999,
upon establishing the Group together with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she held
various positions in procurement. Ms, Zuo is the spouse of Mr. Wong
Luen Hei and the elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.

6 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR

BITES

HEESLE  BI5 AAEBAIRARARRE
& R2000FNASHEZRT AR RRINITE
F o HIIRAEBAZHEK B ARETESIHE -
BEZEBEAEENEESRRIIRESRERE -
EAERBHEBRKEREEITBEBENTF
KRER o HNI00B 12 AEI1000 F 4 AT BILT
IEEE B EXERABMNER  WH2003F
EHRLTEEREARBNTIAINEZESRED
¥R - BAEAEB0F BRI LUMIEEREET
BEGKREEGR -BAENAXTEZLINE
BRAMBEENGEARX - FEEEFEARRE
RERAZEERELNEE 2B BRITRAZET
BN ©

EmtmkE S BASEITHER AR
20002 AT BHEZEAARRNBIMITESE o H T
RAEBRZHEKEQARETES B &
EBBE - FITEAEAEEATERLLEER -
EREARBREBTERBN2UFES L X
AR FER AMBAEE BUHRNEEERS
EZEETEIRA - £ AEREN)EBIT LT
M E IR AR A E (BRMH ARSI 08) FEH
TES: MiBh=EROHBER AR (RLEEE
ERXGFT T IREA  600499) HEITE S ©
AR EZERE  BERN2000 F &R KB
BITITEBeFEAIPREBRITELETE
EIM200FEERE ANERME S RERET
EAIBRYURTRESATRM (BRI
K)o IR EF 20014 4 A £ 11K 2R B
FETEEEBLEMBASREIE - AL E
BB ENNBRLEFTLTMEES -

EEFRE 5758  RAKBEEIEE - AR 2010
FLAZNAEZERKRRATESE - RINA
SEANSERERTETES EEBB - KE
ZREAKENRBEERYRERE - ZXIR
BREBITXERBOFLR - L X+ H1996
FRAREEGLUDIBERREEEXER QAN
EF - R1000%F  WHEEBESLE —RKIZAE
B HETRNRBRE - XL hEBRELEE
HBCAE N 20 f ST AE RO R



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEASEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 57, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director of multiple companies within the Group and
primarily responsible for the production management of multiple
companies within the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 27 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop
manager of Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co, Ltd. from December
1996 to November 1999, Mr. Lal joined the Group in December 1999 and
has held various positions in production management since joining the
Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 58, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various companies
within the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible for the China's sales
of the Group and has approximately 30 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined the Group in December 1999 and
has held various positions in production management and sales since
joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory
manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from March
1993 to January 1999 and served as a manager in the production
department of Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co, Ltd. from January
1999 to Novermber 1999,

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 56, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director of various companies within the Group and
primarily responsible for the production management of certain
companies in the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 34 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
December 1999 and has held various positions in production
management and engineering since joining the Group. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chen was a manufacturing engineer in the technology
department at Guangdong Province Zhaoging Gaojiang Plastic
Products Co, Limited from July 1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to
September 1999, he was a deputy factory manager at Foshan City
Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory. Mr. Chen served as a manager in the
production department of Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co, Ltd.
from September 1999 to November 1999. Mr. Chen has been a deputy
secretary general of Plastic Pipe Special Committee of China Plastics
Processing Industry Association since 2005. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor's degree in polymer chemical from South China University of
Technology in July 1989,
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEASEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 48, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director of various companies within the Group. Dr. Lin is
primarily responsible for the overseas sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has
approximately 21 years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin
joined the Group in July 2002 and has held various positions in research
and development and overseas sales since joining the Group. Dr. Lin is
currently an executive director of WIIK Public Company Limited (stock
code: WIIK), which is listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Over the
years, Dr. Lin has won various awards including “National May First
Labour Medal” by All-China Federation of Trade Unions in 2006. Dr. Lin
received a doctorate degree in polymer chemical and physics from Sun
Yat-sen University in June 2002,

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 48, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various companies
within the Group and primarily responsible for the production
management of the Group and has approximately 27 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Huang joined the Group in
December 1999 and has held various pasitions in production
management since joining the Group. Mr. Huang is currently an
executive director of WIIK Public Company Limited (stock code: WIIK),
which is listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Huang served as a deputy factory manager at Foshan City
Dongjian Plastic Materials Factary from 1996 until 1999 and served as a
deputy manager of the plastic production department of Foshan
Shunde Liansu Industrial Co, Ltd. from June 1999 to November 1999. Mr.
Huang completed a programme of marketing from Hubei University of
Technology from September 20071 to July 2005,

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a director/general manager/
supervisor of various companies within the Group. Mr. Luo has
approximately 31 years of experience in accounting and worked at
Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March 1996, Guangdong
Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability from April 1996 to
December 2001 and Guangdong Gongcheng Accounting Firm from
January 2002 to December 2007. Mr, Luo warked for Foshan City
Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co, Limited as a certified public
accountant from January 2008 to April 2016. Mr. Luo is currently an
executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (stock code:
98), which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Luo is a member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Luo obtained a
bachelor's degree in economics from Guangdong University of
Business Studies in June 1993,

8 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEASEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Tao Zhigang, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2015. Dr. Tao is
currently Professor of Economics and Management at Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business. He previously taught at the University of
Hong Kong as HSBC Endowed Professor (Global Economy and Business
Strategy), Chair Professor of Economics and Strategy, and he was the
director of the Institute for China and Global Development. Dr. Tao
received his B.Sc. in management science from Fudan University in
1986, and PhD in economics from Princeton University in 1992, Dr. Tao
had been an independent non-executive director of Huadian Fuxin
Energy Corporation Limited (stock code: 816), which was listed on the
Stock Exchange, from June 2014 to October 2020.

Mr. Cheng Dickson, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 July 2018. Mr. Cheng is currently
(i) an independent director of Magnum Opus Acquisition Limited (Ticker:
OPAU), which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange; and (ii) the
general manager at the investor relations department of The Hong
Kong and China Gas Company Limited (stock code: 3), which is listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Prior thereto, Mr. Cheng worked in JP. Morgan between August 1994 and
February 1996. In December 1995, he was promoted to TCRM
professional in its global markets department Between March 1996 and
June 2000, Mr. Cheng worked in the securities lending department of
The Bank of New York, Hong Kong Branch. From July 2000 to August
2002, Mr. Cheng worked as an assistant vice president in the equity
capital markets division of BOCI Asia Limited. In August 2002, Mr. Cheng
joined ICEA Capital Limited and worked in its investment banking
division until October 2005 when he was a senior vice president. Mr.
Cheng was an executive director at the respective capital markets
department in the investment banking division of Mitsubishi UFJ
Securities (HK) Capital, Limited and Mizuho Securities Asia Limited from
November 2005 to October 2016, From July 2017 to December 2021, Mr,
Cheng worked as a managing director and head of the investment
banking department of Shanggu Securities Limited. He also acted as its
responsible officer. Mr. Cheng has more than 25 vears of experience in
investment banking industry. Mr. Cheng obtained a bachelor's degree in
arts majoring in economics from University of Toronto in June 1994 and
a master of applied finance degree majoring in corporate finance from
Macquarie University of Australia in November 2000.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEASEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Ms. Lu Jiandong, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive directar of the Company on 1 September 2020. Ms. Lu is
currently employed by Jiaxing TechnoDerma Medicines, Ltd. as an
executive director and chief financial officer. Prior to this, Ms. Lu worked
as an executive director and chief financial officer for NASDAQ listed
Rise Education Cayman Ltd (Ticker: REDU) from September 2018 to
December 2020. Ms. Lu also served as an executive director in a
subsidiary of the Company from January 2018 to July 2018, Ms. Lu worked
for JP. Morgan from August 2001 to February 2017, during which, she
served as a managing director for JP. Morgan investment banking team,
junior resource manager for Asia Pacific region, chief operating officer
for JP. Morgan China securities joint venture, managing director and
China head for JP. Morgan infrastructure fund. Ms. Lu has extensive
investment banking and investment experiences. She also has deep
knowledge about capital markets and operation management. Ms. Lu
served as a senior representative at John Hancock Mutual Life
Insurance Company Beijing Representative Office from July 1994 to June
1999, and she also served as a public officer and chief translator in The
Chinese People's Friendship Association with Foreign Countries from
August 1991 to July 1994, Ms. Lu obtained a master degree in business
administration from The Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania in May 2001 and a Bachelor's degree in economics from
Beijing International Studies University in July 1991,

Dr. Hong Ruijiang, aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 10 May 2023. He is a
professor and doctoral advisor of the School of Physics, Sun Yat-sen
University. He is also an executive deputy director of the Institute of Solar
Energy Systems of Sun Yat-sen University. Prior to joining Sun Yat-Sen
University in March 2009, Dr. Hong conducted doctoral research at the
Fraunhofer Institute for Thin Film and Surface Technology in Germany
from March 2001 to May 2004. From June 2004 to December 2006, he
worked as a researcher at the Institute of Materials Engineering,
University of Siegen. From July 1992 to February 2007, he worked as a
researcher at Guangzhou Institute of Nonferrous Metals. He has been a
Director of Energy and Environmental Materials Professional Committee
of Guangdong Materials Research Society since January 2013, and a
resident chairman of Shenzhen Solar Energy Society since January
2010. He obtained a doctoral degree in engineering from University of
Siegen in July 2004,
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEASEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

The main research areas cover new energy materials, solar photovoltaic
technology and application. Dr. Hong haosted and participated in a
number of national, provincial and municipal scientific research
projects. The main research directions include polycrystalline silicon
material growth mechanism and technology, high-efficiency crystalline
silicon salar cell preparation technology, photovoltaic system
integration technology, research on new solar energy utilisation and
conversion materials, high-efficiency and low-cost copper indium
gallium selenide (CIGS), and copper zinc tin sulfide (CZTS) thin-film solar
cell technology. He has published more than 100 papers in Science
Citation Index (SCI) journals and authored a monograph.

Ms. Lee Vanessa, aged 39, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 10 May 2023. She has
16 years of experience in investment and investment banking. She has
been the managing director and co-head of technology and consumer
department of VMS Investment Group (HK) Limited with a focus on the
Greater China region since January 2021, and is primarily responsible for
strategising, sourcing, and executing investments in the technology and
consumer sectors,

From June 2015 to November 2020, Ms. Lee waorked at China
Renaissance Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and last held the position
of director in investment banking department, focusing on technology,
media and telecom (TMT) and new economy companies’ private and
public market transactions in Asia Pacific and Greater China. From
March 2008 to May 2015, she worked at JP. Morgan Chase & Co and last
held the position of vice president in global investment banking
department, managing corporate finance and investment banking
practices in Asia Pacific and Greater China. She obtained a Bachelor's
degree in finance and accounting from the State University of New York
at Binghamton, the United States in December 2007.

Ms. Lee has been licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission
as a representative to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activity since September 2021, and a responsible officer to carry out
Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) between October 2016 and
November 2020, Type 9 (asset management) and Type 4 (advising on
securities) regulated activities since November 2021 and January 2022
respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEASEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 42, is a vice president and the chief financial
officer of the Group and is responsible for the Group's overall financial
and accounting affairs. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior
to this, he worked as a finance manager in The Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and
was a sub-branch manager of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China, Foshan Shunde Haiginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr.
Liu completed a diploma in finance from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics in September 2005, a program in laws at
Guangdong University of Business Studies from March 2007 to January
2010, as well as obtaining a master degree in engineering from
Chongging University upon the completion of courses for the master
degree in software engineering (specialised in financial informatisation)
in June 2014, He is an associate member of the Association of
International Accountants.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 46, is the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 20 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group in June
2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kwan
worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants from March 2000 to
November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers from November 2004 to
October 2007 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from November 2007 to
September 2009. Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor's degree in
Commerce from Deakin University of Australia in September 2000 and
obtained a master degree in business administration from University of
South Australia in August 2012, He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEEGRSE

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND CULTURE

China Lesso has been conforming its codes of business conduct and
ethics. Embracing the corporate philosophy of integrity and impartiality,
trust and collaboration, and sustainability and a market-oriented
approach, China Lesso has optimised its industrial footprints with a
steadfast commitment to its principal businesses. With great
importance attached to the development of sub-markets, areas and
channels, China Lesso has increased efforts in the development of
products and ancillaries with active and extensive cooperation with
professional third-party teams, providing high-quality products to the
community and becoming an important force for a better living space.

China Lesso has put in place a comprehensive responsibility system,
which requires to integrate key indicators such as resource
consumption, health and safety, product innovation and risk
management into operational management to strengthen the
Company's operational awareness. Meanwhile, we have established a
sound risk management structure and a communication channel for
risk management information connecting all levels, departments and
business units. We will continuously improve and strengthen our
capabilities in risk identification, monitoring and prevention.

For more detalls, please refer to the code of business conduct and
ethics and sustainabllity report published on the Company's website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices and business ethics of the Group. The
Board believes that good corporate governance practices and business
ethics are essential for achieving sustainable development, establishing
investors' confidence in the Company and safeguarding and enhancing
the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standards of corporate governance
practices, the Board reviews the corporate governance practices of the
Company from time to time so as to meet the expectations of the
Shareholders for continual improvement, and fulfill its commitment of
pursuing excellent corporate governance. In the opinion of the directors,
the Company complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Code during the reporting period.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to other specific
senior management of the Company. The directors’ and chief
executive's interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its assoclated corporations
are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 63 to 64.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEQRE

BOARD

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 14 directors, including 9 executive
directors and 5 independent non-executive directors,

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the "Articles’),
any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing directors shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting (‘AGM’) of the Company after his appointment and shall then
be eligible for re-election. In addition, at every AGM of the Company, not
less than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Apart from
retirement by rotation pursuant to the Articles, each non-executive
director has a term of within three years. Therefore, no director will
remain in office for a term of more than three years. For details relating
to any relationship among the members of the Board, including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship, please
refer to the sections headed "Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” and "Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of the
Directors'Report.

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND BOARD
COMMITTEES

Mr. Lin Dewel retired from his office as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 10 May 2023. Each of Mr. Waong Kwok Ho
Jonathan and Ms. Lan Fang retired from his/her office as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from 10
May 2023. Each of Dr. Hong Ruijiang and Ms. Lee Vanessa has been
serving as an independent non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 10 May 2023, Each of Dr. Hong Ruijiang and Ms. Lee Vanessa
obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules
on 10 May 2023 and has confirmed that he/she understood his/her
obligations as a director of a listed issuer.

Dr. Hong Ruijiang is appointed as a member of the nomination
committee (the "Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (the "Remuneration Committee”) of the Company, and Ms.
Lee Vanessa is appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee
and the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit Committee’) with
effect from 10 May 2023, Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan ceased to be a
member of the Nomination Committee, Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee, and Ms. Lan Fang ceased to be a member of
the Nomination Committee with effect from 10 May 2023,

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information in respect of the
directors of the Company required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.518(1) of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERELGRSE

BOARD (Continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the post
of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and
Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important duties of the
chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board always acts in the
best interests of the Group. The chairman shall ensure the effective
operation of the Board and fully perform his/her duties and ensure all
important issues are discussed at Board meetings in a timely manner,
All directors will be consulted for any proposed items in the agenda. The
chairman has delegated the drafting of the agenda of each Board
meeting to the chief executive and the company secretary. With the
assistance of the chief executive and the company secretary, the
chairman aims to ensure all directors are adequately briefed on any
issues being put forward at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and
reliable information in a timely manner.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors provide various expertise and
experiences, and maintain balance of interest to safeguard the interests
of the Group and the Shareholders. They participate in Board meetings
and committee meetings and make independent judgements on
issues related to the Group's strategies, performance, interest conflicts
and management process so as to ensure the interests of all
Sharehalders are properly considered.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board exercises
its rights in management decision on the aspects of the Company’s
development strategy, management structure, investment and
financing, planning, financial control and personnel in accordance with
the requirements of the Code.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company's independent
auditor to review the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2023 and to audit the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2023, The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements included in the annual
report and the interim report. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, the directors have
selected and applied appropriate accounting policies and have made
prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external auditor
of the Company on the Company's consolidated financial statements is
setoutin the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 72 to 8.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEQRE

BOARD (Continued)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
including:

(a)  to develop and review the Company's palicies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

() toreview and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  toreview of the effectiveness of the Company's risk management
and internal control system;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

() toreview the Company's compliance with Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code).

The Board has performed the above duties during 2023.

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board convened 12 meetings
to review operating performance, funding requirement and recent
market conditions. The Board also considered and approved the
Group's overall strategy, audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2022 and reviewed interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2023,

The chairman of the Board and the chairman/chairlady of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee attended the AGM of the Company held on 10 May 2023,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TtEEGRE
BOARD (Continued) EEE &)
BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued) EESSERREAE @)

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the Board at = FR#EHF| 2023 FEFeIKENEFEEHIBEN
the meetings held in 2023

Meetings attended/eligible to attend®
EERE/ RERHENRYE

Audit Nomination Remuneration

AGM®) Committee Committee Committee
Directors RRBFAGO EVEEE REZEE FMZEE
Executive directors HTES
Wong Luen Hei HEiE 11 /12 - 1 11
Zuo Manlun iR 11 12/2 - " "
Zuo Xiaoping i S: 11 2/12 - - -
Lai Zhigiang AR 11 2/12 - -
Kong Zhaocong LIk N N2 - - -
Chen Guonan BBl 11 /12 - - -
Lin Shaoquan S 11 2/12 - - -
Huang Guirong HER 1l 2/ - - -
Luo Jianfeng BrE 1l 12/12 - - -
Lin Dewel® ik 11 5/5 - - -
Independent non-executive directorsB I F HTEE
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan® FEZ" 11 3/5 1 11 11
LanFang® b n 2/5 - 0/1 -
Tao Zhigang zp 11 /2 2/2 1 11
Cheng Dickson e 11 2 2/2 - -
LuJiandong BER 1 2 2/2 il il
Hong Ruijiang® RO - 7 - - -
Lee Vanessa® FHEEC - i l - -

Note: B &E -

(@) Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of video (@) BESEAET EEHVES BB EENE M
conference in accordance with the Articles. BeRATHERS -

(b) There was no other general meeting held in 2023. (b) RO023ER - EHMIEE A @ ERIT o

() The change in composition of Board and Board Committee is set out under the (©) EEeNEE L8 eARE TN ELUEEEe RS
section headed "Change in composition of Board and Board Committees” on page 14. ELBeMKRET | —5 -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEQRE

BOARD (Continued)
BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meetings to the directors
and the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance with the Articles
and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda and the relevant
documents are provided to all directors in a timely manner. The
chairman gives a proper briefing to all directors on items to be put
forward at a Board meeting. To ensure compliance with the procedure
of Board meetings and all applicable rules and regulations, all directors
gain a full understanding of all relevant data in a timely manner and
receive advice and services from the company secretary. The minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available
for inspection by the directors and the auditor of the Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company provides a comprehensive induction package covering the
summary of the responsibilities and obligations of a director of a Hong
Kong listed company, the Company’s constitutional documents and the
Guides on Directors’ Duties issued by the Hong Kong Companies
Registry to each newly appointed director to ensure he/she to have
sufficient awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the directors with written materials, as
well as organises seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director's duties and
responsibilities.

In 2023, the Company provided two seminars on the topic of "HKEX's
latest ESG trends” and “Preventing Work-Related Crimes to Build a Rule
of Law Enterprise”.

18 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERELGRSE

BOARD (Continued)
TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued)

Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on the
training records provided to the Company by the directors, the directors

also participated in the following trainings during 2023

EET@®
BEERIIRXE @

BT Eit R AR BHR A IS - IRIBEERA
NEREEOEIIRE  R2023F EFNELR
BT IER

Type of trainings

Directors =2 EIEE
Executive directors HITES
Wong Luen Hei =S AC
Zuo Manlun mfm AC
Zuo Xiaoping Vi P AC
Lai Zhigiang FEE SR AC
Kong Zhaocong KR AC
Chen Guonan PR ENFg AC
Lin Shaoquan bz AC
Huang Guirong mER AC
Luo Jianfeng mRIE AC
Lin Dewei® wiEse AC
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathank! FEIxH AC
Lan Fang® b ABC
Tao Zhigang b 2=l ABC
Cheng Dickson g AC
Lu Jiandong BER AC
Hong Ruijiang® AL ABC
Lee Vanessal FRAEO AC

Note: ks

A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEMAe Rk &R LiniE

B: delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums B: R G R,/ REER RwBES

C reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the G MEAHEERE L5 R REREAQF

responsibilities of directors, economy, finance, investments and business of the

Company

(a) Retired as director with effect from 10 May 2023

(b) Appointed as director with effect from 10 May 2023

EBHEN - BE - THRER

(@) MR2023FE5 AI0RREESE -

(b) R2023F5 AI0REZRTAES -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEQRE

BOARD (Continued)
COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedures of the Board meeting and ensure the
Board is fully briefed on all legislations, regulations and corporate
governance development and has considered opinions of the directors
when making a decision. The company secretary is responsible for
advising the Board on the Group’'s compliance with its continuing
obligations under the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and
Mergers and Share Buy-backs, Companies Ordinance, SFO and other
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the reporting period, the company secretary has received no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to refresh his
knowledge and skills.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in the
discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors and
officers of the Company. The directors and officers shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust
proven against them.

In accardance with the Articles, subject to the Cayman Islands
Companies Act (as revised), every director, auditor or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/
her as a director, auditor or other officer of the Company in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his/her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted.

20 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERELGRSE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain committees
under its supervision, including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (collectively known as
‘Board Committees’). Board Committees can engage intermediaries to
provide professional opinions and the reasonable expenses incurred as
aresult are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Dr. Tao Zhigang
(chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Lee Vanessa, Mr. Cheng Dickson
and Ms, Lu Jiandong (all are independent non-executive directors). The
major responsibility of the Audit Committee is to conduct independent
and objective audit of the truth and accuracy of the Group's economic
operation and financial activities, financial policies, financial procedures,
risk management, internal control, external audit, internal audit, financial
information reporting and financial data and assist the Board in
discharging its relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each year. In
2023, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The attendance
record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page 17.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during 2023:

review of the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2022, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

review of Ernst & Young's confirmation of independence and its
report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2022, with a recommendation to the Board for the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young at the 2023 AGM;

review of continuing connected transactions;
review of the Group's internal audit reports;
review of the interim report and the interim results announcement

for the six months ended 30 June 2023, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

EEXS
EECeCBRERESRTESSEB TS TZE
T BEBEZEES FWEESURIEERZE
eRBARIEEZEE]) - EXZE S MNES
PNRBRHEEER  FEENGBEERAAR
UNSIPES

i

EREEE

BEREZESMNAREEN B IFNTES
EREL (EREEGLTE) FTAELL W
BBREERBRRZ L - BERZEGNIERE
ERARENEEETMY RS - FEHE
MBRERF - RREE  AEES - TR R
MEET  MBEERENYBBENEE LR
ETBYRTENEZ  BHEESETHAR

ERZEQ@ABFELARGHEMK - R2023
F O ERZEEARTMASE Tz

JEResk (PADI BT ) IR BT H -

UTREZZESN2023F AN TIEHER

EMEZE202FRAIBIEFENFRR
FEEENE UEZEESRIB:

HHL KGR BB AT B L R X
DEBEZZESHZE2022F12 A318 1
FENRE  TRAEFTSEZN2023F K
REAFAE FEFNRTLREAMELHT:
EHEFEERER S
HHAEBRNIRRE

EEEHZE2023F6 A30H 175 A &9 2
MERPHEENE  WEZEESRG
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEQRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2023;

consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

review of the corporate governance report for the year ended 31
December 2022 and the corporate governance disclosures for
the six months ended 30 June 2023, with recommendations to the
Board for approval;

review of the sustainable development report for the year ended
31 December 2022 with a recommendation to the Board for
approval; and

review of the annual report on effectiveness of risk management,
internal control system and internal audit function under the Code,
with a recommendation to the Board for approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual
report, annual results announcement and sustainable development
report for the year ended 31 December 2023 with a recommendation to
the Board for approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the service fees paid or payable
by the Group to Ernst & Young, the external auditors, are set out as
follows:

EEZSEE®@)
ERZRE @)

HEEEBRBLTXKGIMEFEIBEZEZE
CHE2023F6 A0 I NEAMRE

ERIBBERST MIFEARE

FEHBE202F2A3ALFENRES
SRHRE MEZE2023F6 A30H JJ:/\“H 0]
CEEREE TEAEFZRB

BB E02NFRAINAIEFEHIFE
BRRE UTREEESRB K

RETRIZEHFERRE R - AEBIEH R
HEABELNERRRE  YERES
TEB -

REERERR BERZEQEHNEE2023F12
HIRILFENFR FEEEXERAHEE
RfE UEREFSRB -

SNEE A B AT
HE2023FRABILFEE  AEBEMINEZ
YTk EAMEBRRT BEX BN RIEE
A#EN T

RMB million
ARBEBEETRT

Annual audit services FRETRE 980
Non-audit services FEB AT AR

- Interim results review — R AR AR B 200
- Others” — Hitw* 387
Total Bt 1567
“ ‘Others” were mainly for providing advice on matters in relation to taxation. The ~ # [H ] T ERAARBOETERMER - ERINERE

provision of these services by external auditors were cost effective and efficient due
to their professional knowledge.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERELGRSE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
EXTERNAL AUDITORS (Continued)

Ernst & Young have been the auditors of the Company for a total of 14
years since 2010, Certification of the financial statements is as follows:

List of audit engagement partners

B EESBARE

EEZEE®@)
ShEB R BHET (D)

KB EBAB200FREEARTRE
fb - BFH4F - BRBOHBRERAOT:

Certified financial statements

RREBOMBEHRER

Lee Mee Kwan, Helena 2010 to 2013, 2018 to 2023
BER

Lau Kin Yu 2014 to 2017

2)8%

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FHZEES

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely Dr. Tao
Zhigang (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Ms. Lu Jiandong,
Dr. Hong Ruijiang (all are independent non-executive directors), Mr,
Wong Luen Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun (both of them are executive
directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying and
formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company's directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility to
determine the specific remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management. In order to determine the level of remuneration
and fees paid to members of the Board, factors such as market rates,
each director's workload, responsibility and job complexity are taken
into account. The following factors are considered when determining
the remuneration packages of directors and senior management:

business requirements;
individual performance and contribution to results;

company performance and profitability, including but not limited
to ESG indicator achievement;

retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand
fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and

general economic situation.

YFMZEemnRKEAR  BVBYIFRTES
FEREL (FMEEEER) aERLt A
mIiEt MTEEEBEEERTRBEL -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEQRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the review process, no individual director is involved in decisions
relating to his/her own remuneration,

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2023, the Remuneration Committee convened one meeting,
assessed the performance of the Company's directors and senior
management, reviewed terms of their service contracts, and made
recommendation of the remuneration packages for directors and
senior management to the Board. The attendance record of the
meeting is set out on a named basis on page 17.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees are
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the remuneration of the two senior management fell within the band of
less than RMBT million.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises six members, namely Ms. Lu
Jiandong (chairlady of the Nomination Committee), Dr. Tao Zhigang, Dr.
Hong Ruijiang, Ms. Lee Vanessa (all of them are independent non-
executive directors), Mr. Wong Luen Hel and Mr. Zuo Manlun (both of
them are executive directors). The major duty of the Nomination
Committee is to study and make recommendations on the candidates,
selection criteria and procedure in respect of the Company's directors
and senior management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination Committee
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies
sultable candidates if necessary and makes recommendations to the
Board. The director nomination policy sets out the approach and
procedures the Board adopts for the nomination and selection of
directors of the Company including the appointment of additional
directors, replacement of directors, and re-election of directors. Below
are details of the selection criteria and nomination process and
procedures as set out in the director nomination policy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERELGRSE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy

In the determination of the suitablility of a candidate, the Nomination
Committee shall consider the potential contribution such candidate can
dedicate to the Board in terms of his ar her qualifications, skills,
experience, independence, age, culture, ethnicity and gender diversity
ete. The Nomination Committee shall consider the following selection
criteria and such other factors that it may consider appropriate for a
directorship, including but not limited to: (a) attributes complementary to
the Board, (b) business experience, board expertise and skills, (c)
availability, (d) motivation, (e) integrity, (f) independence and (g) diversity
in all aspects.

The director nomination policy takes the independence of independent
non-executive directors as one of the factors that must be considered
to ensure that the Board can obtain independent views and opinions.

For the appointment of new and replacement directors, if the Board
determines that an additional or replacement director is required, it will
deploy multiple channels for identifying suitable director candidates,
including referral from directors, shareholders, management, advisors
of the Company and executive search firms. Upon compilation and
interview of the list of potential candidates, the Nomination Committee
will make recommendation to the Board based on the selection criteria
and such other factors that it considers appropriate. The Board has the
final authority on determining suitable director candidate for
appointment

For the re-election of directors, where a retiring director, being eligible,
offers himself/herself for re-election, the Board shall consider and, if
appropriate, recommend such retiring director to stand for re-election
at a general meeting. The requisite information about the retiring
director will be included in the circular which will be published
electronically on the Company's website and the website of the Stock
Exchange before the general meeting. Meanwhile, printed copies will be
sent to the shareholders according to the method they opted to receive
corporate communications.

For nomination of directors by Shareholders, they must follow the
"Procedures for shareholder(s) of the Company proposing a person for
election as a director” which is available on the website of the Company.
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EXEQRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy (Continued)

In any event, the Board shall ensure that the nomination, re-election
and/or appointment of the directors shall be conducted in compliance
with the Listing Rules, the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

For further detalls, please refer to the director nomination policy that is
available on the website of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2023, the Nomination Committee convened one meeting. The
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and compaosition of
the Board, recommended the Board on the list of retiring directors for
re-election and two new candidates of independent non-executive
director for election at the 2023 AGM in accordance with the director
nomination policy and Board diversity policy of the Company, and
reviewed the independence of all independent non-executive directors,
The attendance record of the meeting is set out on a named basis on
page 17.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE AND REFRESHMENT

The portfalio of existing practices of the Company's corporate
governance is in place to ensure the independence of the Board. The
Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness on an annual
basis.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed to the
Company his independence under Rule 313 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent. The independent non-executive directors have actively
participated in meetings of the Board and Board Committees to provide
independent opinions. When performing their duties, they will make
significant decisions with reference to professional advices from
external agents.
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EERELGRSE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Board diversity policy is
available on the website of the Company.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level will
support the attainment of the Company's strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factaors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and other qualities.
The Company will also take into consideration its own business model
and specific needs from time to time in determining the optimal
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the
Board diversity palicy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

The Company identifies and nurtures potential successors to the Board
by: (a) training programs for talents to expedite the readiness and ability
for the succession, (b) engagement of recruitment consultant, and (c)
considering gender diversity as a factor in the course of recruitment of
a suitable management candidate.

According to the Listing Rules, the Company has achieved the
requirement of at least one female director on the Board. The Company
selects and appoints director based on the selection criteria set out in
the board diversity policy, apart from the gender requirement.

The Board diversity targets are as follows:

Board diversity targets
EZEREZT{LEE
at least one female director on the Board

EEex B RLNES

Current performance
ERIRE

ExefsuutES

3 female directors on the Board

EEZFSE®W
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Target achieved
BEREER

at least one director with risk management 1 executive director and 3 independent non- Target achieved

expertise
expertise

EL-REZFAHER

=
8

EEER

i}

BEE

at least one director possessing industry 8 executive directors and 1 independent non-
executive director possessing industry

knowledge
knowledge
EL-REFABTENE
s
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 14 directors. Three of
them are females. Over one-third of the Board members are
independent non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The composition of the Board
reflects the necessary balance of skills, professional experience and
knowledge for effective leadership of the Company.

The Nomination Committee, after taking into account the business
model of the Group, believes that the existing Board is adequate in
terms of size, diversity and composition that are appropriate to facilitate
effective decision making. The Nomination Committee also believes
that each existing Board member possesses diverse skills and
experience required for an effective Board and the Board collectively
possesses core competencies necessary for the effective functioning
of the Board and an informed decision-making process. The Board
believes that board diversity is beyond just about gender diversity and
embraces various factors such as a need for persons from different
backgrounds, skill sets, experiences and competencies for a better
Board performance. The Board will continue to evaluate and monitor
the implementation of the appropriateness and effectiveness of the
board diversity policy to ensure that it remains fit for purpose and aligns
with the Group's businesses, strategies and objectives, such that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives,
in addition to independent judgments provided by our independent
non-executive directors.

Currently, women employees form 301% of the Group’s workforce and
16.0% of its middle or above managerial level. All employees are treated
equally regardless of gender, nationality, age, race or religion. The
recruitment procedures are impartial and non-discriminative and each
candidate is selected on the basis of objective criteria such as skills,
experience or competency. The Board is of the view that the current
gender ratio in the workforce is appropriate to the development of the
Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and ensuring the Group has established and
maintained appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control system. The Board is also responsible for monitoring the design,
implementation and review on the risk management and internal
control system as carried out by management, while management has
the responsibility to provide confirmation on the effectiveness of such
system. To this end, management continues to allocate resources for a
risk management and internal control system compatible with the
COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) standards to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure in the operating system of the Group
and in achieving business objectives of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has continuously monitored
and annually reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal contral system, and the Board is of the view
that the existing risk management and internal control system is
sufficient, effective and adequate. The review covered all material
aspects with regard to control, including financial control, operational
control and compliance control during the reporting period. The internal
audit reports submitted to the Audit Committee by the Group also cover
aspects of risk management and internal control. The Board is not
aware of any significant areas of concern which may affect the
Shareholders, and believes that the Group has fully complied with the
code provisions on internal controls, including compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, as set forth in the Code. The Board,
through the appraisal performed by the Audit Committee, reviewed,
ensured and confirmed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs received by the staff and budget of
the Group's accounting, internal audit, financial reporting function and
ESG performance and reporting at the Board meeting. In light of the
Group's nature of business and the recommendations on the Board's
role in risk management, the Group has developed risk management
system and policies, and established a risk management project team,
which is responsible for the Group's risk management, to communicate
and assess the Group's risk profile and material risks, and track the
progress of mitigation plans and activities of material risks and report
on detailed examinations of specific risks as required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM ElGERASER

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation structure to AEBBEREY —ExSAEMEE  WAEER
manage the risks encountered by the Group. The risk management FE¥HRKRETERE - PEBBHRKREIERE
structure of China Lesso comprised of two key factors: risk BEMREBREREZ: AREERENRAREER
management structure and risk management program. e
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM B EIRALER (@)

(Continued)
(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (A) R EEERE
Regulatory Organisation EEKE
The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the overall risk EFERTEEAREETIIFNAEXEER
management
determine the overall objective, risk appetites and risk HECERERERAEER ARR
tolerance for corporate risk management, and approve risk o R ARE - BER R E IR R
management strategies, major risk mitigation solutions and MEBREARFETRARARERE
risk management measures; i

comprehend and manage each major risk faced by the
enterprise and its existing management situations, and
make effective risks management decisions; approve the
decision making standards and mechanisms regarding
major operating decisions, major risks, major events and
major business processes;

approve risk management report related to major decisions;
and

approve the annual comprehensive risk management
report.
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Risk Management Organisation [ B E AR
The Audit Committee, the highest risk management organisation ERZEEG ARARNFREERGERE
in the Company which is accountable to the Board g HEFERE

review the establishment and planning of the comprehensive
risk management system;

review the proposal on the structure of the risk management
organisations and their responsibilities;

review the annual comprehensive risk management report
and submit to the Board;

review risk management strategies, major risk management
solutions and risk management measures; and

review the annual risk management work plan.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)
(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

Leading Risk Management Organisation
Risk management project team, the leading risk management
organisation

responsible for the establishment and amendment of the
Company's risk management policies and mechanisms;

formulate and submit annual risk management work plan to
the Board and the Audit Committee for their review;

regularly collect first-hand information regarding risk
management, carry out risk assessment and discuss major
risks as faced by the Company; and

assess the soundness, reasonability and the effectiveness
in implementing the risk management system, and review
the annual comprehensive risk management report, risk
management strategies and day-to-day risk management
solutions.

Risk Implementation Organisation

Each functional department of the Company shall accept the
coordination and monitoring carried out by the risk management
project team

32

implement the basic process in risk management;

consider and propose decision-making standards or
mechanisms regarding major operating decisions, major
risks, major events and major business processes of the
functional department;

analyse and propose risk assessment report of the
functional department;

properly carry out risk management work of the functional
department; and

establish a comprehensive risk management process of the
functional department,

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)
Risk Supporting Organisation

Internal control team

assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal control plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

centrally organise or, together with related functional
departments, design, amend or improve internal control
documents in accordance with risk management solutions;

assist the risk management project team to inspect,
examine, evaluate and improve the implementation of risk
management in each functional departments and operating
units; and

assist the timely rectification and improvements to existing
deficiencies of each functional department based on the
findings in the internal audit report.

Internal audit department

assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal audit plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

carry out measures including walk-through test and
analytical review to evaluate the effectiveness in risk
management; and

after carrying out internal audit, deliver the auditing results to
internal control team and risk management project team
timely.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(B) RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management
program which is led by the risk management project team and
implemented with the assistance of the internal audit department
and internal control team. The risk management program is as

follows:

(a)  tocollect first-hand information for risk management;

(b)  toanalyse and assess risks;

(c) to propose risk management strategies and form risk
management solutions; and

(d)  tosupervise the implementation of risk management works

performed by each business units and verify the overall

score.

Key Corporate Risk Management Program
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SUPERVISION AND ENHANCEMENT OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up basic procedures that cover the whale process of
risk management, connecting the channels of communication of risk
management information along the reporting lines and among various
departments and business units to ensure the timely, accurate and
complete communication of information and this has laid the
foundation for the supervision and enhancement of risk management.

The senior management of the Group, focusing on material risks,
material matters and material decisions, important management
matters and the business flow, supervises the work relating to the first-
hand information collection for risk management, risk assessment, risk
management strategies, critical control activities and the
implementation of risk management solutions. The risk management
project team carries out an annual review and examination on the
implementation of the works on risk management by different
departments and business units and its effectiveness for the year,
assesses risk management strategies and evaluates inter-
departmental risk management solutions and business units’ risk
management solutions, proposes suggestions for adjustments and
improvements and issues evaluation and recommendation reports
which will be sent to the relevant senior management in a timely
manner.

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE

The material risks that the Group may face which include macro-
economic risks, risks of inappropriate strategies for market competition,
risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price, risks of adjustments of
policies in relation to the environmental protection, economy and
industry, cybersecurity risks and climate change risks.

The potential risks of macro-economic risks arise from the effects of
macro-economy’s volatility and the pressure of inflation. The Group's
corresponding measures on risk management include reviewing the
management strategies and mechanism for macro-economic risks;
reviewing the relevant mechanism on the collection of intelligence
about the changes in the external macro-economic environment;
clearly defining the macro-economic risk analysis session; analysing,
reviewing, adjusting and improving the strategies for managing macro-
economic risks in future.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE (Continued)

The potential risks of inappropriate strategies for market competition
arise from the risks involved in the formulation of competition strategies
and risks involved in the collection of clients” information. The Group's
risk management measures include reviewing the management
mechanism for market competition strategies; analysing the Company's
position in market competition, reviewing the corresponding market
competition strategies; and timely devising and reviewing the
management strategies in response to the changes in the market
competition environment and submitting report thereon to
management; collecting the market competition information of new
products and offering suggestions on competition strategies.

The potential risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price arise
because the price of key raw materials purchased by the Company is
easily affected by the shortfall of refining capabilities, changes in
manufacturers’ power and labour cost structure, changes in the price of
resins made from coal and petrochemicals. The Group's risk
management measures include clearly stating the risk management
strategies and mechanism for the fluctuation of raw materials price in
the relevant systems; collecting information in relation to the fluctuation
of raw materials price and releasing such information internally through
an established channel; regularly reporting and analysing the
fluctuation of raw materials price; clearly defining the analysis session
for the increased risks of fluctuation of raw materials price; analysing,
reviewing, adjusting and improving the management strategies for the
risks of fluctuation of raw materials price.

The potential risks of adjustments of policies in relation to the
environmental protection, economy and industry arise from the risks of
adjustments of environmental palicies; risks of adjustments of
urbanisation policies; risks of adjustments of construction projects of
significant water works including water saving and water supplies; risks
of adjustments of real estate policies. The Group's risk management
measures include reviewing the management strategies and
mechanism for risks involved in the adjustments of policies in relation
to the environmental protection, economy and industry; collecting
information in relation to changes in environmental protection,
economy and industry policies and releasing such information internally
through an established channel; reviewing the mechanism for
monitoring and collecting the information on laws and regulations that
affect the industry.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE (Continued)

The potential risks of cybersecurity risks arise from two aspects: on the
one hand, the vulnerability of networks to different kinds of cyber attacks
because of its own security defects; on the other hand, external and
internal risks of the Group. External risks mainly represent intentional or
unintentional damage and threats from outsiders, such as malicious
attacks by “hackers’, illegal interception of network data and
transmission of computer viruses. Internal risks mainly include misuse
or abuse of critical and sensitive information, theft, intentional or
unintentional disclosure of confidential information by employees. The
Group's corresponding measures on risk management include
establishing online permissions; developing and using software for
communication within the Group; establishing two sites and three
centers and implementing dual-active and duplication of intra-city and
inter-city data centre; and strengthening development in four areas;
environment, data, terminals and cybersecurity.

Climate change risks are a kind of compound risk in the global risk
society. This risk can be classified into economic risk, political risk, social
risk, and ecological risk, etc. The Group's corresponding measures on
risk management include improving environmental management,
practicing green operations, improving the efficiency of use of energy
resources, exercising strict management on waste discharge in the
production and operation process, actively transmitting the concept of
green development to the public, and building a green operation
roadmap to the harmonious coexistence of enterprises and the
environment.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has formulated a set of program of continuing obligations on
information management and disclosure to formally regulate the
monitoring of inside information that arises during the course of its
current business development and has established the practice of
delivering such information to shareholders, the media and analysts.
When the Group handles the relevant matters, it will comply with
‘Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission and the related provisions issued by
regulatory organisations and the Group has clearly stated that the
unautharised use of confidential or inside information is prohibited. The
Group has a system of answering enquiries about the Group's matters
by external parties, and has appointed and authorised the senior
executives of the Group to act as the Company's spokesperson in
response to enquiries on a particular area.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to an open and transparent culture and has
formulated a whistleblowing policy whereby employees can report any
matters including misconduct, irregular conduct or fraud regarding
financial matters and accounting practices to the anti-fraud control unit
anonymously. According to the type of each reported case, the case will
be submitted to the relevant departments for investigation and reported
to the Audit Committee to ensure fair treatment towards relevant
matters. This policy encourages employees to raise concerns without
fear of being accused. Any Shareholder or stakeholder can also report
similar concerns in writing or verbally in confidence to the anti-fraud
control unit. The anti-fraud management system and whistleblowing
policy are available on the website of the Company.

DIVIDENDS POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to the
Company's discretion. Dividends may be paid only out of its distributable
reserves as permitted under the relevant laws. The Company has
adopted a general dividend policy of declaring and paying dividends on
a semi-annual basis of around 30% of its profit attributable to the
owners of the Company. The Board would review the Company’s
dividend poalicy from time to time considering factors including but not
limited to debt covenants, capital investment and business plan.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, there was no change to the memorandum
and articles of association of Company and they are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS AND PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Act (as revised). However, pursuant to the Articles, the
Shareholder(s) may request for the convening of general meetings
following the procedures below:

Any one or more Shareholder(s) (including a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s))) may request for the convening of
general meetings by written requisition as at the date of deposit of
the requisition, shares representing minimum of one-tenth of the
voting rights of the Company, on a one vote per share basis, in the
share capital of the Company. The written requisition shall be
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office. The requisition shall specify the object of the
meeting, the resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and
be signed by the requisitionist(s)

The Board shall proceed to convene the general meeting within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which the meeting may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

An annual general meeting shall be called by not less than 21
days’ notice in writing and all other general meetings shall be
called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The notice of the
meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda of the meeting,
particulars of the resolutions to be considered and in the case of
special business, the general nature of that business.

Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director are available on the website of the Company.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS'
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the Company to
the Board at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or
by email or through the Company's investor relations whose contact
details are provided in the "Corporate Information” section of this report.
In addition, the Shareholders can contact Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, the Company's branch share registrar, if they
have any enquiries about their shareholdings and entitlements to
dividend.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency in
communication with the Shareholders and investors in general, and will
review the Company's shareholder communication policy annually.
Communication between the Company and Shareholders is conducted
through various channels, including interim and annual reports,
information published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.lesso.com) and general
meetings. The Company encourages Shareholders to attend the
Company’'s general meetings.

The Company's shareholder communication policy is available on the
website of the Company. Shareholders and investors can contact our
investor relations at ir@lesso.com for any inquiries about the Company.
Investor relations communicated regularly with the Board regarding
Shareholders and investors' inquiries about the Company in order to
ensure that Shareholders and investors' opinions and questions were
reflected, and when necessary, the opinions and questions will be on
the agenda of the board meeting for discussion.

The Company's senior management endeavours to maintain an open
dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they have a
thorough understanding of the Company and its operations and
strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of the
function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent third
party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/analyst
meetings from time to time and led investors and analysts to visit its
plants.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

As regards investor relations, the Group will actively conduct activities
related to investor relations in the future to strengthen its corporate
responsibility so that global investors can have an adequate knowledge
and understanding of the Company's operating strategy, financial
performance and development prospects. The Company will actively
develop and maintain close relationship with investors, analysts and
media to achieve sound investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does not
comment on market prospects or factors affecting business and
performance, or engage in discussion on events or trends related to the
reporting period. The Company will not initiate any meeting or
conference call with public in which these matters are discussed. A
quiet period starts at 60 days or 30 days prior to the disclosure of
annual results or interim results respectively, and lasts until the
announcement of the annual results or the interim results.

Having considered all of the above disclosures, the Company believes
that the shareholder communications policy is effectively implemented.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MARKET OVERVIEW

In 2023, interest rate hikes, decreased investment and frequent
geopolitical conflicts significantly impacted the global economy,
hindering its recovery. In China, the economy faced a turbulent external
environment and domestic pressure, including shrinking demand, hard-
hit supply side and falling expectations. All these posed unprecedented
challenges to the business environment. Nevertheless, China's
economy was resilient, vibrant and full of potential, and its economic
stabilisation policies yielded effect consistently, thereby contributing to
a recovery. According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the
country's gross domestic product grew by 52% to approximately
RMB126 trillion.

2023 was the year when China began to recover from the pandemic
outbreak. It was against the backdrop of the complicated and volatile
global economy that the country adhered to the tone of its economic
work — “pursuing progress amid stability”. Efforts were made to
stimulate the domestic demand and facilitate the high-quality
development as it worked to stabilise growth and employment rate and
mitigate risks. Infrastructure played a key role in fueling the three
economic growth drivers, namely export, consumption and investment.
During the year, government departments and provincial governments
pressed ahead with major infrastructure projects. Undoubtedly,
infrastructure was the key driving force behind the economy. Total
investments in the sector grew by 59% year-on-year in 2023, outpacing
the country's overall fixed asset investment. Particularly, investments in
the railway transportation and water management increased by
approximately 252% and 52% year-on-year, respectively, driving the
steady development of the infrastructure construction and piping
industries.
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MARKET OVERVIEW (Continued)

In the past year, China's property sector experienced turbulence as
regulatory measures, market changes and debt crises forced many
property developers into a quagmire. Although government
departments at all levels had already optimised their policies on the
property market with the aim of stabilising it and the regulatory
environment became almost as lax as it had been in 2014, the property
market continued its downtrend. Property developers were under
liquidity pressure, while home buyers’ confidence had yet to recover,
Both the market and property development firms continued to undergo
adjustments amid the upheavals in the supply and demand. The
property market will still face pressure in the short term, thus affecting
the building materials and home improvement industry to a certain
extent

To attain the goals of carbon emissions peak by 2030 and carbon
neutrality by 2080, China is expediting its green development at full
steam. The State Council issued a white paper titled "China’s Green
Development in the New Era” at the beginning of 2023, stipulating the
directions of the country's green development, including “the continuing
optimisation of the industry structure’, “promotion of green production’”
and “popularisation of green lifestyle”. The boom in the environmental
protection and photovoltaic industries is expected to continue.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2023, China Lesso unwaveringly adhered to its development
direction, namely “further developing the piping business and
capitalising on the emergence of green energy for mutual benefit’
despite the complicated and volatile business environment and the
intensifying competition. It also strives for customer satisfaction by
prioritising quality and driving its development with industry-leading
technology, as well as creating high-value products and services for
society. Having pursued high-quality development over years, the Group
has developed itself into a conglomerate whose businesses include
piping systems, building materials and home improvement,
environmental protection, new energy, and a supply chain service
platform. It maintains its leadership in the market for piping systems
and, at the same time, is developing diverse businesses to broaden its
income stream. The Group is also proactively developing into overseas
markets, thus laying a solid foundation for its long-term and healthy
development.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

The Group has always aligned and integrated its own development with
the national strategies. It fulfills its responsibility as a brand by expediting
intelligent manufacturing, innovation, business transfarmation and
upgrading, and the improvement of both quality and efficiency. Such
efforts have resulted in a number of breakthroughs and achievements.
It has led the industry's development with high standards and high
quality, contributing to the success of China's economic transformation
strategy. In the past year, the Group won a number of accolades in
recognition of its performance, including the titles of "An Influential
Enterprise in the Capital Market for 2023", “The Most Popular Enterprise
in the Stock Connect in 2023, “One of the Top 100 Growth Companies in
2023", "A Valuable Brand in the Great Brand Annual Summit 2023,
‘China’s Leading Home Improvement Brand in 2023" and “A Preferred
Supplier (Native Brand) of Central Government-owned and State-owned
Property Development Enterprises — in the Category of Piping’, etc. In
addition, the Group also ranked "26th among the Top 200 in China's
Light Industry” and "9th among the Top 100 in China’s Light Industry
Technology”. It also received the "State Scientific and Technological
Progress Award — 1st Class” from the Ministry of Education, further
testifying to its diverse strengths.

As a leading brand in the industry, the Group keeps on revitalising its
brand, upgrading its positioning, and updating its development strategy:.
It also adheres to the brand concept of "focusing on product quality,
maintaining innovation capability and creating high-value products and
services for society’, thereby establishing a platform for the ecosystem
of products for cultural environment and living space, and leading the
industry down the path to steady, green and high-quality development

The Group proactively supported the state's call for saving energy and
reducing emissions in line with the trend of green development. It is set
on a path to green, low-carbon and sustainable development by
planning for carbon emissions reduction in such aspects as the supply
and consumption of energy and conversion to new energy. The Group
incorporates the environmental concept into its product life cycle by
enhancing the products’ structure and performance, developing
industry-leading technology and contributing to environmental
protection with technology. Meanwhile, it has established a
comprehensive environmental management system, and keeps on
optimising both the environmental management standardisation and
the procedure for business operation. It steps up the monitoring of the
environment, the management of industrial wastes and the control of
noises with the aim of raising energy efficiency and creating a safe and
healthy work environment. The Group’'s moves to build a green factory
and green businesses are aligned with the national goals of attaining
carbon emissions peak by 2030 and carbon neutrality by 2080.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued) EBER (@)
Revenue by Region* KAEZHEE S

Revenue % of total revenue
PN N

2023 2022 2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
AREEER | ARBESL

Southern China ER 14,079 15603 98)% 45.6% 507%
Other than Southern China g LA R 14,236 13154 107% 46.1% 428%
Outside China FEE SN 2,553 2010 270% 8.3% 6.5%
Total @t 30,868 30,767 03% 100.0% 100.0%

# Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to this ~ * EENBEHREFBINAGE P BRRMEL -
consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the number of the Group's B ZE2023F12AIALFE  AEERZ2EAE
independent and exclusive first-tier distributors across the country ~ EVEBY BR —RALHE B E E E 28534 (2022
increased to 2,853 (2022: 2.786). Southern China remained the Group's % 1 2786%) * ARBME EMIHEERERT
major revenue-contributing market, accounting for 456% of the Group's % * 16 A KB RIKRA %R 456% (20224 + 507%)
total revenue (2022: 50.7%), while the revenue from other regions — F:HbIER AU AME EL & 544% (20224 + 493%) -

accounted for 54.4% (2022: 49.3%).

Revenue by Business Unit KA REFBE D

Revenue % of total revenue
A N

2023 20 2023 2022
RMB million RMB million
AREEER | ARBESL

Plastic piping systems EHEBRR 24,585 25607 (40)% 79.6% 832%
Building materials and home BN RE
improvement 2,839 2705 50% 9.2% 8.8%
Others” Hil o 3,444 2455 403% 1.2% 80%
Total et 30,868 30,767 03% 100.0% 100.0%
# ‘Others’ include businesses of environmental engineering and other related services,  # [Hth ] BFERRIEREMBEMRE - @ BREREM
financial services and others. Ei 2
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

In 2023, the economy and investment in China still faced myriad
challenges. Particularly, the property sector remained in a trough while
the capital market became volatile and complicated. Nevertheless,
China Lesso forged ahead with its development and adhered to the
principle of prudent business operation by further developing its
mainstay business, fortifying its market position and maintaining the
quality standards. It demonstrated resilience by maintaining steady
business development. Its revenue remained flat at RMB30,868 million
(2022: RMB30,767 million). Gross profit was RMB8,121 million (2022
RMB8,241 million) and gross profit margin remained flat at 26.3% (2022
26.8%). These changes were resulted from (i) an increase in total sales
volume of plastic piping systems business which benefited from the
timely adjustments to its average selling prices arising from a decline in
the cost of raw materials during the year; and (i) an increase in revenue
contribution from other businesses with less gross profit margin.

The Group strived to maximise the benefits from economies of scale by
forging ahead with the automatic and intelligentized production, actively
upgrading production technology and equipment, and formulating and
adopting an effective procurement strategy to control the costs of raw
materials and production. In addition, it raised its operational efficiency,
optimised its product portfolio and increased its market share. All these
contributed to the steady development of its business and helped it
record a profit consistently.

During the vyear, the Group’s EBITDA decreased by 3% to RMB5,613
million (2022: RMB5,786 million), and the EBITDA margin was 182% (2022:
18.8%). Profit before tax decreased by 16.5% to RMB2,664 million (2022:
RMB3,190 million). Net profit margin was 7.5% (2022: 8.2%). Profit
attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 61% to RMB2,368
million (2022: RMB2,521 million). The decrease in the profit was mainly
due to impairment provision for the Group's receivables from customers
and interest rate increase on borrowings. Basic earnings per share were
RMBO.77 (2022: RMBO0.82). The effective tax rate decreased to 12.9%
(2022: 21.0%).

To express gratitude to the Shareholders for their support and to share
with them the fruits of the Group's endeavours, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK20 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK30 cents per share).
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS

In 2023, to offset the downtrend of investment in the property sector
and stabilise the economy, the government continued to step up its
investment in infrastructure. The central government adopted a policy
of bolstering investment in infrastructure and, most importantly, it
issued RMBT trillion worth of treasury bonds in the fourth quarter of 2023,
with most of the proceeds to be invested in infrastructure. Investment in
infrastructure may experience a marginal rebound and add impetus to
the economic recovery. As the proceeds from the treasury bond issue
are gradually invested in specific projects, progress in hydraulic
engineering projects such as those of drainage, water supply, and those
related to urban services and agriculture are expected to accelerate.
Additionally, the demand for cement, waterproofing works, investment
in piping network, hydraulic engineering design and construction works
may grow further, thus creating a huge business opportunity for the
plastic piping system industry.

China Lesso capitalised on the ongoing demand for infrastructure
construction on the back of the state policy and economic recovery by
proactively developing and expanding its piping business. It not only
kept refining its mainstay products but also innovated both its products
and technology, thus enhancing its core competency and expanding its
market share. Meanwhile, the Group continued to strengthen its
strategic partnerships with government departments and leading
central government-owned and state-owned infrastructure
construction enterprises by proactively participating in projects of
national development plan and urban redevelopment projects. The
Group thus achieved synergies with its strategic business partners and
consolidated its leading position in the piping system market
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)
Revenue by Region

EFFOEERE (8)

BREBERSR (8
WA 21t 2 & 5

Revenue % of revenue
PN EBA %

2023

2022 2023

RMB miillion RMB million
AREEER | ARBESL

Southern China Ecyer) 11,445 12,839 (10.9)% 46.5% 501%
Other than Southern China ERAIMEE 12,184 1750 37% 49.6% 45.9%
Outside China RSN 956 1018 (61)% 3.9% 40%
Total @t 24,585 25,607 “40)% 100.0% 100.0%
Revenue by Product Application KWAZEGRERE S

Revenue % of revenue

2023
RMB million RMB million

WA EHRA %
2022 2023

AR¥EERT ARBAESL

Water supply (AU 9,422 9968 (55)% 38.3% 389%
Drainage HEoK 9,175 9677 (52)% 37.3% 37.8%
Power supply and B ERBA

telecommunications 3,733 4206 n2)% 15.2% 164%
Gas transmission R E 509 461 105 21% 18%
Others* Hipr 1,746 1295 34.7% 7.1% 51%
Total @t 24,585 25607 (40)% 100.0% 100.0%
i ‘Others” include agricultural applications, floor heating and fire services. # [Efh ] BIERA - KB -

During the year, the plastic piping systems business had steady
performance, recording revenue of RMB24,585 million (2022:
RMB25,607 million), accounting for 79.6% of the total revenue of the
Group (2022: 832%).
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

Average Selling Price, Sales Volume, and Revenue by Product
Material

EIFOENERE (8)

BREBERR (8
BRERYHE D FHEE HERKADE

Average selling price Salesvolume Revenue
THER #E 0N
2023 2023
RMB Change Tonne Change | RMB million
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Total o) 9,289 10704 150% 2,646,724 2392373 6% 24,585 25607 (40%%
# ‘Non-PVC' plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE or PP-R. # [PEPVCIZHEBREMHEERPERPPRE -

In the light of the declining raw material prices, the Group adjusted its
sales strategy according to the market conditions and further diversified
its product portfolio. These moves boosted the sales of its plastic pipes
and pipe fittings, with a 10.6% year-on-year increase in sales volume in
2023. Sales volume of PVC products increased by 9.3% year-on-year to
1941263 tonnes (2022: 1,776,304 tonnes), while that of non-PVC products
increased by 14.5% year-on-year to 705,461 tonnes (2022: 616,069
tonnes). Revenue from sales of PVC products decreased by 10.7% year-
on-year to RMBI13,996 million (2022: RMB15,675 million) while that from
sales of non-PVC products increased by 6.6% year-on-year to
RMBI0,589 million (2022: RMB9,932 million).

During the year, the Group was able to maintain its gross profit margin
at a reasonable and healthy level due to a gradual decline in raw
material prices, its adoption of effective procurement strategies and
timely adjustments to the selling prices as well as its economies of
scale. The Group decreased the average selling price of its plastic
piping systems by 13.2% year-on-year to RMB9,289 per tonne (2022:
RMBI0,704 per tonne). The gross profit margin at its plastic piping
system business was 28.5% (2022: 27.5%).
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

As a leading enterprise in the piping industry, the Group aims to develop
its intelligent manufacturing capability by proactively embracing new-
generation information technologies such as artificial intelligence, 5G
telecommunication technology, Internet and 10T, etc. It also drives its
own development by combining the abovementioned information
technologies with digitalised operation and management, thus
furthering the integration of digital economy and real economy. The
Group has already established smart factaries by adopting such
technologies as the 10T, intelligent manufacturing and automated
production in order to enhance its production capability. During the vear,
the Group's annual designed production capacity for plastic piping
systems was 3.21 million tonnes, and the capacity utilisation rate was
approximately 79.4%. Intelligent manufacturing not only improves
efficiency but also effectively reduces carbon emissions and pollution,
thus blazing a trail for the piping industry’'s green and low-carbon
practices, bringing advantage to production and sales, creating a win-
win situation for both the economy and environment, and adding new
impetus and new advantages to high-quality development.

While focusing on the development of its piping business, the Group
responded to the state's rural revitalisation policy by leveraging its
business advantages and research and development capabilities. It
extended the scope of the applications of its piping systems and
provided products, facilities and solutions of high standards for large-
scale planting. As a pioneer of intelligent agriculture, the Group
proactively contributed to agricultural modernisation during the year by
stepping up its research and development of agricultural facilities. It
further developed modern technologies and applied them to the facility
agriculture projects. The Group leveraged its professional advantages
to support modern agriculture with the application of piping, having its
products and technologies applied to agriculture, animal husbandry,
marine agquaculture, thus facilitating the modernisation and upgrading
of traditional agriculture and accelerating China’s rural revitalisation
while enriching its revenue source and expanding its market share.

50 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR

EUOEERE (®

BREBERS @)

FREERBELE AEEHEEREERR
TEBIRAA - 56 S  MBBESH -—KRES
il BB FELER  ETARED  #
HHFEBEREBEBERERA - AEEEBTT
EYEAE - BREREMABLEER BT
TH REEREBEN - TR AREZHEER
MEENFERAERR/IDEM  EsEAX
H794% - HIRAEERXNFAR  BReEESR
BORIRIE)S - REBITESBERIEM T H B -
BEREEMFEE LA - LB BRB N
(&5 E—PPESHERRNMDENED -

AEBETNBRREBEXNVRAE  BRERBN
REIRSR - RN EEA G EEEXRBENMNE
h BREBREROER SABEHRRREE
RESEENERRERBRATR -FR - ER
BRRENAHE AEEEHRGERERAL
R FFEMASREREOTERRA - RHHR
REE UEXDHREREETRE  UEXEDY
REREXRHEERAXE SER RiE
AREXEER BREHE BEBRE-KRBXSE
B O ERRENRRCTR IR R
REERR  FARBEE T AREORARIRRIE
REMZEEER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

In 2023, new business opportunities were expected to arise as
international commerce gradually returned to normality. With a visionary
strategy, the Group proactively developed overseas markets, tapping
into the huge domestic demand and grasping the opportunities for
infrastructure construction there on the one hand, and increasing the
influence and penetration of its brand there on the other hand. During
the year, the Group accelerated the localisation of its brand in overseas
markets with its strong technology capabilities and its advantageous
piping product system when further developing the Southeast Asian
market Currently, the Group's production bases in Indonesia, Cambodia,
Thailand and Malaysia have already been put into operation while those
in the Philippines, Bangladesh and Vietnam are under preparation for
construction, praviding more room for the Group's development.

In 2024, infrastructure investment will remain the key driver of economic
growth and is expected to maintain high growth rate. At the beginning of
2024, provincial and municipal governments across the country
increased investment in quality projects with efficiency and economic
benefits. They also stepped up efforts to initiate major projects in the
year, including those in the sectors of transportation, energy, water
management and new infrastructure. These initiatives provide crucial
support to the recovering economy. The Group will fully grasp the
opportunities presented by the infrastructure investment and continue
to develop its plastic piping system business, which can contribute to
the Group's steady growth.

In the future, the Group will continue to strengthen its strategic
partnerships with government departments as well as leading central
government-owned and state-owned infrastructure construction
enterprises by proactively participating in projects of national
development plan and urban redevelopment projects, with the aim of
achieving synergies with its strategic business partners and
consolidating its leading position in the piping market. Furthermore, the
Group will continue to make innovation the core driving force behind its
development and keep innovating its products, services and business
model. It will also further develop its intelligent manufacturing capability,
enhance its sustainable development capability and facilitate the high-
quality development of its business.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
BUILDING MATERIALS AND HOME IMPROVEMENT

In 2023, China's property sector was undergoing adjustment at a trough,
Property developers'’ liquidity did not yet show any obvious signs of
improvement. The sector still laboured ahead under downward
pressure. To prevent the property sector's systemic risk and ensure the
property market's steady and healthy development, the Chinese
government increasingly relaxed its regulatory measures and adopted
palicies which were favourable to both the supply and demand sides.
However, home buyers' confidence remained weak while risks involving
property developers were brewing up, leading to consistently sluggish
sales and impeding a recovery in the market. As a result, the building
materials and home improvement industry was also affected to a
certain extent. During the year, revenue from the Group's building
materials and home improvement business was RMB2,839 million,
accounting for 9.2% of the Group's total revenue.

The outlook for the property sector remained clouded. Civilian-owned
property firms suffered from financial difficulty and declining sales,
whereas the central government-owned and state-owned enterprises
had an advantage of ample capital and were mare resilient, making
them key players in the property sector. To mitigate business risk, the
Group proactively diversified its client base by pursuing more projects
led by the government and state-owned enterprises and by decreasing
the proportion of civilian-owned property companies in its client base,

The property market has undergone adjustment for more than two
years. In 2024, the state is expected to continue with relaxed regulatory
measures while optimising them to better satisfy the demand of rigid
and upgrading housing. As the palicies on the supply and demand
sides are implemented in synergy and the policy on facilitating property
firms" ability to raise funds is likely to be fine-tuned and implemented,
the number of factors favourable to the property market's development
is increasing. Such policies are expected to yield results so the property
market is likely to bottom out gradually. The Group will continue to focus
on product quality and enhancing its one-stop total solution and
services. It will help promote healthy, green construction with its diverse,
high-quality building materials and home improvement products and
services. Meanwhile, the Group will grasp opportunities in property
construction projects and optimise its client mix by proactively
engaging new clients with strong financial position so as to boost sales.
The Group will continue to give full play to the synergy between its
piping business and building materials and home improvement
business, diversify its sales channels, increase investment in product
research and development, cultivate technology talent, and innovate
and upgrade green products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEET R RS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

OTHERS

The Group’s other businesses include environmental protection,
supply chain service platform and new energy

Environmental protection as an industry is regarded as a new growth
driver. The Group has been developing its environmental protection
business in support of the state’s efforts to attain the dual goals of
carbon emissions peak and carbon neutrality (‘dual carbon goals’). In
2023, China's economic recovery was slower than expected and
industrial investment was geared down, leading to decreases in the
number of projects and the industrial output and, ultimately a decrease
in hazardous wastes. However, the Group still made steady progress in
business. During the year, revenue from its environmental protection
business edged up to RMB387 million. In the future, the Group will
further explore the opportunities for undertaking government projects,
with a focus on such fields such as agriculture, soil treatment, quality
maintenance and provision of technical services, thus creating more
favourable conditions for its future development.

The Group will adopt a prudent approach in developing its supply chain
service platform business, with a focus on the Southeast Asian market.
In 2023, the supply chain service platform business recorded revenue
of RMB1,515 million. In light of the uncertainty over the global
environment for investment, the Group slowed down its investment in
the supply chain service platform business, and planned to dispose of
some overseas assets in that business or lease out such assets
according to the market conditions. Such moves does not only increase
the Group's cash flow and mitigate the liquidity pressure, but it can also
increase the shareholder return. Looking ahead, the Group will continue
to fine-tune its business development strategy according to the market
conditions and its business performance.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
OTHERS (Continued)

The Group’s other businesses include environmental protection,
supply chain service platform and new energy (Continued)

Under the guidance of the dual carbon goals and industry policies,
China's energy sector is speeding up its transition to green, low-carbon
practices, thus significantly enhancing both the quality and efficiency of
its development. In 2023, the trend in China’s photovoltaic industry
changed — prices of the products manufactured at various production
processes declined, while competition intensified. Industry players
which had not yet developed the advantages of economies of scale
and vertical integration were subjected to severe pressure. The
photovaltaic industry entered a stage of consolidation, with market
shares increasingly concentrated in the leading photovoltaic
manufacturers. During the vear, the new energy business of the Group
recorded revenue of RMB1,057 million, accounting for 3.5% of the Group
total revenue. In the future, the global photovaltaic industry is expected
to continue its restructuring and the industry players’ development will
become even more divergent. The competition will remain intense. In
the light of such market conditions and the fact that the new energy
business is still in the preliminary stage of its development, the Group
will take a prudent approach and reconsider adjusting the direction and
strategy of the development of its new energy business.

SUMMARY

China's economy will continue to face myriad challenges in 2024, but it
is likely to stay on track for improvement as the macroeconomic
policies gradually yield results and the industries undergo steady
transformation and upgrading. China Lesso will adhere to its original
aspiration and the principles of the prudent operation and development
of business. It will seek to innovate with prudence and drive
development with innovation. The Group will further develop its
capabilities for intelligent manufacturing and green production,
continue to explore opportunities in its mainstay business and enhance
synergy across its diverse businesses. Meanwhile, it will pursue the
upgrading and innovation to keep up with the market trends, enhance
its brand strength, and add impetus into its high-quality development,
The Group will also grasp opportunities in overseas markets and
embrace globalisation by increasing its brand’s influence and
penetration there with its core capability for intelligent manufacturing.
The Group will raise the standards of its management in order to reduce
costs, raise efficiency, make steady progress and generate shareholder
return for the long term.

54 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR

EUOEERE (®

HAth ()

EEHRMEECOERRFER  HEBREFE
RERFEREES ()

I | BE B IR MERBRSIE T - PEIRE
RAREERBLN SR TE IR BROGEM
Mzm AIEIRTT - 2023F - A REX R
B RROEMERSEELR  TERFOEH
AHREERREZNMIETE R IEZNE
HERERNKERS - RMREXENBAEER
SBEE R BECEMSERERERT - FR
REBHEREHEFRABARKEIOSET
EREEBUANZE% o RERK - BEH2IRE
RITERBEELETEBIERARE  TEDEBEM
R DEHRBEFRE N LHEREBHE
RHENESHEER  AEEBGUREEE IR
Emrn ENZRLERAERNEREHRERS
[) ANAR 2 BB o

Y

2024 F AR BEKEERF DR T BN —F
BEMEZERRYAREERR  EXELUAR
BAHEENBERT  BREEEEEEAFED -
TEBEEISIL  BTREEEERRA
ERETKAF - ERIF P RER - AREHHF
BRCERAE SeRE BERSIEER
B NRZITEKBGR - B - BT SHBE T
EARRE  SEREEN  ARMEERIA
SRS EEE - WIREEIMEE BB RA
BENEZEN  RIARENTFENNMSEN -
AEEKEE—SRNBLEENRE - DUERIF
AR BPRSENBER  HERRRTREE
EE &



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the reporting period, the Group's capital expenditure was
approximately RMB5,999 million, which was primarily used for
improvement of automated faclilities and installation of solar power
facilities in production bases, expansion of the existing production
bases, properties received from receivables settlement and
construction of certain investment properties.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance, fund
utilisation and fund raising activities of the Group are subject to effective
centralised management and supervision. The Group keeps reasonable
gearing level and adequate liquidity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total debts (ie.
barrowings and lease liabilities) of RMB20,696 million, of which 215%
was denominated in US dollar, 21.7% was denominated in HK dollar,
55.0% was denominated in RMB, 14% was denominated in Australian
dollar and 0.4% was denominated in other currencies. The Group's
borrowings are subject to effective interest rates ranging from 250% to
7.07% per annum with maturity periods ranging from within one year to
more than five years. The Group's Gearing Ratio stood at a healthy level
of 46.0%.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's total equity increased to
RMB24,31 million. The Group's current assets and current liabilities were
RMB20,814 million and RMB24,513 million, respectively. The Group's
Current Ratio decreased to 0.85 from 112 as at 31 December 2022, while
Quick Ratio decreased to 0.57 from 0.82 as at 31 December 2022,

The Board believes the Group will be able to continue to generate
pasitive cash flows from its operations. With cash and bank deposits,
including restricted cash, of RMBB6,553 million as well as unutilised
banking facilities, the Board considers that the Group has sufficient
working capital for its operation and future development,

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation
and no hedging had been arranged during the period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans are secured
by land and its concession rights of subsidiaries, investment property of
a subsidiary, personal guarantees provided by shareholders of
subsidiaries, the guarantees provided by shareholders of subsidiaries.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Atthe end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed a total of
approximately 21,000 employees including directors. Total staff costs
were RMB2,440 million during the reporting period. The Group ensures
that the remuneration packages for employees are determined based
on their work performance, professional experience and the prevailing
industry practice. Discretionary year-end bonus and shares award may
be distributed to employees based on individual performance. Other
benefits to employees include medical insurance, retirement scheme
and training programmes.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
The Group did not have any significant investment with a value of 5% or
more of its total assets at the end of the reporting period.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the acquisition of Keda's interest as disclosed in the section
headed “Investment in Associates” and note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not make any material acquisitions
and disposals during the reporting period.
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INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

REBEAT

2023 2022

RMB million RMB million

AREEETR AREBETT

Keda Bz 1,950 -
Xingfa Aluminium HRRE 1,708 1524
Others HAh 1,207 1173
4,865 2697

At the end of the reporting period, the Group held 261% and 7.01% equity
interests in Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited ("Xingfa Aluminium’)
(stock code: 98) and Keda Industrial Group Co, Ltd. (‘Keda") (listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600499), respectively.

Xingfa Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profile manufacturers
in China. The core businesses of Xingfa Aluminium include the
manufacture and sale of construction aluminium profiles and industrial
aluminium profiles. The Group considers that Xingfa Aluminium not only
serves as a valuable investment with sustainable returns, but also as a
good strategic investment. With extensive experience in the business of
construction materials and industrial materials, Xingfa Aluminium has
established various kinds of sales channels and a diverse customer
base. During the reporting period, Xingfa Aluminium recorded a revenue
of RMBI17,353 million, and profit attributable to the shareholders of Xingfa
Aluminium was RMB804 million.

Keda's businesses cover, among others, ceramic machinery, brick
machinery, stone machinery and other building materials machinery
manufacturing and sale, clean energy environmental protection
equipment, lithium battery materials and smart energy. Keda's
enterprise mission of “green solution, greener life” is consistent with the
Group's strategy to promote green development. The Group will
strengthen its connection with Keda by actively seeking business
cooperation in overseas markets such as Africa and exploring new
business development. During the reporting period, Keda recorded a
revenue of RMB9,696 million, and profit attributable to the shareholders
of Keda was RMB2,092 million. The aggregate cash consideration for
acquisition of Keda's interests was approximately RMB2,100 million
during the reporting period.

These investments may create long-term commercial synergies with
the Group's businesses to broaden its sales channels and expand its
customer base, and enrich the Group's comprehensive portfolio of
products and services. These investments can facilitate the Group's
business diversification and reinforce its market leadership.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment properties
were RMBO,189 million. Increase in investment properties was mainly
attributable to the collection of certain properties from debtors of
RMB1130 million, exchange gain on translation of RMB335 million, and
set-off with disposal of a portion of vacant land in Toronto, Canada of
RMB307 million and the remaining portion of this land amounted to
RMB331 million transferred to asset held for sale, during the reporting
period.

Among these investment properties, the properties in Toronto, Canada,
Long Island, US, Auburn district of Sydney and China are existing properties;
the construction of first-phase projects in Thailand, Myanmar, Cambodia
and Indonesia have been completed; and other properties are under
rezoning or at the planning stage of development.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

At the end of reporting period, the Group held long-term and short-term
financial investments of approximately RMB1,946 million (2022
RMB2,602 million) and RMB16 million (2022: RMB683 million),
respectively. The investment portfolio is comprised of 20.3% in listed
equity securities (issued by PRC-based companies of: home
improvement and furnishings shopping malls operating and property
management), 7.2% in listed debt securities, 5.4% in unlisted debt
securities, 66.4% in unlisted equity securities and 0.7% other financial
investments.

During the reporting period, the Group recognised a fair value gain of
approximately RMB85 million in profit or loss, recognised mark-to-
market valuation net loss of approximately RMB143 million in other
comprehensive income and approximately RMBI12 million of exchange
net gain on translation. Income from the portfolio amounted to
approximately RMB21 million in the reporting period, representing
dividend and interest incomes.

The Group will study the market and information of the prospective
investees cautiously before investment decisions making. The Group
will also monitor the performance of its investees closely and regularly
after purchases and will adjust the investment strategy in a cautious
manner to minimise the impact of market volatility on the Group as and
when necessary.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEEERE

Set out below is the report presented by the Board together with the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
set out in notes 45,17 and 18 respectively to consolidated financial
statements. Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's business,
the Group's environmental policies can be found in the "Chairman'’s
Statement’, “Corporate Governance Report’, "Management Discussion
and Analysis” and "Sustainable Development Report’. This discussion
forms part of the Directors’ Report.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Detalls of the Group's corporate social responsibility progress and
performance in 2023 are disclosed in the separate sustainable
development report which will be available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange at the same time as the publication
of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 82 to 230.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK20 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the "Proposed Final
Dividend’) to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 5 July 2024 , subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Friday, 24 May 2024 (the 2024 AGM’). It is
expected that the Proposed Final Dividend will be paid on Thursday,
18 July 2024

The total dividend for 2023 amounts to a total of HK20 cents per share
(2022: HK30 cents per share), which represents a payout ratio of 23.7%
(2022: 33.0%) of the profit attributable to the Shareholders for the year
ended 31 December 2023,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEE

&

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A)

(B)

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND,
SPEAK AND VOTE AT THE 2024 AGM

The record date for determining the entitlement to attend, speak
and vote at the 2024 AGM will be Friday, 24 May 2024, The register
of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 22
May 2024 to Friday, 24 May 2024, both dates inclusive, during that
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to be eligible to attend, speak and vote at the 2024 AGM,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure
that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 21 May 2024,

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE
PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The record date for the Proposed Final Dividend will be Friday,
5 July 2024. The register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 3 July 2024 to Friday, 5 July 2024, both
dates inclusive, during that period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the
Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the
Company should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, T7th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 pm. on Tuesday, 2 July 2024,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Principal corporate governance practices and permitted indemnity
provision adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 13 to 41,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past five
financial years, as extracted from audited consalidated financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
3. The summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group's major properties are set out on pages 231 to
233,

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company's share capital during the
year are set out in note 36 to consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 December 2023, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act (as
revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB5,726 million (2022;
RMB3,665 million). The amount of RMB1,906 million (2022: RMB1,906
million) represented the Company's share premium which may be
distributable provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total revenue attributable to
the Group's five largest customers was 5.9% of the Group's total revenue
and the revenue from the largest customer included therein amounted
to 2.0%. The total purchase attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers was 30.1% of the Group's total purchases and the purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 23.4%.

At no time during the year did the directors, their close associates or
any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial
interests in these suppliers or customers referred to above.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the vear, the Group's charitable donations were approximately
RMB3.88 million (2022: RMBY.75 million).

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoguan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

Mr. Lin Dewel (retired on 10 May 2023)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr.Tao Zhigang

Mr. Cheng Dickson

Ms. Lu Jiandong

Dr.Hong Ruijiang (appointed on 10 May 2023)
Ms. Lee Vanessa (appointed on 10 May 2023)
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan (retired on 10 May 2023)
Ms. Lan Fang (retired on 10 May 2023)

Pursuant to Article 1618 of the articles of association of the Company, Mr.
Kong Zhaocong, Dr. Lin Shaoquan, Mr. Luo Jianfeng, Dr. Tao Zhigang and
Ms. Lu Jiandong are subject to retirement by rotation at the 2024 AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has been informed by Mr. Huang Guirong that he will not
offer himself for re-election and will retire as director of the Company
with effect from the close of the 2024 AGM.

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 6 to 1.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, having regard to
the Company’'s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

62 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR

BEEEE

ARAHEMERARXFASHENEVIALEE
BN R BRI L () AR A B R B B # A M B 5T
BEERTE -

S
RENTBEARE QB EEENEEMT -

HITES

mMEEE (XE)
Tt (TTABEL)
ERFLL
b e
FLIKERSEAE
BREIRI T4
NS
gedl-3 e
MiEE L

BYFHITES
BE 5 18

LI P s
RERZE
HITIE
FRELL
TExEE

WI L

(#2023 5 A10 BiRE)

(FR2023F 5 A10 BEZE)
(F20234F5 B10 BEZRT)
(720234 5 A10 HEME)
(R 202385 10 BEM)

RIFARBMABBIZAAIFE 61816 - FLIKERSE
£ oMbzt BRELSE BERMEBELRA
BRREZTAR20AFBRRBFAG LWESR
KA BRI FEBE RS -

ARRDREBEBERELE BN HEREMT A
KR 2024 FRRBFREEREREARFES -

EEBETHEHNEOENE °

EERBEH

BR2024F BRBF A G BESEME SIS
SR S 8 T 7 7 A B —4F 0 ) K SR B AR U 7T B/
AR CRER M BRON) RIS S 40 -

EFMEBR
EXEMemFHEESHBE EEeKETEAN

AR ERE - AARRMAI LIS BURIE
L



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Madel Code were as follows;

(A)

INTEREST IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

e

A

EERTHAERNIG - HEARSG RE
EEERRRE

R2023F12A3IH  ARBEERITHEER
R A S E AR AR E B (B 5 R HIE &A1 5 XV
HAER) KRG - BEKRNDREEZTES
RIEBS N EEDIEI2IEERARATFER
Bt IRBEETRIEBRMARD AR
BT R e A B IO

(A) RAEDTARDAERS

Number and capacity of shares @

ROHERMEE

Percentage of

theissued

Beneficial Interests of Other share capital of

owner spouse interests the Company

HARDRE BT

BEREBA Bie B pE 22 HitfEs RENBED L

Wong Luen Hei - 2308000 (e 2138485000 (L)F@  2140,/93,000 (L) 69.00%
BHiE

Zuo Xiaoping 2,308,000 (Y@ - 2138485000 ()@ 2140,/93000 (1) 69.00%
Pk

Zuo Manlun 5542,000 (L) - - 5,542,000 (1) 018%
iwtm

Luo Jianfeng 1927000 (1) - - 1,927,000 (1) 0.06%

Tao Zhigang 30,000 (L) - - 30,000 (L) -
B8 5 )

Note: MsE -

(&)
(b)

The letter "L" denotes the person's long position in such securities.

These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which was wholly-
owned by Xi Xi Development and ultimately owned by UBS Trustees (BV.)
Limited, as trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust’), the settlor of which is
Mr. Wong Luen Hei ('Mr. Wong'). The discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust
included Mr. Wong and his family members. Both Mr. Wong and Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping are taken to be interested in the said shares of the Company held by
the Trust under the SFO.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding 2,308,000 shares of the Company. Mr.
Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr. Wong is deemed
to be interested in such shares of the Company in which Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

These shares related to the same block of shares in the Company as set out
in note (b) above.

@) FEILEZIATRZEELNER -

b)) BRERARARGEMSEFRFHE % ARHEZR
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EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(B) INTEREST IN SHARES OF ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

EERITHARN KRG - ARG RE
SRR E (8

(B) MK EERMDNVERS

Number and capacity of shares®
RGOHERMEEE

Percentage of
the registered

64

Interests of

capital of the

Beneficial controlled associated
Associated corporation Owner corporation Total corporation
LR EE
o & A< /Y
LN EXBAEA SEEAEREDR EER: Aok
Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental Zuo Manlun 3,840,000 (L) - 3840,000(L) 480%
Technology Co, Ltd* Tmtm
TLEOK BIRRBHE R Luo Jianfeng 2,640,000 (L) - 2,640,000 () 330%
BIRAA BiEE
EDA Group Holdings Limited® Zuo Manlun 6,846 (L) 6,846 (L) 3.00%
Tmtm
Luo Jianfeng 6,846 (L) 6,846 (L) 3.00%
EREIE
Guangzhou KingHing Zuo Manlun 3,054,475 (L) - 3054475() 176%
Construction Technology Ltd* 7% f&
BN EEERKBR AT Luo Jianfeng 2,083,658 (L) - 2083658(L) 120%
Note: FitsE
(@) The letter "L denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (@) FRMIEZATRZERZSNGTRE -

(b) This company name was effective from 9 November 2023 (Formerly known
as EDA Cloud Technology Holdings Limited).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded in the register pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise natified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS PURSUANT TO SFO

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other than a director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholders

Capacity

BRERERE &t

UBS Trustees (BV.I) Limited Trustee
UBS Trustees (BV.) Limited FFEA
Xi Xi Development Interests of controlled corporation
PR R HErE s
New Fortune Beneficial owner
MEE EmEAA
Note:
(@) The letter "L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.
(b) These shares relate to the same block of shares in the Company as those set out in

note (b) in the section headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures: (A) Interest in Shares of the
Company" above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the directors of the
Company were not aware of any person or corporation (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or
short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the reporting
period.

RESHFEHNEHROIEBBRENER R
oy

R2023F12 A31H » AR B f& 7 2 8 BE B 10
FHREREESFNPEKIEICHKETFEN
BB ERSAENAL(RRRES
MATBARF BRI T

Percentage of
the issued
share capital
of the
Company
522 F]
EEITRA
MBS

Number of
issued ordinary
shares held®

BFENERT
EBERHA@

2138485000 (L) 6893%
2138485000 (L) 68.93%
238,485,000 (L) 6893%

(@) FERILEZALIRZZEFNER -
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any director of the Company or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed "Connected Transactions’,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its holding company and any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with him
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE NON-
COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

New Fortune (the "Controlling Shareholder’, being a company holding
approximately 68.93% of the issued share capital of the Company, and
is ultimately held by the trust the founder of which is Mr. Wong Luen Hei,
and the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his family)
has entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Group with
Mr.Wong Luen Hei dated 14 May 2010 (the "Deed of Non-Competition’).

As at the date of this report, none of the directors or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group. The directors are of the view that the Group's
measures adopted by the Company in respect of the Deed of Non-
Competition are adequate to safeguard the effectiveness of the non-
competition undertakings. The independent non-executive directors
have reviewed the compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition. Based
on the confirmation from the Controlling Shareholder, the independent
non-executive directors are of the view that the Deed of Non-
Competition has been complied with and has been effectively enforced.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the
‘Scheme’) to recognise the contributions by certain eligible persons
(including any individuals being employees, directors, officers,
consultants or advisors of any member of the Group or any affiliate) to
the Group and to offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted
talent and personnel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group. On 29 November 2018, a trust deed (the
“Trust Deed’) was entered into between the Company as settlor and
Computershare Hong Kong Trustees Limited as trustee (the “Trustee’) in
relation to the establishment of a trust (the “Trust’). Pursuant to the rules
of the Scheme, no new Shares will be granted by the Company, the
Trustee will purchase Shares not exceeding HK$750 million from the
open market out of cash contributed by the Company and hold them on
trust for the selected participants until such Shares are vested with the
relevant selected participants in accordance with the rules of the
Scheme. The Scheme is a discretionary scheme of the Company and
shall be subject to the administration of the Board and the Trustee in
accordance with the rules of the Scheme and the Trust Deed. There is
no maximum entitlement of each participant The Scheme will remain
in force for a period of 10 years since the date of adoption of the
Scheme and therefore the remaining life of the Scheme is around 4
years and 5 months as of the date of this report. Early termination of the
Scheme may be elected by the Board, provided that such termination
shall not affect any subsisting rights of any selected participants. For
details, please refer to the announcement made by the Company on 28
August 2018. Since the date of adoption of the Scheme and up to the
date of this report, no shares have been awarded under the Scheme. As
at 31 December 2023, there were 22,991,000 Shares held in the Trust
under the Scheme.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board announced that on 31 January 2024, the Company entered
into the new machinery purchase agreement with Guangdong Liansu
Machinery in relation to the possible purchase of machinery by the
Group from Guangdong Liansu Machinery for the years ending 31
December 2024, 31 December 2025 and 31 December 2026 at a price
not exceeding the price offered to the Group by any independent third
parties. The annual machinery purchase caps for each of the period,
shall not exceed RMB300 million.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

On 31 January 2024, the Company entered into the supply agreement
with Yan Sing Fu Sing in relation to the possible supply of building
materials, new energy solutions and renovation services by the Group
to Yan Sing Fu Sing for the years ending 31 December 2024, 31
December 2025 and 31 December 2026 at a price no more favorable
than the price offered by the Group to any independent third parties.
The annual sales caps for each of the period, shall not exceed RMB200
million.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 31
January 2024.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

(A)  0On13 September 2023, the Company as guarantor and its whaolly-
owned subsidiary China Lesso Finance Limited as borrower (the
"‘Borrower”) entered into a facility agreement (the "Facility
Agreement I) in relation to dual currency syndicated term loan
and revolving credit facilities in the amount equivalent to US$600
million (which may be subsequently increased to up to the
amount equivalent to US$800 million) at an interest rate of HIBOR
plus 144% per annum for Hong Kong Dollar loans, or daily non-
cumulative compounded SOFR plus 151% per annum for US Dollar
loans, among others, 7 lenders and 7 mandated lead arrangers
and bookrunners. The main purpose is to refinance the Group's
existing financial indebtedness. The maturity date (the “Original
Maturity Date’) under the Facility Agreement | is the date falling 48
months after the earlier of (a) the first utilisation date under the
Facility Agreement | and (b) the end of the availability period of one
of the term facilities, provided that the Original Maturity Date may
be extended for a further period of 12 months subject to the terms
and conditions of the Facility Agreement |,

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement |, Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his
family (collectively, the "Wong family’) shall collectively maintain,
directly orindirectly, at least 51% of beneficial shareholding interest
in the issued share capital of the Company, carrying at least 51% of
the voting rights, free from any security. Otherwise, a failure to do
so will be deemed an event of default under the Facility
Agreement |,
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES(Continued)

B)

On 15 July 2021, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
‘Facility Agreement II') in relation to dual currency syndicated term
loan and revolving credit facilities in the amount equivalent to
US$550 million (which may be subsequently increased to up to
the amount equivalent to US$700 million) at an interest rate of
LIBOR/HIBOR plus 140% per annum with syndicate lenders. The
maturity date under the Facility Agreement Il is the date falling 48
months after the earlier of (i) the first utilisation date and (i) the end
of the availability period of one of the term facilities, provided that
it may be extended for a further period of 12 months subject to the
terms and conditions of the Facility Agreement |l.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement I, the Wong Family shall
collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial
shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the Company,
carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from any security.
Otherwise, a failure to do so will be deemed an event of default
under the Facility Agreement I,

On 30 July 2019, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
"Facility Agreement lIIY) in relation to dual currency syndicated term
loan and revolving credit facilities in the amount equivalent to
US$900 million at an interest rate of LIBOR/HIBOR plus 160% per
annum with syndicate lenders. The final maturity date under the
Facility Agreement Il is the date falling 48 months after the first
utilisation date.

On 23 October 2019, a syndication and amendment agreement
(the "Syndication and Amendment Agreement’) in relation to the
Facility Agreement Il was entered into by, among others, the
guarantor and the borrower. Subject to the terms and conditions
of the Syndication and Amendment Agreement, the number of
syndicate lenders will be increased and the total commitment
under the facilities will be increased to the amount equivalent to
US$1,100 million. Save for the aforesaid amendment and
supplement, all other major terms of the Facility Agreement Il
remain in full force and effect.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement Il (as amended by the
Syndication and Amendment Agreement), the Wong Family shall
collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial
shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the Company,
carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from any security.
Otherwise, a failure to do so will be deemed an event of default
under the Facility Agreement I,
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, certain of the related party
transactions as disclosed in note 41 to consolidated financial
statements also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules and
satisfied relevant disclosure requirements thereof. Details of the
non-exempt connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions are summarised below:

PURCHASE OF MACHINERY

On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the new machinery
purchase agreement with Guangdong Liansu Machinery in relation to
the possible purchase of machinery by the Group from Guangdong
Liansu Machinery for 3 years commencing from 1 January 2021 and
ending on 31 December 2023, at a price not exceeding the price offered
to the Group by any independent third parties. The annual machinery
purchase caps for the years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2023, shall not exceed RMBI190 million, RMB220
million and RMB250 million respectively. For details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on 28 December 2020.

Total consideration paid for the reporting period by the Group was
RMB206 million.

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the connected transactions during
the year. The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose of Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that all continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of its business; (i) on normal commercial terms; and (iif) in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor's Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Company's auditor issued an unqualified letter containing the findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A56 of the
Listing Rules to the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 41 to
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the Company
and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float required under in
the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2024 AGM to re-appoint Ernst &
Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive and Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

IBILZBED R &

e
EY:

To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Lesso
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries (the "Group’)
set out on pages 82 to 230, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs') issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA') and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3L S AN IR &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "“Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements,
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

P T EIH (@)

Key audit matter
BREZSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
ML R R EZXEE

Provision forimpairment of trade and bills receivables and loan

B 5 JE WA R 3R 15 FE YL (B 3K 6 Rl (B 7 1

recelvables

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB4,533,468,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB2,357,976,000, among which
RMB1,612,849,000 were provided for certain individual
customers, and loan receivables of RMB319,341,000, net of
provision for impairment of RMB382,436,000, among which
RMB135,256,000 were provided for certain individual
custamer groups, which in aggregate accounted for 81% of
the total assets. The assessment of impairment of such trade
and bills receivables and loan receivables was considered to
be a matter of most significance as it required the application
of judgement and use of subjective assumptions by
management.
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HKFRS 9 requires that the impairment of financial assets
should be measured by the “expected credit loss” ("ECL)
model. In order to measure the impairment of trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables under HKFRS g,
management should use judgement, assumptions and
estimation technigues in aspects such as judging significant
increase in credit risk, estimating the parameters for
measuring ECLs and determining the forward-looking
adjustments.
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Our audit procedures included, among others:
BAWEZEFBE (BTRR) :

Evaluating and testing the effectiveness of the
design and implementation of key controls relating
to approval, post approval monitoring, credit grading
management, and loan impairment assessment.
We adopted a risk-based sampling approach in our
tests of the allowances for impairment of trade and
bills receivables and loan receivables;
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Selecting samples of performing loans considering
size, risk factors, industry trends for our tests on the
measurement of impairment;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

S EREIR @)

Key audit matter
BREZSHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
ML R R EXEE

Provision forimpairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables (Continued)

B 25T K 1R T IE A8 5K e el (B 1 ()

The accounting policies, disclosures of the allowance for loan
receivables and the related credit risk and impairment of
trade and bills receivables are included in notes 24, 3, 20 and
25 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
BRSHER RREFBEREEEERRIANE S E
WHIBERZERENRESH N GEE M BRRMT24 320
F25 e

i)

Evaluating and testing the important parameters of
the expected credit loss model, management's
major judgements and related assumptions, mainly
focusing on the following aspects:
HEMAAEREERERANEZ2H BB
TEHENARBERR  T2FEATIE

Assessing the rationality of the expected credit
loss model methodology and related
parameters, including historical loss rate, risk
exposure, and significant increase in credit
risk;

HETRREEBBREIEAREES R (BEE
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Assessing management's consideration of
forward-looking adjustment information when
determining expected credit losses, including
the use of macroeconomic information, the
judgement of adjustments, and the
reasonableness of reviews; and
FEEEERNETHRBGEEBEREAEN
AEEHNZR(BRZBKLBEEHNNER
AR HE KBNS EE) R

Assessing the adequacy of the Group's disclosure of
the allowance for impairment of trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables and the related
creditrisk.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

S EREIR @)

Key audit matter
BREZSHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
ML R R E XTI

Provision for impairment of manufacturing and trading related inventories

REREZHBAFERER R

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had manufacturing and
trading inventories of RMB5,239,246,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB260,098,000, which represented 8.7% of
the total assets. The provision for impairment mainly related
to certain obsolete and slow-moving inventories. We focused
on this area because these inventories were material to the
Group and the provision for impairment of inventories
involved a high level of management's judgement and
estimate.
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Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 24, 3 and 22.

REFEFBHRERANBERBESRNME24  3R2-

Our audit procedures included, among others:
B EZREFEE(BETRRY)

i)

Evaluating, amongst others, the analyses and
assessments made by management with respect
to obsolete and slow-moving inventories, including
market values and expected selling prices of the
related inventories and the Group's future plan of
usage or sale;

G (EhER) BB AR LB HEFEFELD
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Assessing the reliability of the underlying data used
by management in calculating the production
related inventory provisions such as the inventory
ageing reports, by re-performing the ageing
calculation generated by the system;
EFERSRELANFH (MEEFHMRE) A
FEEEERNGELEMBTFERENHBE
A SEE

Testing the accuracy of management's calculation
by assessing the calculation criteria and
recalculating the provision; and

AR ERERBNAEREG  UWARERBERME
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Evaluating, based on a sample of production related
inventories, the analyses performed by
management regarding the net realisable values of
the production related inventories,
mMERELEEMBTE UL EEEEHLAEM
BT 5 T BRI DT -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

P T EIH (@)

Key audit matter
BREZSHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
ML REZXEE

Valuation of investment properties

KEYEILE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had investment properties
of RMBG,188,888,000 which represented 15.3% of the total
assets and were measured at fair value. The valuation of the
investment properties was important to our audit as it
represented a significant judgement area and an important
part of the total assets of the Group. Management employed
independent qualified valuers to assess the fair value. The
valuation of the investment properties is highly dependent on
a range of estimates made by management.
R2023F12 A3 EEENREVEEAE/SARSE
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Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 24, 3 and 14,

REFEFBHRERANBERBERNME24 3 R4 -

Our audit procedures included, among others:
B EZREFEE(BETRRY)

i)

Considering the objectivity, independence and
expertise of the professional valuers;

ERBEXMEMOFTERN B FENE

Assessing the appropriateness of the property
related data, which have been used as input for the
valuations;

AHEERGER ABEBNYEAREE ZEA T

Engaging our internal specialists to assist us in
analysing the valuations and challenging the
underlying assumptions, such as the
appropriateness of comparable lands under the
sales comparison approach and capitalisation rate
and market rent under the income capitalisation
approach; and
ZERMERWBBRM DT HE LB ERBBRR
PIEnH E L BUE T A B th Rt Mz B A L&
THERELXREMSGHEHENERME &

Focusing on the adequacy and appropriateness of
the disclosures relating to the valuations of these
investment properties.

EIRNREREMEAEEBREN T RERE

Bt o

Annual Report 2023
w0 /)




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3T 2 BUAT R &

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3L S AN IR &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BB BEEZGEMBRRRIBENET

BAWBER RYHRAMBERREBRET A
MR AFF R ME B EAERRA G A
RiE THABEKRMEROZBENRE - T
EU2RBAEBFELRE - RUILZINAHRE TER
A RAM IR ARENATEEMEAA
TH ESAEEMEE -

BERBERSKENRE  BETERFRIELEREL
EREAETHNERZ  EX - EAERRAFE
P ARREZE IR - SHARIRAL AT A R ERRF SR ER AR 5142
MRAEEHEMEBNELLERAETERS
BTSSR 2 B KRR AR & I IS SRR PR H R
RTE - BB B EE R IR AT BARVEE K -

ERBEEEZENETEZNBRES - BME
BT HEEHAE - RS TERRREE - B

AR M EHR KR ERM BTSSR
BREGFEEAFERRAWER - /TR
MITEZIEF AEEELRE - A NMER
REMEENEZRE FREMAEAEN
ARt - ARSI RER BE F
BER ERRL  sORBERARZES 2
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MR E R SR AR HIEFBRMER
B K $H AR FR L 0 LR o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3T 2 BUAT R &

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3L B AT 2R &

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's reportis Lee Mee Kwan, Helena.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT ORLOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeEmkEMEZHEIER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F PV ABILFE

2023 2022
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt 5% ARSI ARBTE
(Restated)
(FEY))
REVENUE ON 5 30,868,289 30,767,221
Cost of sales SHE AR (22,747,275)  (22,525788)
Gross profit £ 8,121,014 8,241,423
Other revenue, income and gains HEa A~ Wzs M Az 5 717,590 668454
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ry (1,572,851) (1461755)
Administrative expenses THAXZ (1,663,901) (1,569,099)
Impairment losses on financial and TREANEENRIE
contract assets 18 (857,546) (465,548)
Other expenses HEis (1,294,948) (1614,451)
Finance costs & A AR 6 (1,112,761) (681,084)
Share of results of associates bR el NC E S 323,905 71,094
Share of results of joint ventures DHEEDEEE 18 3,667 1390
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B A 3% A 7 2,664,169 3190,424
Income tax expense Fris i = 9 (343,823) (669,874)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F A5 R 2,320,346 2,520,550
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hip 2 H i &=
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HEAIREEFHFEEIEE
to profit or loss: WIEAE -
Debt instruments at fair value through EBEAnEEFAEMEZE K
other comprehensive income: BWEBFIA :
Changes in fair value, net of tax NABEZE (BiEFHE) 1,189 317,013
Share of other comprehensive income of DME—HEE R NEM D E
an assoclate, net of tax Wz (B8 F%58) 865 (1039)
Exchange differences on translation of FrEINERREENER
foreign operations Gt 299,364 (7115,543)
301,418 (309,569)
ltems that will not be reclassified to profitor  E# T @ EHREEER
loss: MIEE :
Changes in fair value of equity instruments AR EBEFAREMEERZE
at fair value through other comprehensive BIRRAT AN AR EE
income, net of tax FE) (BikF5E) (143,805) (406,280)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRHEMZE
FORTHE YEAR I #5 157,613 (805,849)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRZEKE
FORTHE YEAR et 2,477,959 1,714,701
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEERREMBEEKER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F PV ANBILEFE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTL
(Restated)
(FeE7)
Profit attributable to: AT FEAE 3 A -
Owners of the Company KABEAR A 2,368,062 2521245
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR (47,716) (695)

2,320,346 2,520,550

Total comprehensive income attributable to: AT fEAh 2 T UK 5 42 58 -

Owners of the Company KABEAR A 2,499,787 1,716,617
Non-controlling interests SR (21,828) (1916)
2,477,959 1714701
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AQEEE AEM
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY EREF
Basic and diluted HEARE S 1 RMBO.77 RMBO0.82

AR¥®O077T AR®0827T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ZaMBIRRR

As at 31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

2023
RMB'000
AR®T R

2022
RMB000
ARBTIT

(Restated)
(#e&E51)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 12 15,245,858 13882250
Right-of-use assets TREEE 13A 3,226,472 2,474,880
Investment properties REME 14 9,188,888 8,027,487
Deposits paid for the purchase of BELTH WX BER

land, property, plant and equipment BB NOESE 1,375,290 1,986,003
Goodwill [EES 15A 540,085 541878
Other intangible assets HEmmpEE 158 409,370 438,833
Interests in associates R &R RIS 17 4,864,524 2,696,897
Interests in joint ventures REEBDEMER 18 26,658 14191
Other financial assets HEfhemEE 19 1,945,765 2,602,197
Loan receivables FEUR & 3Kk 20 12,392 42473
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 21 1,679,063 1,689,328
Contract assets BHEBE 24 11,735 42284
Deferred tax assets EIERIAE B 34 661,170 572255
Total non-current assets IERBEELLEE 39,217,270 35,010,956
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories & 22 6,187,275 6,499,086
Properties from receivables settlement HEERWRAMENME 23 424,192 -
Contract assets BREE 24 275,400 553,288
Other financial assets Hibe@EE 19 16,491 682,907
Loan receivables JRE s 18 5k 20 306,949 1,096,843
Trade and bills receivables B RUGBEREE 25 4,533,468 4,873,943
Prepayments, deposits and other AR Be R

receivables H A UL FNIE 26 2,186,240 2,924,308
Cash and bank deposits Re RIFITIFR 27 6,552,984 7,361,770

20,482,999 23,993,045

Asset held for sale BEREEE 28 331,001 -
Total current assets MEEELT 20,814,000 23,003,045
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Contract liabilities aHEE 24 3,124,568 3,489,765
Trade and bills payables BHRNRBLERE 29 8,369,185 8,036,239
Other payables and accruals HEMEMRIBERESER 30 1,695,294 2182777
Tax payable TR IR 501,708 367,752
Borrowings & 3 10,692,553 7257639
Lease liabilities HEAE 13B 129,412 107,670
Other financial liabilities EemaE 33 - 5230
Total current liabilities MEBEBRE 24,512,720 21,447,072
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS B (BE)BEEFE (3,698,720) 2545973
TOTALASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEELHERAHERE 35,518,550 37,556,929
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HEMBIRAR

As at 31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000O
AR T | AR®ETT
(RESEIE);
€=2l))
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Borrowings CE:N 31 8,652,033 12,778,043
Lease liabilities HEBE 138 1,221,639 470,736
Other long-term payables Hth R HAE T 3RIA 5,472 8,903
Provision for long-term employee benefits R E{E 8 @ F B & 32 6,908 6387
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBEE 34 1,086,143 1,407,648
Deferred income EIE W 35 235,277 244126
Total non-current liabilities MBI BEEE 1,207,472 14,915,843
Net assets BEFE 24,311,078 22,641,086
EQUITY s
Share capital & < 36 135,344 135,344
Reserves fEiE 37 23,368,139 21,707,065
Equity attributable to owners ZA/NCIE7 2 DN
of the Company JE1h eSS 23,503,483 21,842,409
Non-controlling interests eSS = 807,595 798,677
Total equity BmaE 24,311,078 22,641,086
Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng
EHE EREIE
Director Director
) EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

l“"%*éﬁ%ij]%

Year ended 31 December 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEERZHR

Year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F 12 A3 BILEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERETMER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F PV ABILFE

2023 2022
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARSTR ARBTE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BeEs
Profit before tax B 5% B g A 2,664,169 3190424
Adjustments for; BLAT SIEIEL FH%E
Interest income B Wz 5 (208,746) (174,867)
Government grants released BB AR BT B (32,875) (48,412)
Fair value changes of investment properties AW E AR BEZ ) 5 (10,314) (120,936)
Fair value changes of financial instruments Tﬁ’&fﬁfgﬁﬁ]@é?&ﬁ’ﬂ
at FVTPL eRIAMNARBEES 7 (84,998) 283,759
Gain on fair value changes of other financial ~ B & MABBEARBEES
liabilities Mz 5 (5,230) (59,552)
Gain on early repayment of convertible loans 12 F{8 18 A] AR B 31 I 5 - (3862)
Investment income ®E W 5 (19,179) (22, 374)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHT B QR TS A 5 (9,708) (8510)
Loss on disposal of associates HE B R TE’JE’ETE 7 - 30,649
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets R E A E TS M 5 (1,953) (2145)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets & A %ﬁ%ﬁﬁ Rk 5 (10,944) -
Gain from debt restructuring with customers B 1{& %Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ Ak 7 (33,487) -
Gain from a bargain purchase FEWREE & 5 - (30)
Interest expenses B 6 1,112,761 681,084
Depreciation and amortisation o E R 7 1,835,604 191419
Service costincluded in defined benefit plan &1 AR €& Fl 5H 819 RIS A A 7 851 774
Write-down of inventories to WoRFEZ R #R
net realisable value, net SFEFRE 7 10,713 458386
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of other HEHMELEEMYE
intangible assets and property, plant and W R RESIEEB EE
equipment (Fz=) 7 17,981 (18,976)
Impairment of other intangible assets B & ERE 7 = 66,875
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEUE TR A CRERE)
loan receivables, net 58 7 1,516 (156,104)
Impairment of long-term loan receivables R HAE WS TR E 7 - 50,000
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of BHEERE/ CRERR)
contract assets, net 58 7 96,560 (3207)
Impairment of trade and bills receivables, net & 5 U GRIE & 2 REFHE 7 579,675 547,056
Impairment of prepayments, net B BB B FRE 7 1,907 1,945
Impairment of other receivables, net HoAh M 5R IR R (B F R 7 179,795 27,803
Impairment of interest in associates EAH*Q%%’D\TE'HE SR E 7 8,850 -
Equity-settled share option expense L/\Hx$ﬁ K2 B A B 2 7 = 47,850
Share of results of associates Pak (SN AN E S (323,905) (71,094)
Share of results of joint ventures %15’5\ EIEEE 18 (3.667) (1390)
5,765,376 6,198,765
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets H M 3E R BN & ER 2 (3 0) 121,322 (170,565)
Decrease in inventories FERD 349,961 372,468
Decrease in contract assets BHEERD 181,877 24,660
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables FEU B TR A, (3 0) 637,226 (50,988)
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 fE W Sk IE R E IR IE N (470,451) (1362,553)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AR - Ze REMEBGR
deposits and other receivables Ve /(i‘ ) 590,831 (764,780)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHERECRD),/#m (365,009) 240,686
Increase in trade and bills payables g %Fﬁmlﬁ)}mﬁ%i“bﬂ 336,551 494,881
Increase in other payables and accruals Hoqth FEAT SRIE R JEET B AL N 47,277 137143
Decrease in other long-term payables H At = B & A SRIER = (1482)
Increase in deferred income R FE Y 25 12 N 24,025 32314
Cash generated from operations KEELNIRS 7,218,986 5150549
Bank interest received B UERTT I B 95,792 107,402
Corporate income tax paid BT EMER (613,310) (685,261
Net cash flows from operating activities REEBMERENEFH 6,701,468 4572690
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

o O = EE%I)ILE%

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F PV ANBILEFE

2022
RMB'000

ARBTT

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEME  BEKIEH

equipment B H (3,754,047) (2,846,573)
Prepayment for other assets BNEMEE (26,052) (464,000)
Proceeds from disposal of items of other RELEHMBELEEMYE

intangible assets and property, plant and s & & I8 B BT 1S

equipment ;A 510,513 163,523
Proceeds from disposal of an investrment HEREMERSE

property RIE 296,848 331,797
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets 1 & {8 FI 1 & & AT 13 58 91,579 -
Proceeds from disposal of asset held for sale &1 & EEESHKE - 938,051
Additions to right-of-use assets FREEELN (433,313) (44149)
Additions to investment properties LB YEEE (352,572) (1349,838)
Additions to other intangible assets E fth A & B 38 0 (22,458) 1,247)
Additions to associates /NI (309,782) (28196)
Additions to joint ventures AEREEN (8,800) -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W HEME N ) - (70,420)
Purchases of other financial assets BEHEMEREE (2,477,960) (1366,663)
Investment income received 24 & Woas 19,179 22,374
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets & H b & g & E 15 3R 1,801,762 177,238
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries i & MY B A R AT 1S 5K 1E 49,991 65,391
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — AR AR TS RIE - 6,000
Dividend received from associates B U B &N J A RS B 130,086 76,310
Interest received from other financial assets B U H & @& E K F2 1,906 2,806
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SRR SR SR A (3E ) 229,078 (154,789)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREGBFAReREFE (4,254,042) (4,551,485)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
New bank borrowings raised FIRSRITIER 11,590,519 12,585,416
Repayment of bank and other loans EEIETREMER (12,462,0M) (10,761,557)
Repayment of convertible loans BETHRRER - (716.236)
Capital contributions from non-controlling FEFE IR

interests & - 8,38
Return of investment 1§ & B3R (12,720 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Uiz B FE 47 il e 2 44(b) (7,04 (150,687)
Proceeds received from exercise of Tﬂi ﬁﬁﬁﬁié FTig

share options = 4,201
Repayment of lease liabilities 8 ETHEETE 44(p) (193,280 (136,022)
Interest paid EENEES 44(b) (1,100,889 (675,386)
Dividends paid to the owners of the Company BTN R Al #EA AR S 44(b) (831,903 (649,336)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests AT FEIE S = IR S 44(b) (25,47 (12,931)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEESMAR SRS TR (3,042,796) (504,400)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH REeRBEEEYRD

EQUIVALENTS BH (595,370) (483195)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FOMRE RE

of the year ZEY) 5,735,188 6,174,456
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net &I\ﬁ%’?[? YT EFE 15,662 43,927
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRANBEERRE

END OF THE YEAR ZEY 5,155,480 5735188
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HeERESEEBYN

CASH EQUIVALENTS ey
Time deposits with original maturity of EHEZR (NERRREHRR B

three months or less when acquired =@EALUAT) 27 59,102 572,982
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHE 27 5,096,378 5162206

5,155,480 5735188
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M T

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A 31H

1.

20

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The addresses of its registered office and
principal places of business are disclosed in the section headed
‘Corporate Information” of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars of
the Company's principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 45,17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company's ultimate holding
company is Xi Xi Development, a limited liability company
incorporated in the BVI.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reparting
Standards (‘'HKFRSs') (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASSs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, other financial assets,
asset held for sale and other financial liabilities which have
been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of RMB3,698,720,000, which were mainly resulted
from reclassification of long-term bank loans of
RMB3,868,827,000 which will be due for repayment in 2024
as current liabilities, as disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

On 13 September 2023, the Company (as guarantor) and its
wholly-owned subsidiary (as borrower) entered into a facility
agreement (the "Facility Agreement’), in relation to dual
currency syndicated term loan and revolving credit facilities
in the equivalent amount of US$600,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,249,620,000) (which may be
subsequently increased to up to US$800,000,000
equivalent (equivalent to approximately RMB5,666,60,000)),
The maturity date (the "Original Maturity Date’) under the
Facility Agreement is the date falling 48 months after the
earlier of (a) the first utilisation date under the Facility
Agreement and (b) the end of the availability period of one of
the term facilities, provided that the Original Maturity Date
may be extended for a further period of 12 months subject to
the terms and conditions of the Facility Agreement.

The directors of the Company believe the Group will be able
to continue to generate positive cash flows from its
operations. On this basis, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group Is able to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due in the coming 12 months,
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared by the directors of the Company on a going
concern basis,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2023,

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

EEBUR (8)

21

mBLE X (@)

MR2023F 0 A13H » KA A (fEAE
BN RE2EMRBRR (EAEBRA)
R —EmERE ((REHZ]D RN
AEMEEEEMR600000000FE T
(FE R AR 4249,620,0007T)
MEEFEETHERLBREERE
(H#&AI8 = &% 4 E R 800,000,000
Z7t (HHE R K AR 5666160000
TT)) c A HENE A (/R E 2 5
B A@BER:ENEXBHBBEHE
D) EFR—HTHMENRRERE
HARREEA%E) BT R48EAE
H #REINHAAJRIEBE HER
R RAGHE—PER2MEAR -

ARREERE  AEREBEAES
RHKLEPELERSR - HBI - A
RABEERR  AEEEHNRARK
EAEBEITRIR M B &S - it
RAMBHRRBARAESRFEL

meEE%E
BEMBRERBEARAREKHBA
RIEE2023F 12 A3 H IEFEHNIG
]k -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& e MBI RM

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A 31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

92

21

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

0] the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(i) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EIBUR @)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 S BRREESEED
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised REBRAFENGEMBEREAE
standards for the first time for the current year's RIER T B E] RASIE T 2R -

consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BAPBRE REEH
BRI
Amendments to HKASTand  Disclosure of EEGRENEIT SHBEBRE
HKFRS Practice Statement2  Accounting Policies LREERBRS
EREB#RE
WL -HIFN
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of BAGHER B CER
Accounting Estimates ERSEACHIRN
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to BB G ER HE-XFEEMN
Assets and Liabilities EAPLAC PN BEERAGERABED
arising from a Single BEBIR
Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform BAGHER BB TS o 2
— Pillar Two Model Rules EAVEAC PN — X IAER
Other than as explained below regarding the impact of BRI EB G ERBRREFT R
amendments to HKAS 12, the application of these new and R BRMHAEIN  RAFERRBZ
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material EHFI RSB B AU B REEL Y
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions REEXRFERBTFENIMBEERR
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set Rk &,/ SR &N R A R & B B &
outin these consolidated financial statements: ZHBELEEMERNTE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& e MBI RM

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A 31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

94

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception in
HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions.

Prior to the initial application of these amendments,
the Group has applied the initial recognition exception
and did not recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences for
transactions related to leases. The Group has applied
the amendments on temporary differences related to
leases as at 1January 2022, Upon initial application of
these amendments, the Group recognised (i) a
deferred tax asset for all deductible temporary
differences associated with lease liabilities (provided
that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available), and (i) a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences associated with right-of-use
assets at 1 January 2022, with cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the balances of
retained profits and non-controlling interests at that
date. The quantitative impact on the financial
statements is summarised below.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

2. EETBR @
22 SN BEXEBEEETEES (@)

P o Al

(Continued) (a) (&)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial HEMBRARNZE :
position:
Increase
b0
As at As at As at
31December | 3l December 1January
2023 2022 2022
R2023 & 2022 5 2022 4F
128 31H 12 H31H TH1H
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
feE AR®Tr ARBTT ARETT
Assets BE
Deferred tax assets BEETIEE B (i 58,796 51397 45,641
Total non-current assets  IERBI B EHARE 58,796 51397 45,641
Total assets BEHER 58,796 51397 45,641
Liabilities =R
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE () - 106 -
Total non-current liabilittes  JERB) & (4258 - 106 -
Total liabilities BERRE = 106 -
Net assets BEFH 58,796 51201 45,641
Equity ER
Retained profits (included 4R 88 4 7l
in reserves) (Gt AfRE#) 55,304 48156 44233
Equity attributable to RAEIER A
owners of the Company  E{GHEZE 55,304 48156 44,233
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E3E HI#E28 3,492 3135 1408
Total equity ERAAHE 58,796 51291 45,641

Note (i The deferred tax asset and the deferred tax liability arising
from lease contracts of the same subsidiary have been
offset in the statement of financial position for presentation

purposes.

MEE(): RM—ERAEEANEED

BERBEAERBERBEEE
ERBBMORT AT AL - A

HEHZH -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. SETBUE @)
2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 SN BERBEEZSEEE (&)
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a) (Continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

(a) (&)

HERmANEE

Increase
#2hn
For the year ended 31
December
BZ12A3HLEE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR | AREBTT
Income tax credit TSk e 7,505 5650
Profit for the year F AR T 7,505 5650
Attributable to: AT FEG -
Owners of the Company ZA/NCIE/ 2SN 7,148 3923
Non-controlling interests B 357 1727
7,505 5650
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEKEREE 7,505 5650
Attributable to: AT FES -
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ ZS DN 7148 3,923
Non-controlling interests R 357 1727
7,505 5650

The adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 did not have
any material impact on the basic and diluted earnings
per share attributable to owners of the Company, other
comprehensive income and the consolidated
statements of cash flows for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMEE

31 December 2023
B2023F12 A31R

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements better
understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes, including the disclosure of current tax related to
Pillar Two income taxes separately in the periods
when Pillar Two legislation is effective and the
disclosure of known or reasonably estimable
information of their exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted or
substantively enacted but not yet in effect The Group
has applied the amendments and the mandatory
temporary exception retrospectively. Further
disclosures are included in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EFtBR (@)
22 ENBXRREBEEZHEEE (@E)

(b)

BRGERNERERT AL
BRH B E — X7 ZDFRIR
PIER RN E RS ERE
FR HE A R 0 B SO = SRR AR
i E A& HIRE R A S| A8 5 &
BIERISN c ZFETRTNABF
FEERSIARERT UE
P BRERNEREEBLEE
REREEORIE_MER
Rk BRERIAE AL
O RAEEIE—REHAE
BHE B\HIE - AR ZOED
ERRERERARKED M
HEBMEFAESRIHE_MAE
MEER - REECEPER
BRI ARBH EEFEGIN-F
MEZRBEIARNGFAMBRE
iEEQ e
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& e MBI RM

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A 31H

2.

98

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements. The Group intends
to apply these revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they
become effective.

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback!

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current

(the 2020 Amendments’)#

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with

HKAS T Covenants (the 2022
Amendments’)#
Amendments to Supplier Finance Arrangements!

HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability?
HKAS 21

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1January 2024

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1January 2025
s No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments,

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So
far, the Group considers that these revised HKFRSs may
result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of
operations and financial position.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR

EZitBR (@)
23 EEMGENKRERNETEBMBE

& %A
AEBEARGEMBHRERP HARER
&R T 51 2 28 A 1B 0 R AR AV R B AT
FRMBGHREER - ER - NEE
BRNZERETEEMBHRELER L
R T IAREA o

EEURREEDN REABREBLLNARA
FORRBEST ErECHZEENE
EAIEBFERTAR  FEE:

EEUBREER ESRAEZAEARE
RGN

EiE g & BESEARBRIERE
ERbACHI ([2020 F BT A )

BRI ER WHERENERDAR
FIREF R (T2022FB7TA )

RS EANETR HEFRERHE
REBHERE
EBE TR BITR

EEEER B ARG
ENREFTA

! 2024 F1A1B Sk z % F 2 F E B[

E301
2 M2025F1 A1 2 B IR 2 FE B
EX

: i) A 8 E 58 1B AR AR B ER - MERT (R ER AR

‘ R 2020 B RT AR R 2022 S ERT A K7
2 FERBESH WHHENEH —
EAANGEFIRESEE RN EHE
AT HR) BAERT - AEARRBE A FREF —
B mAEwTETE

AEBERZELET BBV BRE
EARRERROZEEITHE -
2SRt AEERR  ZFERIEFT
RV HRELENATESEHEFTR
REH  ETKARHARENESE
XENPBANBRERTE



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 EESFHE
Investments in associates and joint ventures REBERATAREELENRE

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is nat control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing contral.

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint venture
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associates or joint
ventures, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interestin joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint contral of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing contral.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;

its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to the
Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Business combinations and goodwill EREHREE

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input
and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

102

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group will perform its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units,

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating unitg) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Fair value measurement DNREEZFE

The Group measures its investment properties, asset held
for sale, other financial assets and other financial liabilities at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liablility is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic bestinterest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

104

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Levell — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level2 —  based on valuation technigues for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for non-financial asset is required (other
than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets and
investment properties), the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) FEeREERE (&)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unitif it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

106

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i
(i
i)

or

has control or joint control of the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()

(i)

(il

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

EEBUR (8)
24 EESHHE#®)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis and the
units of production basis to write off the cost of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Land and buildings
Plant and machinery

Not depreciated

2.0% to 50%

9.5% to 20.0% or units of
production basis

Furniture, fixtures and 9.5% to 32.3%
office equipment
Vehicles 9.5% to 32.3%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the period the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

Far a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a
property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the
date of change in use.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
MR2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EIBUR @)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESTEHEX#E
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale IRBEERFEHEZHEAR

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of such assets or disposal groups
and its sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities
of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are reclassified
as held for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a
non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for
sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
ateach financial year end,

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 5 years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& e MBI RM

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31R

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

10

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

Patents and proprietary technologies

Purchased patents and proprietary technologies acquired
are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 20 years.

Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights
Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights
with indefinite useful lives acquired are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are not amortised. The useful life
of such an asset should be reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset If they do not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite should be
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The Group is required to test an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing its
recoverable amount with its carrying amount (a) annually,
and (b) whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired.

Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights
with useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 5 to 30 years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship are stated at cost less any
impairmentloss and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful life of 10 years,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. The cost of a right-of-use asset also includes
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Leasehold land 10 to 50 years
Plants and buildings 1to 25 years
Vehicles Tto 5years
Other equipment 1to5years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, and subsequently measured
at fair value, in accordance with the Group's policy for
‘Investment properties”,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& e MBI RM

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31R

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

12

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do notdepend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liablilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of plants and
buildings (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
Group as a lessor AEEERHHAA

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each compaonent on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
garned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is
classified as a finance lease or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition exemption,
the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31R

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

14

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI), and fair
value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’'s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade and bills
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade and bills
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for "Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued) RERHMWEMEE (8)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at FVTOCI are held
within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at FVTPL,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive
income is recycled to profit or loss.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

16

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at FVTOCI when they meet the definition of
equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
and are not held for trading. The classification is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated at
FVTOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
instruments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at FVTOCI. Dividends on the equity instruments are
also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Derecoghnition of financial assets RIEREHEE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e, removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial pasition) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability,
The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

CREE(RNER eMEEN—
Mok —HBEUEREEN—2)
TEENATIBERK LR (IR
SENEEPBEARREMER)

BEERBRRSRENEND
YT

AEECEZREAEERRR
TERENENHEAERENE
BIRFELESRNERT KA
WBRREREZHXNTE=
THEE RQAEEEEE
ZEEMBAE D R K DR
3K (D) A% 5 [ 3f 48 88 5 S IR B %
BENBAEBD AR K& E K-
BEEREZEEIEHIHE -

EAKECEREAEERIR SR
ENRNACFI L ERELH ARaqf
EEEREBEZEEHRERNAR LM
HUAREREE EAKELEEE
HREZEENBAID AR K E R
R EEEZ BRI AKE
UAREEFE2RZERREEER
EEZEEE -HEHBAT  AEEN
EREEAE CEREEREREA
BNERRASECRENENRE
ERERE -

NEEREEERDANFESER
BERGEEEANEEAEREZRE
ENRENERERCEHNREER

=

5z °

Annual Report 2023
e ¢ 17
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31R

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

18

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses ('ECLS') for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL,
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. The Group considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EFTEUR (&)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EEETEE @
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) cRMEERME(E)
General approach (Continued) —m % ()

For debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low credit risk
simplification. At each reporting date, the Group evaluates
whether the debt instruments are considered to have low
credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that
evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit ratings
of the debt instruments. Debt instruments graded in the top
investment categories are considered to be low credit risk
investments. It is the Group's policy to measure ECLs on
such instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of debt
instruments since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECL The Group uses the ratings from credit
rating agencies both to determine whether the debt
instruments have significantly increased in credit risk and to
estimate ECLs.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows,

Debt instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade and bills
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
atan amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31R

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

120

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do
not contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade and bills receivables that contain a significant
financing companent, the Group chooses as its accounting
policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs
with policies as described above,

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings, payables,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings, lease liabilities and other
financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss does notinclude any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
FVTPL are designated at the date of initial recognition and
only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and bills
payables, other payables and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and bills payables, other
payables, and interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(‘EIR") method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in profit or loss.
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31R

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

122

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at FVTPL
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Treasury shares EFR G

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value,

Manufacturing and trading inventories

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Property development

Cost comprises land costs, construction costs, borrowing
costs, professional fees and other costs directly attributable
to such properties incurred during the development period.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within
three months that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value and held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

124

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for
example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net
of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type
warranties granted by the Group are initially recognised
based on sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate. The warranty-related cost is revised annually.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability methaod, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except
that deferred tax is not recognised for the Pillar Two income
taxes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Income tax 8%
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

126

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that itis probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Income tax (Continued) g s (&)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed,
Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to profit or
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

128

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedientin HKFRS15.

(a)  Saleof goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
pointin time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction of
the service, because the Group's performance creates
or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the
actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the construction services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group
seeks to collect from the customers as
reimbursement of costs and margins for scope of
works not included in the ariginal construction
contract. Claims are accounted for as variable
consideration and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The
Group uses the expected value methaod to estimate
the amounts of claims because this method best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to which
the Group will be entitled.

Provision of sewage, hazardous waste treatment and
related environmental protection services

Revenue from the provision of sewage, hazardous
waste treatment and related environmental protection
services is recognised when the relevant services
have been rendered.

Provision of logistics and other related services
Revenue from the provision of logistics and other
related services is recognised over time, using an
output method to measure progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of direct measurements of the value of the
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group's performance in transferring
control of services.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A 31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

130

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources
Income from financial services including:

() handling fee income from factoring services and
supply-chain financing services which is recognised
when the relevant services have been rendered;

(i) finance lease income which is recognised over the
period of lease, as further explained in the accounting
policy ‘Leases” above; and

(i) interest income which is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method as explained
below.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Otherincome

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Contract assets EHEE

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the contract terms, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment,
details of which are included in the accounting palicies for
impairment of financial assets. They are reclassified to trade
receivables when the right to the consideration becomes
unconditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services,
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (ie, transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the
Group’'s employees participate in various defined
contribution plans and state-management retirement
benefit plans in the countries in which the Group operates.
Payments to these plans, where the Group's obligations
under them are equivalent to a defined contribution plan,
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Housing benefits, medical insurances and other social
insurances

PRC employees of the Group are entitled to participate in
various government-supervised housing funds, medical
insurances and other social insurance plans. The Group
contributes to these funds based on certain percentages of
the salaries of these employees on a monthly basis. The
Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contribution payable in each period. Contributions to the
housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances are expensed as incurred.
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31R

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

132

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which
requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund. The benefits are unfunded. The cost of
providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit actuarial
valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension
plans, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability) and the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in
the consolidated statement of financial position with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through
other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the
earlier of:

the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation under "Cost of sales” and "Administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss by
function:

service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and

non-routine settlements; and

netinterest expense or income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Employee benefits (Continued) EEREF (4)
Share-based payments KR REEEZ T

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share
award scheme. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for equity
instruments (‘equity-settled transactions’).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest The charge or credit to profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31R

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

134

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been madified, if the ariginal terms of the award are met
In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification
that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, itis treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are
not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a madification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, ie, assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
barrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from
equity when they are declared and approved by the
Company's shareholders in general meetings. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are
declared and approved, and no longer at the discretion of
the Company.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHEER®@®
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE#®)
Foreign currencies Shitg

The Company's functional currency is Hong Kong dollars
while the Company’'s presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements is Renminbi. In preparing
the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for.

exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A 31H

2.

136

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into Renminbi using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of the
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMEE

31 December 2023
MR2023F12 A31H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

JUDGEMENTS

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on certain
profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated and
distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and such temporary differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
considered to be repatriated and distributed by way of dividends,
the deferred income tax charge and deferred income tax liability
wauld have increased by the same amount of approximately
RMB388,914,000 (2022: RMB279,496,000).

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less than
a majority of voting rights

The Group considers that it controls WIIK Public Company Limited
even though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights. This is
because the Group is the single largest shareholder of WIIK Public
Company Limited with a 47.75% equity interest. The remaining
5225% of the equity interest in WIIK Public Company Limited are
dispersedly held by many other shareholders. Since the date of
acquisition, there has been no history of the other shareholders
collaborating to exercise their votes collectively or to outvote the
Group.

The Group considers that it controls EDA Group Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as EDA Cloud Technology Holdings Limited) (‘EDA
Cayman’) even though it owns 38.90% of equity interest in EDA
Cayman, which is less than 50% of the voting rights. This is
because the Group has signed acting in concert deed with certain
shareholders and they agreed to act in concert with the Group.
Therefore, the Group maintains the voting right percentage
sufficient to achieve simple majority in the general meetings and
pass ordinary resolutions in arder to direct EDA Cayman’s relevant
activities at its own discretion. There are no other potential voting
rights that could compromise the Group's control over EDA
Cayman.

Significantinfluence over Keda Industrial Group Co., Ltd.
(“Keda")

The Group considers that it can exercise significant influence over
Keda because the Group is the second largest shareholder of
Keda and the remaining shares of Keda are dispersedly held by
many other shareholders. The Group also has a representative at
Keda's board of directors. Therefore, the Group accounted for the
investmentin Keda as an associate of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill, brand name and trademark and
operating concession rights

The Group determines whether goodwill, brand name and
trademark and operating concession rights with indefinite useful
lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goadwill, brand name and trademark and operating
concession rights are allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimation of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amounts of goodwill, brand name and trademark and operating
concession rights were RMB540,085,000 (2022: RMB541,878,000),
RMBO90,261,000 (2022: RMB91,072,000) and RMBT,615,000 (2022:
RMBT1,615,000), respectively. Further details are disclosed in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Provision of ECLs for contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables

The Group reviews the credit risk in relation to contract assets,
trade and bills receivables, other receivables and loan receivables,
For balances in relation to individual customers which bear
specific credit risk depending on the repayment history, financial
position and other external or internal information, management
estimates the amounts recoverable from the financial assets
taking into account any credit enhancement held by the Group
and recognise provision against the difference between the gross
balance and the amount recoverable.

Apart from the balances in relation to individual customers which
bear specific credit risk, the Group uses a provision matrix to
calculate ECLs for other contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables. The provision
rates are based on the invoice date for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage
by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECLs for contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables
(Continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's histarical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (ie,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the carrelation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer's actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's contract assets, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables and loan receivables is disclosed in notes 24, 25, 26
and 20 to the consalidated financial statements, respectively.

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories

The Group reviews the ageing analysis of its inventories at the end
of each reporting period, and makes pravision for obsolete and
slow maving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for use or sale. Management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions, At the end of the reporting period, an
accumulated provision for obsolescence of RMB260,098,000
(2022: RMB241,650,000) has been recognised for inventories.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for properties in the same location and condition and
subject to similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of
such information, management determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) independent valuations; (i) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition and location
(or subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences; (iii) recent prices of similar properties in
less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of transactions that
occurred at those prices; and (iv) discounted cash flow projections,
based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts, and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current market rates for
similar properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

Details of the judgement and assumptions invalved in
determining the fair value of the Group's investment properties
have been disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate ('1BR’)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay’,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary's functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
(such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. FESBEH

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of AEEFENERERFPERMREER
building materials and home improvement products; sale of 58 M HR A BT AR R R A5 AE R A0 B B R
products and provision of services relating to new energy BoREEERZEIR REIBRLA
business; the provision of renovation and installation works, i AEE RS - W R E M ABRA RS - & &b
environmental engineering and other related services, logistics REGMYEEE R EMABARE - st E 2
and other related services, financial services and property rental BEmME ASENEBREBEEPOME
and other related services. For management purposes, the MAKMESE  BEEREMEMSER
Group's businesses are organised by geographical areas based TS B o FAN - HREBITEEND
on the location of the customers and assets are attributable to the BzBAREESENDHLERZINAR
geographical unit based on the location of the assets. During the AEEBEREA2HDE2HA - F—F
year, the Group changed its identification of reportable segments EHHEHEKEIELBRAR - A&
as the revised basis of segment identification provides a more BEUAT=EFERCEHE

appropriate presentation of the segment information. Prior year
segment information is restated for comparative purpaose. The
Group has three reportable segments as follows:

() Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi () ZErk- PREERE - BERitkERE
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian WMEE - REENEEE

Province and Hainan Province;

(i) Other than Southern China, including regions in China other (i) ZFEELASN - B35 BIRREE R LA S 3
than Southern China; and (A
(i) Outside China. (i) AREIIEIN o
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax
except that interest income, changes in fair value of investment
properties, changes in fair value of financial instruments at FVTPL,
changes in fair value of other financial liabilities, gain on early
repayment of convertible loans, investment income, gain on
disposal of subsidiaries, gain from a bargain purchase, gain on
termination of right-of-use assets, gain on disposal of right-of-use
assets, gain from debt restructuring with customers, loss on
disposal of associates, exchange differences, non-lease-related
finance costs, share of results of associates and joint ventures
and other unallocated income and expenses are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude interests in associates, interests in joint
ventures, other financial assets, deferred tax assets, cash and
bank deposits, asset held for sale and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived from its
operations in China and outside China.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no revenue
from transactions with a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group's total revenue.
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M2023F12 A31A

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. =73 EBER (&)

BZE2023F12A3ALFENKE
o EE R

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Southern Other than Outside
China Southern China China Eliminations Consolidated
3] 3P0 HEHI 5 8 sy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMT R AREFT ARBT T ARETF T ARBFT
Segment revenue: BB
Sale of goods relating to building HERRNFEEB
materials and home improvement business HENE R 12,496,150 12,788,513 1,231,454 - 26,516,117
Sale of goods and services income relating to Eﬁi%ﬁﬁu REBIREL
new energy business RHERRERE 200,146 805,683 51,492 - 1,057,321
Contract revenue from renovation % W&;zi%ﬁi
and installation works BHMA 981,264 417,769 73,797 - 1,472,830
Income from environmental iat‘%lﬁ&ﬁﬂ*ﬁ@ﬁ
engineering and other related services PRz 17,31 179,425 89,855 - 386,591
Logistics and other related services Wi R E o8 R S 230,328 4,773 968,888 - 1,240,989
Financial service income SRRBNE 37,473 2,393 - - 39,866
Property rental and other related services NEREREMAERS 16,385 818 137,372 - 154,575
Revenue from external customers SEPEFBA 14,079,057 14,236,574 2,552,858 - 30,868,289
Intersegment revenue AERHBA 1,467,779 1,248,929 591,631 (3,308,339) -
Total et 15,546,836 15,485,303 3,144,489 (3,308,339) 30,868,289
Segment results: DEMER 3,819,959 3,600,939 689,192 10,924 8,121,014
Reconciliations: sk
Interestincome Al 8mE 208,746
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties BRENEDABEZHFR 10,314
Gain on fair value changes of AR BEFAMARNERTAN
financial Instruments at FVTPL AAEEZHNE 84,998
Gain on fair value changes of other financial liabllities HthemaBELABEEZDNE 5,230
Investment income BAENE 19,179
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBRRMERE 9,708
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets B ERREEMERR 1,953
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HERBEEEFEH 10,944
Gain from debt restructuring with customers EFEHEEMENT 33,487
Exchange loss 5 iR (1770)
Finance costs (other than interest on lease liabilities) EﬂﬁﬁﬂS (REREF BRI (1,045,410)
Share of results of associates HEBENTEE 323,905
Share of results of joint ventures AMEEE ﬁ%%iﬁ 3,667
Unallocated income and expenses APERRERAR (5,121,796)
Profit before tax BB AR R 2,664,169
Segment assets: AHEE: 27,436,368 8,030,959 10,165,350 - 45,632,677
Reconciliations: R
Interestsin associates RS DRI R R 4,864,524
Interests in joint ventures RedhimiEs 26,658
Qther financiel assets HihemaE 1,962,256
Deferred tax assets ERBEAE 661,170
Cash and bank deposits Be RFTFER 6,552,984
Assetheld for sale RELEEE 331,001
Total assets BEAR 60,031,270
Other segment information: Hip D BEH
Write-down of inventories to net realisable valug, net WRAFEZI2REETFE 27,535 6,422 (23,244) - 10,713
Depreciation and amortisation MERBH 1,261,782 396,976 176,846 - 1,835,604
Impairment of loan receivables, net BB ORI E R 1516 - - - 1516
Impairment of contract assets, net ANEERETHE 96,707 - (147) - 96,560
Impairment of trade and bills receivables, net BORBFARERREFH 550,946 23,021 5,708 - 579,675
Impairment of prepayments, net BRRERERR 2,514 - (607) - 1907
Impairment of other receivables, net HihERFERERE 177,300 4 2,491 - 179,795
Capital expenditure* BEARL 4,790,135 610,889 598,413 - 5,999,437
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, ~ # >§$Eﬁ§@%ﬁ§%¥ BERRE CRAEEE - K
right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets. No BMEREMELEE - IEAZXB A HMELSERR
addition was resulted from business combination. B
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R ——— soe o] 1 pm
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. EZ93EE (&)
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR BE2022F512A31BLFENREE
3 A
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 o EER
Segment revenue:
Sale of goods relating to building materials and home
improvement business 13,967,364 12309966 1267342 27544672
Sale of goods and services income relating to
new energy business 378104 208842 2432 - 589,378
Contract revenue from renovation and installation works 934616 382294 42286 - 1359196
Income from environmental BREIRREMIAR
engineering and ather related services PRz 146650 153303 48373 - 348,326
Logistics and other related senvices %ﬁ&ﬁlﬁﬂﬁ BT 97789 80325 515015 - 693129
Financial service income Yeza 64129 18,855 - - 82984
Property rental and other related services %%fﬁﬁ&/ﬁﬁﬂﬁ BR% 14363 455 134708 - 149526
Revenue from external customers IPEFRA 15603015 13154040 201056 - 3076221
Intersegment revenue AERERA 1255062 1281606 500813 (3136,481) -
Total st 16,858,077 14435646 2609969 (3136481 3076221
Segment results: ﬁ%#ﬁ 4368143 3384292 503497 14509) 8241423
Reconciliations:
Interestincome ﬂ 174,867
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties hﬁ%% AR EEZDFE 120936
Loss on fair value changes of ;LF%*A}EEE']%HEIEE']
financial instruments at FVTPL NEEZDER (283759)
Gain on fair value changes of other financial liabilities /Jﬂﬁmﬂﬁfz ABEEZHHE 50562
Gain on early repayment of convertible loans REEBATRREHAH 3862
Investment income ®E s 22374
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBDA MG 8510
Gain from a bargain purchase AERERENE 30
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets 2 PREEEREHE 245
Loss on disposal of associates HEBREAREE (30649)
Exchange gain 0 5 %28 40018
Finance costs (other than interest on lease liabilities) yaﬂéﬁﬁw fHE Efiﬂ SRIN) (652001)
Share of results of associates AEBEDRRE 71094
Share of result of a joint venture ?NE MaBpELEE 1390
Unallocated income and expenses AHERERRX (4589278)
Profit before tax FRBEATER 3190424
Segment assets: PHEE 27042591 8438496 0,592,697 - 45073784
Reconciliations: pafi
Interests in associates REE QRN ER 2696897
Interest in a joint venture R—REE PR ER 14191
Other financial assets HthemAE 3285104
Deferred tax assets restated) ELHIEEE (KE) 572255
Cash and bank deposits ReRETER 7361770
Total assets (restated) EEAE(KE) 59,004,001
Other segment information: Hit D BEH
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value, net HRFEZMERFEFR 30024 6214 8748 - 45886
Depreciation and amortisation TELBH 1419757 330430 163032 - 191419
Impairment of other intangible assets HEtnEmpAERE 66,875 - - - 66,875
Reversal of impairment of loan receivables, net e A R E R EEE (156,104) - - - (156,104)
Impairment of long-term loan receivables REEMIETORE 50,000 - - - 50000
Reversal of impairment of contract assets, net ANEEFEROEE (3207) - - - (3207)
Impairment of trade and bills receivables, net EHEBNERRBREFE 470924 51363 24769 - 547056
Impairment of prepayments, net ANRARERE 1945 - - - 1945
Impairment of other receivables, net HEthRBEREFE 24056 - 3747 - 27803
Capital expenditure® EREx 5035083 623631 18375 - 4987089
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, # BAREZBEIENE BELRSRE FHREE
right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets, among E REMERHEMEREE  HEThOERES
which the additions resulted from business combination amounted to AHMELNTE AARK 236840007 °
RMB23,684,000.
China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. g~ EHab - Wk R Fla
GAINS
REVENUE A
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from NTHEINAEEBREREPELHNHBADTF
contracts with customers and the reconciliation of the revenue EREEFAHOMNKRASRSZBERFTIEE
from contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the SERERE R ¢

segmentinformation:
By revenue nature: BURA L 25

2023
Goods
transferred Services C
atapoint transferred ata point
intime  overtime Total intime ( ne Total

RE-BE HBREED RE—BE BEEER

EENHER HINERK #it WENER @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 B00O 3 RMB00O

AR®TRE AR¥TRT AR®TR ARSTI g

Revenue from contracts with REBFEHN
customers: WA

Sale of goods relating to building HERRMRE
materials and home improvement %185/

business A 26,516,117 = 26,516,117 27544672 - 27544672
Sale of goods and servicesincome  E2¥T ALTR £ HERA A
relating to new energy business EmHE RRBY R 1,041,413 15,908 1,057,321 566244 23134 589378
Contractrevenue fromrenovation  EBRZETR
and installation works CLLON - 1472830 1,472,830 - 1350196 1350196
Income from environmental BREIRREM
engineering and other related HER®
services Wz = 386,591 386,591 - 348,326 348,326
Logistics and other related services ¥ R E A A8 RS - 1,240,989 1,240,989 - 69329 69329
27,557,530 3,116,318 30,673,848 2810,916 2,423,785 30,534,701
Financial service income SRRBRS 39,866 82,084
Property rental and other related MEMRE R EMIER
services R#% 154,575 149,526
30,868,289 30,767,201
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e

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. U - HabUgA - iz R FIEE (@)
GAINS (Continued)
REVENUE (Continued) WA ()
By geographical locations: BB EE D

2023

Goods
transferred Services
atapoint transferred

intime over time Total i € Total
RE-BH HEREER
BENER BENERB @t
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%Tr AR¥Tx

Revenue from contracts RERFAHH
with customers: KA
China H 26,274,585 1,983,777 28,258,362 26,841142 18181 28,659,253
QOutside China LR S 1,282,945 1,132,541 2,415,486 1269774 605,674 1875448
27,557,530 3,116,318 30,673,848 28110916 2423785 30,534,701
Financial service income SRRB KR 39,866 82084
Property rental and other MEREREM
related services HERS 154,575 149526
30,868,289 3076721
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in TRIVRR AR E RAANRERN®E R
the current reporting period that were included in the contract ABHBaBEERRBERABBOETMER
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised A

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2023
RMB’'000
AR¥T T
Revenue recognised that was included in R E BRI AE L
contract liabilities at the beginning of the BENEER
reporting period: N
Sale of goods HEEm 3,337,562 3089455
Contract revenue from renovation and RERRETR
installation works aHBA 39,841 55310
Income from environmental engineering and 383 T2 & H 18RS
other related services PR 75 W &= - 147
Logistics and other related services Wim K E At 48 R AR 7% 10,478 -

3,387,881 3,144,912
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMEE

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND
GAINS (Continued)

REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is generally due within 30 to 360 days from delivery
or is settled on an advance receipt basis depending on the market
conditions, market tactics and relationships with the customers.

Renovation, installation and engineering services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the
date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is retained by
customers until the end of the retention period as the Group’s
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the satisfaction
of the service quality by the customers over a certain period as
stipulated in the contracts,

Logistics and other related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days upon
completion of services or is settled on an advance receipt basis
depending on the relationships with the customers.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

WA~ EABUIA - W Es R Bl 25 ()

WA ()

BHEE
FRASEROEENERBMINT

#HE Han

SERRERBETEE NHR—RER
ER30EICORNENH - HRFHR -
LR R ERPOARRERD EE -
K& wEKRTERYE

B #BAEBEIR ARG M BERS R HERE B 1T
BENR-—RREEARIORAZNE - TP
RE-EBOHLNNREERBHER
T F T 7 B2 18 2 R A AR A R0 4 R AR F 0
EPRANMREN —BREHANERBESR

RNMBRTTAIEE °

Y7 R Bt 16 68 AR 75
BHOBREREZRHERGOSHERRET
B R — R IRTS TR IL30 XA B HIRAR
FREFPHBEREAKRTAEE -

RBERR - DEEHTEBOEECRETT
HED KRBT MR ZEENSBAOT

2023
RMB’000

2022
RMB000
ARBTIT

AR®TR

Amounts expected to be recognised as B BR S T SR B M AR
revenue: B
Not more than 1year ENES 545,706 1192,544
Over 1year 1+ 252,444 219,791
798,150 1412,335

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised
over one year relate to renovation, installation and engineering
services. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations are expected to be
recognised not more than one year. The amounts disclosed
above do not include variable consideration which is constrained.

DEEEHAEN —FUALBRORTRELY
EENXZERNEBINEE TER
IERE -FABEEMOEEHRTREOEME
MXZERNEBERRABETZ N —F§
RoNEHRENSRITBEIORNATE
RAE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA - HiU - drzs & FZE ()
GAINS (Continued)
OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND GAINS H A - s R Fl &
2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 3 ARBTRT  ARETE
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 95,902 95322
Interest income from other loan receivables i & U 2 ZHY ) 2 0k 25 24,881 12,080
Interest income from other financial assets  E & @& E M F) B Uk 25 1,787 32362
Interest income from long-term lease = HATH & e W kIR
receivables COR RN 86,176 3503
Total interest income A B =458 208,746 174,867
Government grants and subsidies IR 48 B K il B 209,978 15,070
Gain on fair value changes of investment  REWE QAR BEEZS
properties ks 14 10,314 120,936
Gain on fair value changes of RARBEFABEN
financial instruments PMIANAAEE
at FVTPL bk 84,998 -
Gain on fair value changes of other HihemBBEIAEE
financial liabilities DE = 5,230 59,552
Gain on early repayment of convertible loans 32 78 12 a] #i% & FF %5 - 3,862
Investmentincome 1 & Wax 19,179 22,374
Gain on disposal of items of other intangible & H AR EEFMPE -
assets and property, plantand equipment & & & &8 B B 25 - 16,976
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRRMENER 9,708 8,510
Gain from a bargain purchase HEBERERENE - 30
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets  #R |- F & E AT FI%5 13C 1,953 2145
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HERRREEEMSH &= 13C 10,944 -
Gain from debt restructuring with customers & F &1 E 4TS FIzE 33,487 -
Rental income HE W= 9,901 17516
Exchange gain M 5N & = 40,018
Others Hith 113,152 86,598
717,590 668,454
Government grants and subsidies mainly represent funding XS 78 B) I 4 Bh = B 15 BT A RE 32 LA
received from government authorities to support certain of the XRAEEETHEZINES  TEE
Group's research and development activities, There are no fa] B2 52 55 48 B S #70 Bh B B B0 ARG ARG 1 S
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants and HHEBER -
subsidies.

148 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RIERAE
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR FIT

ARB T

Interest expenses on bank and other loans BT REMERNF SR 1,159,132 700,841
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaBENFBEMAX 67,351 28,993
1,226,483 729,834

Less: Interest capitalised W B E m3,722) (48,750)
1,112,761 681,084

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7.

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

B Bt A i F)

AEBEORBADE RN DERR GEA) T
P B IRIRER

Cost of inventories sold relating to
building materials and home
improvement business

Cost of goods and services relating
to new energy business

Direct cost of renovation and
installation works

e ENEE Yl kY
BEERFE
DN
EF e R R RENE MK
BR#5 B A
RighEKTITREER
DN

Direct cost of environmental engineering 383 T12 & & th 1878 AR 75

and other related services
Direct cost of logistics and other
related services
Direct cost of financial services
Direct cost of property rental and
other related services
Write-down of inventories
to net realisable value, net

Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets

Total depreciation and amortisation

Lease payments notincluded in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Auditor's remuneration

Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ remuneration (note 8)):

Wages and salaries

Pension scheme contributions (note)

Staff welfare and other expenses

Equity-settled share option expense

Service costincluded in defined
benefit plan

BEMAA

Whim K ELAd AR R AR 75
BHEMRA

T BRAR T B AN

YMEBE R HEER RS
BHEMKA

WoRFEZ R #RFE
HEE

WME - BB MR

e

EREEENE

Hfth & B B

TEREHAR

TEREGCEHERENETR
B E 5K

BB =

BRERANAX (BEEEHH
(FzE8)) -
TERFE
RRE T IR (P FE)
B THRHMEEAMAX
VAR A AN 3R 2 B8 B A 9 2
T ASE 18 A ET ElEY
ARG AR

12
13A
15B

13C

38

32

2023 2022
RMB'000 RMB000
AR¥T ARBT T
19,156,399 20033849
967,265 51,322
1,260,023 1052753
262,940 229,760
1,011,486 592,545
1,831 2,681
66,618 56,092
10,713 45,886
1,568,024 1664727
218,637 185212
48,943 64180
1,835,604 1914719
37,472 24,824
9,797 7,849
2,136,297 2,074,379
216,066 192,363
87,223 93705

- 47,850

851 774
2,440,437 2,409,071
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 7. KRBiAIRF (@)
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T ARBTT
Research and development costs 3% B A 1,237,708 1,219,208
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of other & H A R & E R -
intangible assets and property, = K 2 TE B 8
plant and equipment BB (Fla) 17,981 (16,976)
Changes in fair value of investment REMELAEBE
properties ) 14 (10,314) (120,936)
Loss on disposal of associates e =R REE - 30,649
(Gain)/loss on fair value changes BRAABEFABGZNESHIA
of financial instruments at FVTPL MARBEZE (M) BB (84,998) 283,759
Gain on fair value changes of other HemBaBEanEE
financial liabilities BHF = (5,230) (59,552)
Gain on early repayment of convertible 2R (EE AR E R
loans Pk - (3862)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B R RIFTS Al e (9,708) (85510)
Gain from a bargain purchase EAE PR IE - (30)
Gain on termination of right-of-use RILEREEEMRS
assets Ik 13C (1,953) (2145)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets R EFREEEMB S 13C (10,944) -
Gain from debt restructuring with EPEBEAMS
customers Mz (33,487) -
Impairment of interest in associates REE R RS RE 8,850 -
Impairment of other intangible assets ~ H At £ 2 & & Bl fE 158 - 66,875
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) JE W A8 FORE,
of loan receivables, net CRERD) F5 1,516 (156,104)
Impairment of long-term loan B FE B R
receivables VERED - 50,000
Impairment/(reversal of impairment)  &#HEERME,
of contract assets, net CRERD) F58 24 96,560 (3.207)
Impairment of trade and bills B 5 WK R EERE
receivables, net HEE 25 579,675 547,056
Impairment of prepayments, net T ROREF 5 1,907 1,945
Impairment of other receivables, net H At & R IE R (B F 8 179,795 27803
Foreign exchange differences, net MW ZERFH 1,770 (40,018)
Note: There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the T 3T« AN SR B W A4 R IR X T4 A 008 R SR BURUVE

employer to reduce the existing level of contributions (2022: Nil). BAEEZKE (20224F : &) -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATIONANDFIVEHIGHEST 8. EEFHRAZREHINES

P o Al

PAID EMPLOYEES

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (A) E=HM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to RBE A LR R R EE R RHRDI#
the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies BNFANESHMEHTIWT -

Ordinance, is as follows:

2023 2022

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR T | AR®ETT

Fees we 24,259 24,625
Other emoluments: B -

Salaries, allowances and benefitsinkind ¥4 « 2RI R EWMEF| 2,348 2238

Performance related bonuses B EE - -

Pension scheme contributions RIRSETEIfHE K 232 233

2,580 2471

26,839 27,096
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& e MBI RM

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A 31H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONANDFIVEHIGHEST 8. EEFIRAZEREFINES @)
PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEHFHM @
The remuneration of each of the directors is set out below: ZEEMEMNEN DT

Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
inkind bonus contributions Total

e 2R BhE
e REWEN  AXRE:  HEER £
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR%®T:R

Executive directors: TES:
Mr.Wong Luen Hel EHELE 2,341 - - 16 2,357
Mr. Zuo Manlun TmfmitE 5,407 - - 36 5,443
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping EESRL 2,341 - - 16 2,357
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BERELE 2,341 - - 32 2,373
Mr.Kong Zhaocong K& 2,341 - - 32 2,373
Mr.Chen Guonan REREEE 2,341 - - 7 2,358
Dr. Lin Shaoquan b 2E+ - 2,348 - 15 2,363
Mr. Huang Guirong BEERRAE 2,341 - - 34 2,375
Mr.Luo Jianfeng BRELE 2,341 - - 16 2,357
Mr. Lin Dewei® MHiEE KA 845 - - 18 863
22,639 2,348 = 232 25,219
Independent non-executive B FEHT
directors: Es:
Mr.Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan®  EEIRF £ 7 - - - 7
MsLan Fang® WEaLe 7 - - - 7
Dr. Tao Zhigang BEREL 324 - - - 324
Mr. Cheng Dickson Mzt 324 - - - 324
Ms, Lu Jiandong RREELT 324 - - - 324
Ms. Lee Vanessa® ZEBrL 207 - - - 207
Dr. Hong Ruijiang® IR0 207 - - - 207
1,620 - - - 1620
24,259 2,348 - 232 26,839
Note: e -
(@) Retired as director with effect from 10 May 2023 (@) B20234F5 A10 BB T & HBS
(b) Appointed as director with effect from 10 May 2023 (b) H2023F5 A0 B REZTRES
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST

PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued)

Fees

ik
RMB00O
ARBTT

8. EEHNRAZRSHMES (&)

(A) EEHFM @

AR 5% BINE
BRI FEEA

Executive directors:  H{TES:
Mr.Wong Luen Hei BMELE 2234 - - - 15 2249
Mr. Zuo Manlun TRmEE 5208 - - - 35 5243
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping EENnt 2234 - - - 15 2249
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BERELE 2234 - - - 30 2264
Mr.Kong Zhaocong KRS & 2234 - - - 30 2264
Mr.Chen Guonan RER L 2234 - - - 30 2264
Dr. Lin Shaoquan P 2ET - 2238 - - 15 2253
Mr. Huang Guirong HEKRE 2234 - - - 33 2267
Mr.Luo Jianfeng BEERE 2234 - - - 15 2249
Mr. Lin Dewei WEEEE 2234 - - - 15 2249
23,080 2238 - - 233 2555
Independent BYFHT
non-executive EE:
directors:
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, TERLE
Jonathan 309 - - - - 309
Ms,Lan Fang (R 309 - - - - 309
Dr. Tao Zhigang MERIEL 309 - - - - 309
Mr. Cheng Dickson L abrS s 309 - - - - 309
Ms, Lu Jiandong RERZL 309 - - - - 309
1545 - - - - 1545
24825 2238 - - 233 27,096

No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument and
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2022

Nil).

MEBEEENRXFAEREEMNME -
1 AN 5% [ 7T 4 /5 D BE AR SR [ s 1
BN EE RS QBB EENRE

EXMEAME -

FAMBENRENBILFATES

B E E B S (2022 4F ¢ ) o

Annual Report 2023
FH

153
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e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

154

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(B) FIVEHIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The Group's five highest paid employees during the year
were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these
directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above.

The five highest paid employees in 2022 included two
directors and three non-directors and non-chief executive
employees.

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

8. EEFNRAZERSIHMNES (&)

(B) EEBEHFMES
FR AEELEESHMERDS
B EHBFFBEEHN EXESM) °

R202F » A HEa T NEEBEM
FEERZHRTIIFEERITHRAEAHD
E8 -

HHNFTOEENIFESRIFTH
BENEESHMEEHRENT

Number of employees

BEHE

2023

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T & 3,500,000 % T - 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7L ZE 7,500,000 7T - 1
HK$18,000,001 to HK$18,500,000 18,000,001 7T 218,500,000 # 7T - 1

= 3
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FAEHEX
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%STR | ARBTE
(Restated)
($&&E3)
Current tax BV ER %5 18
PRC G 747,002 673,647
Hong Kong B 4,151 3,396
Other jurisdictions EA B AR 62,279 44,399
813,432 721,942
(Over)/under provision in prior years BAEFECBE),/ T REE
PRC H (41,252) (34,863)
Hong Kong B (2,347) 896
Other jurisdictions Hfb el kR 64 -
(43,535) (33,967)
Deferred tax EERIE 34 (426,074) (18,01)
Total tax charge for the year FRABBEZ LB 343,823 669,874

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate.

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.50%
(2022:18.50%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which
is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The first HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 825% (2022: 825%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.50% (2022:16.50%).

PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Group's income tax provision in respect of its operations in
China has been calculated at the applicable tax rates on the
taxable profits for both years, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof,

Certain of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are qualified as High and
New Technology Enterprises and are entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 1500% during both years,

AEEERAEERE RN REMES
PrEM AR MELSSMESEMNZRE
BEEBNAEN -

ERNEH
BENGHORFAREBEENETE
BB A E91650% (2022 € 1 1650% ) 3118
B EAEE-—HBAAAFAMRK
FIFEHEFENEEBRIN - ZWBAF]
B 2,000,000/ 7T (20224 : 2,000,0007%
TC) K JE SR B 5 F 2 8.25% (2022 4F = 825%)
BB R BB - E 8 BR B R ) 1R16.50%
(20224F :1850%) BB BT o

ol T8

REBURBBRBEZE RERENRE
4 - Db E G S O FE ER B s R 3R i A B R
FrE R EEBH TSRS -

AEBEETHEMBARNMEFEASTF
B RMERER A Z500%50EEDE
KW= -
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31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

156

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS

The Group's tax provision in respect of other jurisdictions has been
calculated at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the
prevailing practices of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, income tax of other
jurisdictions mainly arose from Canada (2022: US) for the Group's
disposal of investment properties.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory tax rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of
the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rate is as follows:

9. FRHAX (@

Hih B ERBENRERE

AEER A A EEBENRIBREDRE
7RI B R T B 0 R R E BT 1B 0
BB R -

REZE2023F 2 ABILEE - HibaD&
HENEHREEREARAEERNINEX
(2022%F : ER)LEREWE -

RAAATDABHWEARFEDLEE
S5 0 3 10 0 PR 2 I AT R 0 B
B BIR BN B R A Y BRI 0I5
mF

2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  AEETI

(Restated)

(REZ)

Profit before tax B B A& 2,664,169 3,190,424
Tax at the PRC corporate income taxrate of 25% 3R Bl 2 FT 8 R R 25% st B R 1B 666,042 797,606
Effect of different taxation rates TRMENZE (217,266) (198,166)
Share of results of associates DR E R R EE (80,976) (17,774)
Share of results of joint ventures DMhEEREEE (917) (348)
Income not subject to tax BAERB S (59,143) (59,439)
Expenses not deductible for tax EEE 162,962 01973
Tax losses utilised from prior years EFRBEFEREEE (138,501) (72,322)
Tax losses not recognised AERTIAEIE 170,371 110,935
Adjustments in respect of current tax BB FEREIEARIE

of prior years Y F 2 (43,535) (33,967)
Tax incentive on eligible expenses HE AR SOSE (115,214) (132,008)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the $AR R T A BT R A 7R K A

distributable profits of the Company's 12 5% B Ta IR PRiST

subsidiaries in the PRC 0% - 183,384
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BRASEEERBERFENRIA D 343,823 669,874

As stated in note 2.2(b), the Group has applied the mandatory
exception to recognising and disclosing information about deferred
tax assets and liabilities arising from Pillar Two income taxes, and
will account for the Pillar Two income taxes as current tax when
incurred. Pillar Two legislation has been enacted or substantively
enacted in certain jurisdictions in which the Group operates. The
legislation will be effective for the Group's financial year beginning 1
January 2024. The Group has performed an assessment of the
Group's potential exposure to Pillar Two income taxes.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

This assessment is based on the mast recent information
avallable regarding the financial performance of the constituent
entities in the Group. In the jurisdictions the Group operates where
Pillar Two legislation has been enacted or substantively enacted,
either the relevant Pillar Two effective rates are above 15% or the
relevant entities are suffering losses. Therefore, the Group does
not expect a material expasure to Pillar Two top up taxes.

DIVIDENDS

HKS
BT

per share

P8 %5 (@)

ZAHE T ERANEEK B AR P H R
BRI ER N ENE B NE
ERTOASEEEMERNAER - HEE
SHEZEBEBESNISY% - M EEERR
REEME - E B - REBE T E KX
E—fRRNEARR -

10- H’il%\

HKS'000
TR

(=34

2022 final dividend paid 00FENKEBRE

(2022: 2021 final dividend paid) (20226 : 2021 B RERE) 0.30 930,725 026 806,629
Less: Dividends for shares held for Share 3 © AR 17 22 Bhst 2P AR5

award scheme (note 37(8)) FRR S (M3 378) 0.30 (6,897) 026 (5978)

923,828 800,651

Equivalent to ZER RMB831,903,000 RMB649,336,000

AE#831,903,000 T AR 649336000 7T

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK20 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 per
ordinary share in aggregate of HK$615,885,000 has been
declared by the Board to the owners of the Company whose
names appear on the Company's register of members on 5 July
2024 (2022: final dividend of HK30 cents per ordinary share in
aggregate of HK$923,828,000). The amount of the final dividend
declared for the year ended 31 December 2023 is calculated
based on the number of issued shares, less dividends for shares
held for the share award scheme, at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements.

R|ERRE  ESeFABEE2023F
RAZIBLEFEERAHKE SR L BR
2071l - & 5615885000 7T F 2024
F7ASHBNARABRE MO AR T
BEAQONE : R EFREREBKRI0E
il » & 59238280008 JT) » BL&E 22023
FRAIAILEFESTRARBR B TIIEAR
GRAMBHERILEBHERITRGEHAE
BEE %D BB AT BT IS AR D AR BT E -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

1.

158

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO Nn. XAFHBFAERLESKREF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are BEATSEFEGRERNREERT)
based on:
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETE
RESEIC)!
(FEY))
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the Company — 5F & 8 IR E AN K 358 2 7 b5
used in the basic and diluted earnings BEIBARREHEE A
per share calculation P4 5 K 2,368,062 2521245
Number of Shares
BROAHE
Shares igni)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B 317 @& hN#E
in issue FHE 302,418,400 3102418400
Weighted average number of shares P tn B2 B =t & P F AR {0 I
held for the share award scheme T8 (22,991,000) (22,991,000)
Adjusted weighted average number of SHEERERREE RN
ordinary shares of the Company in issue BEOARRAREET
used in the basic and diluted earnings TR A R A
per share calculation T8 3,079,427,400 3079427400
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue REBREE2023F R2022F 12 A31H IE
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively. FEHBRDETRNECHETEER -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. Y% - BERRAE

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and ENEN and office Leasehold  Construction
buildings machinery  equipment Vehicles improvements inprogress
B HE
1HREF  REREE E§IE nE%E EEIR
RVB RMBO00 0
Cost: B
At1January 2022 RNNETAA 7070666 7709076 366202 690,097 104409 2300676 18341126
Addtions NE N276 1192601 7054 14691 24576 1929965 3240163
Acquistions of subsidiaries WEHERT - 9 160 - 7 2782 3728
Transfers ol 314721 651001 36085 5810 12965 (1080582 -
Transfer from investment FRERENZ
propertes (note 14 (k) 77062 - - - - - 77062
Disposals e 8358 (281543 (1806) 42%) (7694 6985 1405843
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - (93] 43 (135) - 643 1914
Exchange realignment B A% 57 15790 1207 1033 1761 553 50,01
At3] December 2022 RUODERAIBR
and 1 January 2023 23%E1R18 7,548,720 9,287,611 388,949 707,263 216,024 3,164,766 21,313,333
Additions AE 439,766 653,792 25523 15,418 29,052 2,226,770 3,390,321
Transfers ol 853,089 725,517 142,014 15,000 66,881 (1,802,501) =
Transfer from investrment BEAREANE
properties (note 14) (FzE14) 56,861 - - - - - 56,861
Disposals e (195540) (690,243 (22967) (12,465) (19,864) (1,09 (94217)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (1,793) (65,924) (045) (1474) - - (80,136)
Exchange realignment ERAZ 9,866 21,285 1702 595 572 28,510 62,530
At31 Decernber 2023 202350 A3A 8700069 9,932,038 534,216 2433 202665 3616455 23,800,738
Accumulated depreciation ~ EH1TER
and impairment: AE:
At1January 2022 RUOREIAIA (1957406) (3419298) (267063 20022 f102100) 63470 (6009559)
Provided for theyear note?)  FRBIE (HT) (303739) (1158419] (34672 (42100) (35798) - (16647271
Disposals e 68007 74648 7924 243 374 - 257653
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEAF - 1 I 2 - - 1
Exchange realignment B A% 4086) (693 759) (019) (1769) - (14464)
431 December 2022 and RANRELAIAR
1 January 2023 200351818 (2286323  (4409.999)  (294559) (40807 (135,025) (63470) (7431083
Provided for theyearnote?) — FRBIE (HET) (512,515) (957,495) (37,336) (43,163) (17,515) - (1568,024)
Disposals e 53,634 331,985 15,317 9,8M 4,482 = 415,289
Disposal of subsidaries HENBAT 1,613 25,941 646 1,084 - - 39,084
Exchange realignment A% (1719) (6,007) (1,409) (51) (694) - (10,346)
At 31 December 2023 R0B3ENATA (2735310) (5,015,575) (317,341 (273,532) (149,652) (63470)  (8,554,880)
Net carrying amount; REFE:
At 31 December 2023 R025F12A318 5,965,659 4,916,463 216,935 450,805 143,013 3552983 15245858
At 31 December 2022 RANENAE 5262397 4877612 94390 466456 80099 3101296 13682250

SRAREEYME BEREBHOKAER
TR FE A A RE16517,000 7T
(20224 : AR #1399160007T) ° KA
EET AR F BRI o

Included in the Group's property, plant and equipment are
freehold lands which had a net carrying amount of RMBI165,117,000
(2022: RMB139,916,000). The freehold lands are situated outside
Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& e MBI RM

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A 31H

13.

160

LEASES
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land,
plants and buildings, vehicles and other equipment used in its
operations. For leasehold land classified as prepaid land lease
payments previously, lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leasehold land from the owners with lease periods of
50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms
of these land leases. For other leased lands classified as operating
lease previously, they generally have lease terms between 10 and
50 years. Leases of plants and buildings generally have lease
terms between 1and 25 years. Lease of vehicles generally have
lease terms between 1 and 5 years, while other equipment
generally have lease terms between 1 and 5 years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group. There are several lease contracts that
include extension and termination options and variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below,

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

13. LEASES (Continued)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

13. #HE

(&)

REBEEREEA @

A

EREEE

P o Al

AEBEEREEENREELNFA

mE BT

Leasehold Plants and Other
land*  buildings Vehicles equipment Total
HEXR
Tt BEREF EBWIA Hitik s st
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREBTT ARETT AREBTT ARETT ARETT
AtTJanuary 2022 R2022F1R18 2,084,198 276,923 1,702 16131 2,378,954
Additions RE 66,509 215,247 43 1653 283,822
Acquisitions of subsidiaries  YRBEE B A A 10,044 - - - 10,044
Transfer from investment ARBREME
properties (note 14) (FfzE14) 22,991 - - - 22,001
Depreciation charge (note7)  HTER X (HizE7) (55944 (124,879) (1029) (3,360) (185.212)
Termination =1k - (15,737) - - (15,737)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBAR (24.206) (26193) - - (50489)
Exchange realignment I 5 SR 4677 15293 476 161 20,607
At 31 December 2022 R20RERAIBR
and1January 2023 2023F1R1H 2,118,079 340,654 1,562 14,585 2,474,880
Additions NE 128,718 931,979 765 1,255 1,062,717
Transfer from investment HAERBREME
properties (note 14) (FtzE14) 14,769 - - - 14,769
Depreciation charge (note7)  HTER X (Fiz7) (57,673)  (156,486) (751) (3,727)  (218,637)
Termination Bk (26,944) (1,931) - - (38,875)
Disposals & (80,635) - - - (80,635)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR (8,131) (343) - - (8,474)
Exchange realignment RIS 15,339 5,261 9 118 20,727
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 A3 H 2,103,522 1,109,134 1,585 12,231 3,226,472
i The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all leasehold # AEBCESMARE R T M it

land except for those under operating lease arrangements with a net
carrying amount of RMB18,651,000 (2022: RMB44,509,000).

EREE EEEDFEAARN
18651000 7T (20224 = AR# 44509000
TO) M EREL T ORERE IR

BN o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. 8@
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued) REBEREBEA (#)
B. Lease liabilities B. HEARF
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEAENEEERNFANZ S
during the year are as follows: N
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR | ARETE
As at1January W1A1H 578,406 492,368
Additions NE 934,244 221140
Interest expenses (note 6) FMERZ (F:E6) 67,351 28,993
Payments INES (193,280) (136,022)
Termination Ak (40,828) (17.882)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR (362) (27,002)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 58 B 5,520 16,81
As at 31 December W12 A31H 1,351,051 578,406
Analysed into: DA
Current portion mENE D 129,412 107,670
Non-current portion FEmeEE o 1,221,639 470,736
1,351,051 578,406
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEBBENIHBE L ITREGA MBR
43 to the consolidated financial statements. KU 4 NIRE -
C. Theamounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to C. REZNERREBASEENSHEN
leases are as follows: T
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR | AREBTE
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets A EETERX 218,637 185212
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEMNBERX 67,351 28,993
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets & IH{FREBEMBH R (1,953) (2145)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEEREEEMSNE (10,944) -
Expense relating to short-term leases EEHEMEBRX 21,985 16438
Expense relating to leases of low-value REEEEMEEN
assets LEZ IR 15,487 8386
Total amount recognised in profitor loss R EzE N HER B 310,563 236,884
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

13. LEASES (Continued)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)

D.

Extension and termination options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. These options are
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing
the leased-asset portfolio and they are aligned with the
Group's business needs. Set out below are the undiscounted
potential future rental payments for extension options which
the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise:

Extension options expected BT EITREN
not to be exercised JE R

13. #HE @

REBEREEA @D
D. EMRAILLRE

AEEEETEETEHMRRILENE
EaN RSEERMEEERS -
NBEEEEMEEEMAS  LFAN
SENEBRE - TXHIAKEE
B HETE NTEE R RITRE 2 BT
REESRHK

2023
Payable Payable
within after
five years five years Total

AREFR ZAREFE
=¥ =¥ #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR%®TR

2,569 = 2,569

Extension options expected EETEITER
not to be exercised fa iy -3

2022
Payable Payable
within after
five years five years Total

ARNAFAN  BARAFR
XA % st
RMB00O RMB000 RMB000
ARBETIT ARBTET ARBTT

2494 - 2494
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

13. LEASES (Continued) 13.

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)

E. Variable lease payments
The Group has lease contracts for land that contain variable
payments based on the unit purchase price of rice
announced by local government Management's objective is
to align the lease expense with the amount paid last time.
The following summary provides information on the Group's
variable lease payments, including the magnitude in relation

HE @)

AEBEERAEA (&)

E TW&AER
REFAEERMHTBRFAGHEA
WEEENSNRNTHAEEL -
EREMEZAFEAEMTSE P
NHLERE S - A TTHBRIEA
BMAEEUEHEERNER  piFH
BENREENSE

to fixed payments:

2023
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
EHA AN CIE-J0E et
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT AR¥TRT AR%¥Tx
Fixed rent Eilakizka 193,199 - 193,199
Variable rent only ERE-vicka - 81 81
193,199 81 193,280
2022
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
& 7E {5 3K AT AR 5
RMB00O RMB000O RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT AR®TR
Fixed rent B EHE 135,941 - 135,941
Variable rent only ErgHEe - 81 8l
135,941 81 136,022

A 5% (2022: 5%) increase in unit purchase price of rice would
increase the total lease payments by 5% (2022: 5%).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. 8 @)

THE GROUP AS ALESSOR

During the year, the Group leases certain commercial properties
in Asia, North America and Oceania which were classified as
investment properties. The rental income of these properties
amounting to RMB154,575,000 (2022: RMB149,526,000) was
recognised and included in ‘Revenug” in profit or loss. Certain
office premises, machineries and equipment were classified as
property, plant and equipment under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMBG,901,000 (2022: RMBI17,516,000), details of which are included
in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivables by the Group in future periods under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

AEBERAEAA

FRCAREBPIMN I EIMN B RFEMNE
HMETHOBAREMENBEDE - ZF
MEEHERNBAERIAARE
154,575,000 (20224F : AR ¥
149,526,000 ) Wt ABm A [W AL A -
BETHAE  HBREXERECEHRERH
T DEAYE BEREE ZSHED
BRESEREFINRES YAREE
BEmBMREHETHSAE - AEER
FAERMNEE WA AR 001,000 7T
(20224 : ARBEI75160007T) » sEBEH R
REMISRMARMGES -

PIREBER  REBERE A BEEEH
ERARPEAMEREL WEMAIRAE
=T

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB'0O0O

AR®TRE ARBTE

Not more than1year E2NE= 570,768 524,784
Over 1year to 2 years TN EE2F 40,305 99,396
Over 2 years to 3 years PENEESF 19,299 1733
Qver 3vyears to 4 years SEEZE4F 8,425 4453
Over 4 years to 5 years 4FANEESF 6,900 529
Over 5 vears 5F M E 19,932 1290

665,629 642185
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~.  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. HE @)
THE GROUP AS A LESSOR (Continued) FEEESHEA @
The disaggregation of these office premises, machineries and DERKEMEBETYE  BERKED
equipment classified as property, plant and equipment under WNE - B RBRE DT R EEAR
operating leases and the reconciliation of the carrying amount at FREEMEREIIMT

the beginning and end of the period are set out below:

Land and Plant and
buildings machinery Total
THREF HERBSE Azt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR%TT
Cost: RN :
AtTJanuary 2022 R2022F1A1H 99,057 1,566,635 1665692
Additions NE 18,605 4,526 23131
Expiration and termination AR R #% 1E (51428) (142,736) (194,164)
At 31 December 2022 and R2022F12 A31H &
1January 2023 2023%1A1H 66,234 1,428,425 1,494,659
Additions nNE 85,186 307,641 392,827
Expiration and termination EHA R 4% 1k (31,899) (461,383) (493,282)
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 4318 119,521 1,274,683 1,394,204
Accumulated depreciation: ZEE
At1January 2022 R202241 A1 A (34132) (391,925) (426,057)
Provided for the year FNEE (3,946) (132,143) (136,089)
Expiration and termination BB R AR 1L 21471 83,807 105278
At 31 December 2022 and R2022F12 A31H &
1January 2023 202341 A1H (16,607) (440,261  (456,868)
Provided for the year FNEE (20,762) (245,669) (266,431)
Expiration and termination BB R AR 3,401 181,573 184,974
At 31 December 2023 R 2023412 A 318 (33,968) (504,357) (538,325)
Net carrying amount: BREFE :
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12 B3R 85,553 770,326 855,879
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A 31 H 49,627 988164 1,037,791
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. &YX
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT ARETE
At1January R1ATH 8,027,487 7,809,639
Additions NE 1,525,058 1421,859
Transfer to property, plant and equipmentiH B =W % - BB K& 12 (56,861) (77,062)
Transfer to right-of-use assets FEEFREEE 13A (14,769) (22,991)
Transfer to asset held for sale FRERBERNEEE 28 (331,001) -
Transfer to long-term lease receivables = R HITH & UG E - (1135,940)
Changes in fair value N BEES 5 10,314 120,936
Disposals HE (306,559) (331,797)
Exchange realignment BE 34, 3 B 335,219 242,843
At 31 December ®12A31H 9,188,888 8,027,487
Further summary details of the Group’s investment properties are REBEREMERENE - THBHNA
set out in the section headed "Summary of Major Investment WEEEREMERE] &0 -
Properties” of this report.
The investment properties are leased to third parties under REBEEHELHETE=ZTNKREVEDN
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in - EFERNGRA VB RERMEEIS -

note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& e MBI RM

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A 31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REME (@)
VALUATION PROCESSES HERF
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment RBERR AEENREMVERLAE
properties were stated at fair value and were revalued by BE2Y THEIZEENGERGLEME
independent professionally qualified valuers detailed below: FiEE - FHET
American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd, For properties in Thailand American Appraisel (Thailand) Ltd, StREIIEME
Ray White (Valuations) For properties in Australia Ray White (Valuations) RMDENS
JLL Valuation & Advisory Services, LLC.&  For properties in the United JLL Valuation & Advisory Services, BLEBMEM =
CBRE Valuation & Advisory Services States LLC. & CBRE Valuation &
Advisory Services
Colliers International Realty Advisors Inc.  For properties in Canada Colliers International Realty EHIEYNYES
Advisors Inc. [
Guangdong Jingxin Real Estate Land For propertiesin the PRC BRREFMELINEE FeleikyE i
Asset Evaluation Co, Ltd. & Guangdong AEERARCERREEE
Jinghua Asset Appraisal and Property AHh R E T B AR E
and Land Valuation Co, Ltd.
KJPP Susan Widjojo & Rekan in For properties in Indonesia KJPP Susan Widjojo & Rekanin  BENEMIEM S
association with VPC Asia Pacific association with VPC
Asia Pacific
Albawsala Real Estate Valuation For properties in Dubai Albawsala Real Estate Valuation  StHEMEME
CIM Property Consultants Co, Ltd For properties in Myanmar CIM Property Consultants Co, Ltd - StAIR Y% 5
Advantage Property Services Co, Ltd, For properties in Cambodia Advantage Property Services FRBEME
Co, Ltd. i
The valuations performed by the valuers for financial reporting EREAEEMAGEMRTBEE2HRE M
purposes were reviewed by management. Management also EEE -EEENEEEEMTmEER
discussed the valuation processes and results with the valuers. FRER - BEAEZMHEN AL EEFH
The net fair value gains or losses on revaluation are included in m BB T D Rl ABm AE [ E AU A
"Other revenue, income and gains’ or "Other expenses’ in profit or Was R AEs sk [ HAaRs] o

loss, respectively.

Management reviewed the valuation results by verifying all major ERECEBREMBE X ERARERRE
inputs and assumptions and assessing the reasonableness of RO AEHZEESER LA EZEFR
such valuations. BEHEEME -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

VALUATION TECHNIQUES AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY

The following table shows the valuation techniques used by the
valuers in the determination of fair values. There were no
significant changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Fair value
AREE

2023
RMB'000
AR®B TR

2022
Y[=10]00]
ARETTE

14. HEYE (@)

P o Al

HERTERAAEBEERE

Valuation techniques
HER %

TRIREEEE AR
BRE - FRGEESTZREZLETMNEX

CBER AT A

Unobservable inputs
TABRRRABE

Vacant lands and buildings 3,812,482 2686319 Direct/sales comparison Premium/(discount) in
approach quality of land"
rE T RIEF B/ HELEE B+ E S EEN

w8/ (&)

Lands and buildings 3,687,664 3879375  Residual method Gross development value?
and estimated
construction cost®

T RiEF FlepE BEEEEY
KAt RSN AL

Lands and buildings 1,688,742 1461793 Income capitalisation Capitalisation ratel and

approach market rent®

THRETF Wz B AR ME AR &Y

RkmiziEer
9,188,888 8027487

Note: B

0 The higher the quality of land, the higher the fair value 0 THEERS  AAEEDS

@ The higher the gross development value, the higher the fair value @ HEREEAS  AAEBEDS

® The higher the estimated construction cost, the lower the fair value B M RENEDR - ARBEAE

@ The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value “ BARCLERR  ARBEERE

6 The higher the market rent, the higher the fair value g mEHeRs  AREERS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment
properties were within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as their
valuations were arrived at by reference to certain significant
unobservable inputs. There were no transfers into or out of Level 3
during the year (2022: Nil).

RIERR KL2EETEATATERS
ABEE  NEENREMEBEADR
BEERBTFE=F FAREXE=LE
ASEE (20224 : /) o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

15. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. HEREMBEREE
(A) GOODWILL (A) B8
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTTT

At1January R1ATH 541,878 495,857

Acquisitions of subsidiaries Wt B BT /28 A ) - 45,977

Disposal of a subsidiary HE MK BR A (1,763) -

Exchange realignment ME WS (30) 44

At 31 December R®12 318 540,085 541,878

(B) OTHERINTANGIBLE ASSETS (B) HthEEEE
Operating ~ Patentand Computer
concession  proprietary  Customer software
Trademark  Brand name rights technologies relationship ~ and others
EHR EHBHR
EHE EFEE Hif

Cost: BA:

AtJanuary 2022 W202F1A1R 162,622 nosr7 32804 231328 47700 mi63 696294
Addtions e 562 - 4243 3402 - 0354 17561
Acquisitions of subsidiaries KERBAA - - - - - 12 12
Disposals HE - - - (56) - - (56)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-EHBEAR - - - - - 3 3
Exchange realignment B 5 R 3745 - 1012 181 - 30 5260
At 31 December 2022 and ROVEVAIBR

1January 2023 2023%F1 18 166,929 110,577 38,159 234,855 47,700 120,848 719,068
Additions HE 4 = = = = 21337 21,341
Disposals HE - - - - - (2,627) (2,627)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR (796) - (1320) (783) - - (2,899)
Bxchange realignment X 8% 673 - 611 81 - 173 1,538
At 31 Decernber 2023 R2023E12A318 166,810 10,577 37,450 234,153 47,700 139,731 736,421

Accumulated amortisation and 25t ## R

impairment; BE:
AT January 2022 Ro02E1A18 (18,147) (36) (1146) (46,947) - (82182  (148.458)
Provided for the year (note 7) FRERE (M) (8,402) m (332) (35,384) (9,540) (10,51) (64,180)
Disposals HE - - - 56 - - 56
Impairment (note 7 B (FiT3E7) - (55,260) (1,615) - - - (66,875)
Bxchange realignment EHAE (35) - (448) (59) - (236) (178)
At 31 December 2022 and RAONENANRE

1January 2023 2023E1A18 (26,584) (55,307) (13,541) (82,334) (9,540) (92929)  (280,235)
Provided for the year (note 7) FRERE M) (8184) - (519) (29,046) - (194) (48,943)
Disposals HE = = - - - 1,032 1,032
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF 192 - 1320 189 - - 1701
Exchange realignment B RE (425) - (34) (24) - (123) (606)
At 31 December 2023 R023EN AR (35,001) (55,307) (12,774) (mz15) (9,540) (103214)  (327,05])

Net carrying amount: REFE
At 31 December 2023 R2023E12A318 131,809 55,270 24,676 122,938 38,160 36,517 409,370
At 31 Decernber 2022 R02VENA3A 140,345 55210 24618 152521 38160 27919 438833
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBmRMEE

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, brand name and
trademark and operating concession rights with indefinite useful
lives set out in note 15 have been allocated to twelve individual
cash-generating units (‘'CGUS"), comprising subsidiaries engaging
in the following businesses:

provision of environmental engineering services;
provision of sewage treatment services;
provision of hazardous waste treatment services;
provision of solid waste treatment services;
manufacture and lease of aluminium formworks;
provision of e-commerce services;

cultivation of flowers and plants;

manufacture and sale of plastic pipes and pipe fittings;
manufacture and sale of waterproof materials;
manufacture and sale of resin; and

manufacture and sale of photovoltaic module.

16. R R H fth BLEE PR O] (€ A £ M nY
& Eim E Al

HBERANHAME M EMENEE - A
ERAERFEHOER R EENEFES
BESEZE T —EERNBRESELFEM (3R
TEAEM])  RFBEUBBEMAREAT
EBOME LT

RERBEITRRRS
PRH5 7K BE 3 AR 7
TRt e b R fn Ba 12 AR A
HE L[] 88 B2 ) Ba 1 AR 75
SUEREERER
RHEERY
BIETEARAEY
SUENRHEBREBREN
SUE R SHE DKL
SUENHERE - &
SUEMIHE IR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND 16. 92 & H fth 5 5 BR =] 3 A &£ 4 a4 R
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE & R E A (8)
USEFUL LIVES (Continued)
The carrying amounts of goodwill, brand name and trademark RBERRDEZZSEMNHGE  BR
and operating concession rights at the end of the reporting period REENST S ERNEREENT
allocated to these units are as follows:
Brand name Operating
and concession
Goodwill  trademark rights
HE BRRERE BTCER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AR¥Tr AR%®Trn
Guangzhou EP Environmental BINTIRIG R & TR
Engineering Ltd." and its subsidiary BERARRAEMEAR
(GZEP) (fezerl) - 55,260 1,615
Hainan Baolai Industrial & Trading BEERIBEERAAR
Co, Ltd* and its subsidiary (Baolar) HBARI([BXR]) 39,997 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental TEKERRBEBRMHERAE
Technology Co, Ltd"and its L =YNS|
subsidiaries (Jiangsu Yongbao') (NI& K& 276,098 - -
Guangzhou KingHing Construction BN ERER R AR AT
Technology Ltd" and its subsidiaries N ECHt 8 A &)
(‘Guangzhou KingHing’) (TEMRE]) 37,292 - -
Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. and Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. &
its subsidiary (‘Spirolite’) HKT B2~ ([Spirolite]) 1,326 35,001 -
China National Petroleum (Guangdong)  #RERE (BR) BiKBRHBER A A
Waterproof Co, Ltd. and its REMBAR
subsidiaries (CNPW') ([ mERE ) 70,837 - -
Guangdong Xingfa Environmental BEREFERERE
Technology Co, Ltd. * AR
(‘Guangdong Xingfa’) (EREZE]) 3,843 - -
CNPW New Material Technology OB EER MR RN AR A A
Taizhou Co, Ltd. * (CNPW Taizhou) ([FmEESRM]) 29,277 - -
Shenzhen EDA CLOUD Technologies AT HEERRBRDAR
Co, Ltd. and its subsidiaries ['EDA) HWBRAR([ZEE]) 35,438 - -
Tai Chang Resin (Sihui) Co, Ltd." aekiE(me)BRAT
(Tai Chang) (&gl 44,230 - -
Guangdong Lesso Banhao New Energy & BR B 98 BT A 57 g6 TR A L
Materials Co, Ltd” BRARA
(Banhao New Energy’) ([P ETREIR]) 1,747 - -
540,085 90,261 11,615
172 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

HEEREAR @

16. #E R H fh B HPR °] £ A B ah R

Brand name

and

trademark

EEEEE

RMB000 RMB'000

ARETT AR®BTR
GZEP GZEP - 55260 1615
Baolai BR 39,997 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao ITER KR 276,008 - -
Guangzhou KingHing B8 37292 - -
Guangdong Jinying Flower Seedling Co, Ltd" ER & BIEA B ARER A A 1763 - -
Spirolite Spirolite 1356 35812 -
CNPW o e £ P 70837 - -
Guangdong Xingfa R % 3843 - -
CNPW Taizhou H ) B ZR M 20277 - -
EDA PEE 35438 - -
Tai Chang a8 44230 - -
Banhao New Energy HEAEF AR 1747 - -
541878 91072 1615

Management regarded brand name and trademark and operating
caoncession rights acquired through business combinations
having indefinite useful lives because they are expected to
generate net cash inflows indefinitely.

BEEERREBEGAHELNARLRE

R TR E
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

16.

174

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHERINTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined
based on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections
which are based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. The growth rate used to extrapolate
cash flows beyond the five-year period is 2% and the pre-tax
discount rates applied to cash flow projections are as follows;

GZEP GZEP
Baolai EEN
Jiangsu Yongbao LR K AR
Guangzhou KingHing J& M 5
Spirolite Spirolite
CNPW TomEE
Guangdong Xingfa B R g
CNPW Taizhou o EEZRMN
EDA ZEE

Tai Chang a8
Banhao New Energy HE A& FTRE TR

16. R R H fth BLEE PR O] € A £ MY £

FEEREAR @

EREEALBENZARESENERES
REBAFEZ2EAEBEET  MRESK
EEADNBREEEEEN AFHUBE
E-BERAFHzReREFEHANZER
KHEE - IR SR 2780 AT IE B & B AT
WEMT

Pre-tax
discount rate
BAIR R E

14.5%

1M.1%
12.3%
12.4%
12.4%
12.4%
14.4%
13.4%
21.7%
14.6%
14.7%

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the units'
past performance and management's expectations for the
market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of each CGU to exceed its recoverable amount,

At 31 December 2022, based on the value in use calculation,
impairment losses amounting to RMB66,875,000 was recognised
on the relevant brand name and trademark and operating
concession rights of GZEP, which arose from the expected decline
in the market demand.

Except for goodwill and operating concession rights mentioned
above, there are no impairments of any other CGUs containing
goodwill, brand name and trademark and operating concession
rights with indefinite useful lives (2022: Nil).

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

17.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

17. REIZEATINER

2023

RMB'000
AR T

2022
RMB000
ARETTT

Share of net assets DILEEFRE 4,517,821 2371066
Goodwill on acquisitions W EANEE 346,703 324,03
4,864,524 2,696,897

Particulars of the associates as at 31 December 2023 are as

follows:

Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
BRRZERER AR

Keda Industrial Group Co, Ltd "

HERERNERAF W

Foshan Hechuang Yingke Real Estate
Development Co, Ltd”

LT AEIBNEERRARAHF

Guangdang Home Electranic Appliances

World E-Commerce Co, Ltd"
BRFEHRETHBERAA

Guangdong Gold Ashlar Industry
Financing Investmentand
Development Co, Ltd”

ERENNERRAZRARAT

Registered

capital

EfEx
HK$10,000,000

100000005 7T

RMB1948,420,000

AR ¥19484200007T

RMBI80,000,000

AR #1800000007C

RMB40,000,000

AR®400000007

RMB6,667,000

AR 66670007

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
AR

Cayman Islands

FEES

the PRC

e

the PRC

e

the PRC

E

Ownership
interest

iReE 4§

38

30

25

Percentage of
FrHEE D

Voting
power

REE
2

38

30

25

Profit
sharing

e RA
26

38

30

25

Annual Report 2023
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Principal
activity

IEEHR

Manufacture and sale of
aluminium profiles

BERBERLY

Manufacture and sale of
building materials
machineries

BUERHERM M

Property development

NELERE

E-commerce platform

Investment

e
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REEATMER (@)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ B AL
Registered registration Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
capital andbusiness interest power  sharing activity
dMEL TMREXBLYE REEER RE#E [EHEN IEXRE
Jiangyin Yongging Water Purifying RMB5,000,000 the PRC 20 20 20 Manufacture and sale
Agent Co, Ltd” of chemical products
TemxEEkEERAT AR 50000007 e BERHECTIER
Shanghai BangxinloT Tech Co, Ltd"® RMBI3173,000 the PRC 2l 2 21 Provision of [oT solution
services
LERCEBHRARATY ARH13173000 7T PE RENBBRATRRYE
Artaic, LLC® US$2500,000 uUs 7 20 1 Manufacture and sale
of mosaic tiles
Artaic, LLC? 2500000% 7T * RERHERERLER
Hangzhou Yuehui Venture Capital RMBI00,000,000 the PRC 38 38 38 Investment
Partnership”
MMHERIZREAREE AR 1000000007 PE RE&
Foshan Aoxue Lesso Sports Culture RMB5,000,000 the PRC 49 49 49 Holding sports events
Development Co, Ltd”
FLTHESEHEEXCERBERAR  AR¥S50000007 Gk BREEES
Hunan VARY Tech Co, Ltd. RMBI121,080,000 the PRC 28 28 28 Provision of solid waste
treatment services
HEBRRERNERAT AR#1210800007T FE R EREYRERS
Billion Milestone Properties Inc PHP100,000,000  the Philippines 40 40 40 Property investment
Billion Milestone Properties Inc 100000000 FEZE NERE
FRELER
Guangdong Weisheng Lesso RMB47,600,000 the PRC 40 40 40 Manufacture and sale of
Technology Co, Ltd” fertilizer
BERELBENEBRNERLDA AR 476000007 FE BUERHERH

176 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Registered registration
capital  and business
aMEL TRREXLE
Guangdang Lianwei Enterprise RMBI00,000,000 the PRC
Management Co, Ltd”
ERBACREEERAT AR¥1000000007 e
Guangdong Yuetai Lingxing Equipment RMB50,000,000 the PRC
Co, Ltd”
BEREFRARBEERAA AR¥500000007 P
China Energy Lianhao (Guangzhou) Smart  RMBI00,000,000 the PRC
Energy Technology Co, Ltd”
AR (BM) BRRRRARAR ARMI000000007T e
Guangzhou Yunfan Canghai Cultural RMBI000,000 the PRC
Media Co, Ltd”" (Formerly known as
"Tito Technology (Guangzhou) Co, Ltd")
BNENREXULERERLA AR¥10000007 PE
(FREARR(BEM) BRAR)
Guangzhou Qianfan Cross-border RMB500,000 the PRC
E-commerce Co, Ltd”
BNTRBERERERAF AR#S5000007 hE
Guangdong Lesso International Trade RMB5,000,000 the PRC
Co, Ltd”
BRENEREERRAA AE#50000007 hE

17. REIZEATIMER (@

Ownership

interest

L L
30

40

40

20

35

30

Percentage of
Frbaa

Voting Profit
power  sharing
AR ER

30 30

40 40

40 40

20 20

35 35

30 30

Annual Report 2023
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Principal
activity

IRRK

Property management
nEEE

Manufacture and sale of
accessories

RERHERN

Power generation
technical service

AERIIRS

Internet data service

EBBEERY

Cross-border
g-commerce

BRER

Cross-border
e-commerce

ERER



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BIRRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

17. REIZEATIMER (@

Percentage of
FrEEa

Ownership

interest

freRER

Voting Profit  Principal
power  sharing activity

Eiead IRRE

Place of

incorporation/

Registered registration

capital  and business

dMER TRREXLE

Hainan Kaixian Lianli Smart Energy Industry ~ RMBIB0,000,000 the PRC
Investment Fund Co, Ltd”

BEFAZHNERRRER AR¥1800000007 hE

REESARARF

Qujing Yangguang New Energy Co, Ltd? RMBI76,889,000 the PRC

wEG AR RRH BER AR AEE1768890007C hE

Shenchanfa Industrial (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd. RMB30,000,000 the PRC

REZEZ(RINBERAR AR®300000007 e

Note:

0] During the current year, the Group acquired 7.01% shares in Keda at an
aggregate cash consideration of RMB2,104,911,000. The investment was
written down to the then fair value before reclassification as an associate of
the Group.

vl Itis considered that the Group has significant influence over these companies
because the Group has a director in each of the boards of directors of these
companies.

Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited ("Xingfa Aluminium’) and Keda,
which are considered as material associates of the Group, are
engaged in the manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles and
manufacture and sale of building materials machineries,
respectively, and are accounted for using the equity method.

178 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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35

30

CEE

33 33 Investment

ga

15 15 Manufacture and sale of
monocrystalline silicon

RERHEERRE

30 30 Investment

ga

RAFEERN AEBRESREGEARY
2,104,91,000 7T Y2 B8 BHE701% B A& D - REFT 5
BAREE ML QR ZA - ZBRES MR

EERBOAAEE-

FAEERZERARZEEGHE —RESE ¥R
REEBHZERNTREERTES -

MR R ERARAR ([HERE]) R
ERER/AEENERBE AR DRIK
FRUERHE RN R BUE RIHEEM
W Win IR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REEATRER (&)
Summarised financial information in respect of Xingfa Aluminium, AR RENREARNTBERGE
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled (ZEEHE ST BRNEMERIELT
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements at B EERES M BRANRIEETHR) 0
the end of the reporting period is as follows: ik

Xingfa Aluminium

WBERE
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000O
AR TR  AREBTIT
Current assets MEVE E 9,834,952 0,735,004
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ERBEE(TBREHE) 4,844,006 4191849
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate WEB S N RIELENHE 124,590 124,590
Current liabilities mENBE (5,479,014) (6,243,899)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (3,137,146) (2,322,825)
Net assets BEFE 6,187,388 5484719
Net assets, excluding goodwill EEFB(TRERER) 6,062,798 5,360,129
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in xRN LN RN o)
the associate: HI ¥ AR -
Proportion to the Group's ownership PG RSB PR B #EL 5 26.11% 2611%
Group's share of net assets of the associate, ~AEBDHE L NN EEFEE
excluding goodwill (TBIENE) 1,583,161 1,399,675
Goodwill on acquisitions W EAENEE 124,590 124,590
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE 1,707,751 1,524,265
Revenue A 17,352,551 16,933,064
Profit for the year FRE N 791,101 451,991
Other comprehensive income H b 2mE 3,313 (3.974)
Total comprehensive income for the year FANZMM BT 794,414 448,017
Fair value of the Group's investment AEEKRENAREE 613,178 853,638

Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REZEASINER (&)

BERAMERBEMRNMBEMNRE (%F
ENERSHBENEAERFHARY
B AP BHRROREELETHR AT

Summarised financial information in respect of Keda, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

Keda
Rz
2023
RMB’'000
AR¥TR
Current assets MEEE 10,803,131
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill FRBEE (TEEBE) 25,561,910
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate WS AR EENEE 21,772
Current liabilities mENAE (5,745,052)
Non-current liabilities EmEatE (3,119,590)
Net assets BEFR 27,522,171
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEEFHE(ITBERE) 27,500,399
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the associate:  EARE B & N Bl M A R -
Proportion to the Group’s ownership PG RNEB P A R 1 7.01%
Group's share of net assets of the associate, REEBSEBE RNRINEEFE
excluding goodwill (T BEEEE) 1,927,778
Goodwill on acquisitions WEEENEE 21,772
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE 1,949,550
Revenue WA 7,204,512
Profit for the year F N F 1,231,475
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 E Wz -
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERZERE 1,231,475
Fair value of the Group's investment AEFRRENLAEE 1,441,131

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group's associates that are not individually material:

HRRMIEER

TREJNAEE AR EREE QBN

Share of the associates: DIEEE R T

2023
RMB’000
AR®T

\

2022
RMB'000

ARETT

Profit/(loss) for the year FERF(E8) 30,136 (45,805)
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 H W e = -
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 2EE (X)) 858 30,136 (45,895)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REBREBERFIRE

investments in the associates B 48 BRI (B 1,207,223 172,632
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REELEMHER
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000O
AREFT T ARET T
Share of net assets DILEEFRE 26,658 14,191
Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows: BETEMNFBOT

Place of
incorporation/

Percentage of
AL

Registered  registration Ownership  Voting Profit

capital andbusiness interest power sharing  Principal activity
B3
dAMER EMREREY FEEEE KREE BEORN IEXK

Guangdong Lesso EPCO Residential RMBI0,000,000 the PRC 50

Equipment Design Services Co, Ltd.

BERBENEHEERER: AR®100000007C HHE
REERRA
Banhao EPCO New Energy Design RMB4,500,000 the PRC 50

(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd

JERESUE R B R R AT (R AR® 45000007 e
BRAR

The following table illustrates the information of the Group's
interests in joint ventures:

50 50 Provision of household
decoration design work
and maintenance
services

RERERMRE
R 1E R %

50 50  Provision of new energy
products and
installation services

REMERERRLE

R
TRENAFENALEEENESNER -

2022
RMB’000 RMB'000O
AR® T ARET T
Share of the joint ventures: DMEEERE

Profit for the year F N 7l 3,667 1390
Other comprehensive income H 2 AW - -
Total comprehensive income WS E5E 3,667 1,390

Carrying amount of the Group's investments ~ AEBREGE R ERER
in the joint ventures BREE 26,658 14,191
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 19. HihEREE
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT
Non-current FERED
Debt instruments at BAREE AHMEE RS
FVTOCH: BEHEIA:
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong REBLTEBES (i 141,873 -
Debt instruments at FVTPL: BRAREBEFABEMEBIA:
Unlisted convertible loans JEEM AR ER (i 90,357 103,537
Equity instruments at BRAREBEFAEMEE
FVTOCI: W RATA :
Equity securities listed in the PRC A AR AR RE 2 148,362 6814091
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE FTRAE S 219,414 356,660
Unlisted equity securities LR AES 1,101,555 1204,731
1,469,331 2,242,882
Equity instruments at FVTPL: RAABEFABENRATIA
Equity securities listed in &R EHRRAR
the United Kingdom B-E2 (i) - 43165
Equity securities listed in the PRC R E A ES (iv) 30,000 -
Unlisted equity securities I LEMRAES (iv) 200,876 197,73
230,876 240,896
Funds at FVTPL: BAREBEFABZENES
Stock funds REWES 13,328 14,882
1,945,765 2,602,197
Current RE
Debt instruments at BRAABEFAEMEE
FVTOCI: WaEmEKTA :
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong REA ETEBFES (i - 33,580
Debt instruments at FVTPL: BRARBEFABSMNEBIA:
Wealth management product EEEm - 3500
Unlisted convertible loans JEEM AR ER (i) 16,491 41,000
16,491 44,500
Equity instruments at FVTPL: Eizg/N ﬁﬁﬁd‘)\?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬂx$lﬂ :
Equity securities listed in the PRC A B iR AR = 588,065
Derivative financial instruments: THEemIA:
Forward commodity contracts RHEmED (v) = 16,762
16,491 682907
1,962,256 3285104
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

0

(i)

i)

)

vi)

The debt securities carry fixed interest at a rate of 7.50% (2022: 565%) per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears and will mature in May 2034 (2022:
January 2023).

The convertible loans carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to
10.00% (2022: 6.00% to 10.00%) per annum, and contained a right to convert
the loans into ordinary shares of the issuers at the maturity date from
September 2024 to October 2026 (2022: June 2023 to September 2024).

The rights of the equity securities are restricted by a loan agreement with a
third party as at 31 December 2022. The restriction has been released during
the current year due to the maturity.

The equity securities contained a puttable option were classified as equity
instruments at FVTPL.

The Group has entered into various forward commodity contracts in order to
protect itself from adverse movements in raw material prices. The forward
commodity contracts are not designated for hedge purposes and are
measured at FVTPL. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging forward
commodity contracts amounting to RMB5,655,000 (2022: RMB2,842,000)
were recognised in profit or loss during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received dividends in the
amounts of RMB19,068,000 (2022: RMB12,915,000) from the equity
instruments at FVTOCI.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

19. Hih R EE (@)

BAE -

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

Vi)

B E F 80 F B IR E E F F E750% (2022 F -
565%) T8 B¥F XN RBR2034F5 A
(20224 : 202341 1) FIH -

AR E R TSR EE F RN TF600%E
10.00% (2022 & : 600% E1000%) 3t & - ¥ B
—{E AT A 2024 F 9 A 2026 F10 A (20224 :
20236 AE2024F 0 ) BIHABERERE
BT A EBIRRMET -

M202F12A318 - RABHMNEFZRNE
= FERB® o %R 5B B EW R A F AR

N

DERBAREBEFABSORATRNEA
FErEE —ERh R -

N AR
AEBCDIVZREAEREN  UREESR
ZEMHEROTAZE - EHERAE O IFE
SRS AE - WIRAR BEF AR NG
B-FR FEMERRRAONARBEED

AR # 56550007 (2022 F : AR #2842,000
TO) BERIBE TR ©

HE20B3F2A3IBLEEFE AEEBEEAR
BEFTAEMCEZEARGZORATIAESRS
#ARMI0,068,0007 (20226 : AR
12,9150007T) °

FE W 15 3R

2023 2022
RMB'000

ARETT

RMB’'000
AR®T T

Non-current B
Finance lease receivables B & TH & AR 7% 1 WA 7,569 33,692
Factoring receivables (RIE AR 75 FE W 30 1B 4,823 8,781
12,392 42473
Current B
Finance lease receivables R E M E RS R FRIE 153,401 152108
Factoring receivables {RIE AR 7% FE U FR I8 484,805 127921
Receivables from supply-chain 1 8 5 R & AR 75 e Uk
financing services HIE 51,179 46,444
689,385 1477763
Less: Provision for impairment OB (382,436) (380,920)
306,949 1,096,843
319,341 1139,316
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e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. FEULTER ()
(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (A) ®ERERBEERRE

Minimum Present value of minimum
lease receivables lease receivables
BIEAERKERRE BREAERKERREERE

2023 2022 2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'00O RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTE AR®TRT ARSTT

Not more than1year E2NES 155,146 154,947 153,401 152,108
Over Tyear but within 5years 18 LA _ES5F AR 8,860 35,724 7,569 33,692
164,006 190,671 160,970 185,800
Less: Unearned finance B ARBEREE
income Wras (3,036) (4.87)
Presentvalue of minimum &K & R B
lease receivables NIERE 160,970 185,800
The Group's finance lease receivables are denominated in AL BB E THE MRS EUGRIE A A
Renminbi. The effective interest rates of the receivables REHE - ZBRKENERF A X
range from 561% t010.78% (2022: 5,61% to 10.02%) per annum. T F561% E1078% (20224 : 561% =
There are no unguaranteed residual values of assets leased 1002%) - HEEABMEESEEN
under finance leases and no contingent rent arrangements ARERFIREE  NEEAETER
that needed to be recognised (2022: Nil). B AT E L HE (20224F : &) ©
The following is a credit quality analysis of these finance AT AREHEERSEERIANEE
lease receivables: BEEOM
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBTT
Not past due 7K 460 2 38,287 63117
Overdue SR L 122,683 122,683
160,970 185,800
The receivables are secured by assets leased under finance ZEWFEABEREEERR SR
leases and cash deposits (where applicable). & (AEm) fERIER -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Cash deposits from finance lease customers are collected
upfront based on certain percentage of the entire value of
the lease contracts. When the lease contracts expire and all
related liabilities and obligations are fulfilled by the
customers, the cash deposit will be returned in full. The
balance of the cash deposit can also be used to settle any
outstanding lease receivables for the corresponding lease
contract.

At the end of the reporting period, RMB71,547,000 (2022:
RMB70,031,000) of the Group's finance lease receivables
was impaired.

FACTORING RECEIVABLES

The Group's factoring receivables arise from the provision of
factoring services to companies located in the PRC. The
credit period granted to each customer is generally within
365 days.

(B)

Factoring receivables are secured by receivables and/or
commercial bills originally owned by the customers, These
receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 4.00% to
15.00% (2022: 4.35% t0 12.00%) per annum.

The maturity profile of the factoring receivables at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

(A)

(B)

20. FEMIHERR ()

B 4 A8 & AR R PR R TE (D)
REMERBEFPRESEEIENE
B2 MEENETADLIELK
R-REEANERAREFEITH
BHRAERTRERR ZRSRER
SEHERE REBWESHBRTAAR
EEARETEE S QR A R WA
THE A5 UL ROR -

RIEHER - ARMBET71,547,000 7T
(20224 : A R¥70,031,0007T) B 7K
EENRERERGERFECHE -

1R 32 BR 7% FE WL FRTE

RE B R RIE RS B U FRIB 2R 8 [A) R
BAGRRERERSE RFEEFPH
EHEIR—M A 365 KA -

REREEUZEBANRKHEFEAR
MEKRFER SKEEEZEKR -
% E IR IEZ T T 400% £1500%
(20224 : 435% & 12.00% ) ) 5 F &
B e

RERE IR - RIEARES U R IEH B
BRI -

2023
RMB’000
AR®T

2022

RMB000
ARBTIT

With a residual maturity of: A B BAPR -
Not more than 3 months TZR3EA 1,521 44270
Over 3 months to 6 months SMTERK EZ6EA 26,691 47724
Over 6 months to 12 months 6ME A E=121EA 12,280 667,607
Over 12 months to 24 months 1218 A LA E & 241 A 4,471 3,781
Over 24 months to 36 months 24 A A EZ 36 @ A 352 -
Overdue 2 %0 A 434,313 519,610
489,628 1,287,992

At the end of the reporting period, RMB309,145,000 (2022:
RMB309,145,000) of the Group's factoring receivables was
impaired, among which RMB135,256,000 (2022:
RMB135,256,000) was provided for certain individual
customer groups.

R EER - AR®3001450007T
(20224 : A R#300,450007T) &
REERNRBRSEBGIED BE -
E i AR #135256,000 7T (2022 4F :
AR #135256,0007T) A% TERE
PRI -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(C) RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN FINANCING
SERVICES

The Group's receivables from supply-chain financing
services arise from the provision of supply-chain financing
services to companies located in the PRC. The credit period
for each customer is generally within 365 days.

These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 9.00%
t016.20% (2022: 9.72% t0 14.40%) per annum.

Certain receivables from supply-chain financing services
amounting to RMB49,435,000 (2022: RMB44,700,000) are
secured by certain interests of companies and personal
guarantees.

The maturity profile of the receivables from supply-chain
financing services at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

FEY K (&)
(C) ftrEdERm S BRI E WA

N £ (B A L 5 b AR 7 E Uk FROE R
B A B A B4R A g Rl AR o
BEEPHEHER—MAEIBLARA -

25 R IEIZ N F 9.00% E1620%
(20224 : Q72% Z1440% ) ) F | &
§+/%\ °

ATHEERERGERRBARE
49,435,00070 (2022%F : AR #
44,700,000 7T) A& F A B #E 2 & (A
AERIEEIR -

R¥RE HR - 4 e 58 B B IR 7% 18 Wk
HWEBIMBERANT

2023
RMB’000

2022
RMB000
ARBTT

AR®TR

With a residual maturity of. LIS
Not more than 3 months TR 31EAR 33,296 23,920
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MERK EZ6EA 12,000 20,780
Over 6 months to 12 months 6ME A E=121E A8 4139 -
Overdue 2 61 HA 1,744 1744
51,179 46,444

At the end of the reporting period, RMB1,744,000 (2022:
RMB1,744,000) of the Group's receivables from supply-chain
financing services was impaired.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default of those companies with
financial conditions, historical loss experience, coverage by letters
of credit or other forms of credit insurance. At the end of the
reporting period, the loss given default for the remaining balance
of loan receivables was not material and has no impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

21. OTHERNON-CURRENT ASSETS

21. HipIERBEE

2023 2022
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARBTR | ARETE
Other long-term receivables E fth = HAfE W KB 22,204 23176
Long-term loan receivables from REE=HREEK
third parties [EEA 61,000 21,000
Long-term lease receivables from KE—RE-ANRPEE
a third party e IR (i 1,117,430 1,087,92
Long-term receivables for disposal of — H& —F# & QG RE
an associate JE W 3 IE 396,003 319,235
Value-added tax ('VAT') recoverable FFEMISER ([EEB]) 132,426 98,725
1,729,063 1,739,328
Less: Provision for impairment R ORERE (50,000) (50,000)
1,679,063 1,689,328

BIEE -

KE—RF=HOERHEEREFOR

i Long-term lease receivables from a third party (i)

Minimum Present value of minimum
lease receivables lease receivables
RIEHEERRE BIEHESEREWFIERE
2023 2022 2023 2
RMB’000 RMBOOO RMB’000
ARBT ARKETT AR¥T T
Not more than1year BN EEEEGE 143,417 170,026 58,555 83,851
Over 1year but within 5 years TFAEESFUR 460,483 480,077 143,685 153,639
Over 5 years but within 10 years 5L FEI0FAA 614,671 600,097 295,801 260,730
Over 10 years but within 15 years 10F R EBI5ELAR 670,879 600,097 492,722 387,921
Over 15 years but within 20 years 15F A EE20F AR 199,665 320,053 185,222 284,902
2,089,115 2,170,350 1,175,985 1171,043
Less: Unearned finance income B REHRENE W (913,130) (999,307)
Present value of minimum lease I &R K KRIE
receivables BIE 1,175,985 1171043

The Group's long-term lease receivables are denominated in Renminbi. The
effective interest rate of the receivables is 728% (2022: 7.28%) per annum.
There are no unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under long-term
leases and no contingent rent arrangements that needed to be recognised
(2022: Nil).

There was no recent history of default and past due amounts for the long-
term lease receivables.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no impairment provided for the
Group's long-term lease receivables.

AEENRBASEBGREBUAREE - B
HKENERER R F728% (20224 1 728%) ©
BECARBEAEEENRERFIGER  NE
FMATFHERNORARELE (2022F « &) °

EHAERUGRIAT BT ENEL MABSHE -

RMEHR - TEAANEE R PEERYGRA
FHEERERE -
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e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

22. INVENTORIES 22. 55

Manufacturing and trading HENES
Property development MEER

2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥STR | ARBTET
5,239,246 5591757
948,029 908229

6,187,275 6,499,986

(A) MANUFACTURING AND TRADING

(A) RERES

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB000
ARTR | AREBTE
Raw materials JRH ¥ 1,939,287 2176,660
Work in progress FEZE in 596,202 527217
Finished goods EERK an 2,703,757 2,887,880
5,239,246 5501757

(B) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (B) MIx#ERE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARTR | ARBTET

Property under development BRPYE

948,029 908229

The property under development is expected to be
completed in more than twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

23. PROPERTIES FROM RECEIVABLES SETTLEMENT  23.

RERPMEBTNRRERREZR
+=@EAREK -

EESERLENFRET: kY E S

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'0O00O

AR®TRT  AR®TET

Completed properties held for sale FIEHENERIME

424,192 -

At the end of the reporting period, properties from receivables
settlement represented the completed properties obtained by the
Group from receivables settlement arrangement and held for
resale. The Group has obtained ownership certificates of the
properties.

The properties are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the properties to their present location and condition.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

24. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24. BB E BHAETR

Contract assets EHEE
Non-current; JERED

2023 2022
RMB0OO
ARBTT

RMB'000
AR®T

Concession operating right R AT AR 41,735 42284
Current: nE :
Renovation and installation works HIEMNLTRIRE 376,736 549,353
Environmental engineering services RIRTERT 1,515 16,678
Concession operating right FRRTAS & 1,289 4,837
389,540 570,868
Less: Impairment R E (1n4,140) (17.580)
275,400 553,288
317,135 595572
Contract liabilities BREE
Current: VEIE
Renovation and installation works HEMNLTRITRE 136,958 125609
Environmental engineering services IRIBTEART 10,654 12,01
Logistics and other related services Wi B E At A8 R AR 7 10,393 13,683
Advances from customers BERPER 2,966,563 3,337,562
3,124,568 3,489,765

The Group's contract assets represent the Group's rights to
consideration for work completed but not yet billed to customers
at the end of the reporting period. The contract assets will be
transferred to trade and bills receivables when the rights become
unconditional, that is, when the Group issue progress billings to
customers based on the certified amount agreed with customers.

At the end of the reporting period, RMB114,140,000 (2022
RMBI17,580,000) was recognised as an allowance for expected
credit losses on contract assets. The Group's trading terms and
credit policy with customers are disclosed in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group's contract liabilities represent the Group's obligations to
transfer goods or services to customers for which the Group has
received consideration, or for which an amount of consideration is
due from the customers.

AEENANEEREASERBEHRE
T LA MR M % P 5t TR R EH R -
ERENRAEGER AR REENS
EFHENZESRATPEHERE
BHEESSERERIRUIGIANER -

RIREHER - AREE14140,000 7T (2022 4 -
AR 175800007T) R AEA N EETEH
EEEERH AEEEEFMNESHEX
MEEBRFEERGA T BREME25 -

AEENANAEBREAREREFEEA
SEERBRELRKEFPRESENE
mE R B
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M2023F12 A31AH

24.

190

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets
atthe end of the reporting period is as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. SHEE SHER@

o

RBEHR REHBEESNEENTRE
R

2023 2022
RMB'000
AR®T

RMB000
ARBFT

Not more than1year E2NES 275,400 553,288
Over 1year T E 41,735 42,284
317,135 505572

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

BREERENERBEBEIHWNT

2023 2022

Note RMB’'000 RMB'000

B 5E ARET ARBTIL

AtTJanuary M1A1HR 17,580 20,787
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) 2 #ER, (B #E) BEEE 7 96,560 (3,207)
At 31 December ®12 A31H 114,140 17,580

For the contract assets arising from renovation and installation
works and environmental engineering services, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates for
the measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the trade and bills receivables as the
contract assets and the trade and bills receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are
based on the invoice date of trade and bills receivables for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (ie, by geographical region, product type, customer type
and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of
credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

24.

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group's contract assets using a provision matrix:

Expected credit loss rate FREEEEEX
Gross carrying amount BRE A
Expected credit losses EHEEERE

24. BB E BHMER @)

A THFIEEAEEE AR GERTEN
AWARMEERBRAR -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRE ARBTE
29.4% 311%
388,251 566,031
14,140 17,580

For the contract assets arising from concession operating right,
since the parties to concession agreements are local government
authorities in the PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low as
at the end of the reporting period. The Group does not hold any
collateral aver the balance.

WRAMEERMEENANEEMNS @ &
REFEFIHEE T AP BT BT #E - N&E
EReRBmEMRNEERRBE - A%
30 4 B A RS A (T o

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES B 5 W RIE R EiR
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE T ARBET T
Trade receivables B 5 WG IE 6,759,727 6,430,705
Bills receivable JrE Uk 22 4 131,717 235,092
Less: Provision for impairment OB E RS (2,357,976) (1,792,754)
4,533,468 4,873,943

The Group's major customers are independent distributors, civil
contractars, property developers, utility companies and
municipalities in China. Depending on the market condition,
marketing tactics and relationships with the customers, the
Group's trading terms with its independent distributors may
change from settlement on an advance receipt basis to giving a
credit period of generally one month or more, if appropriate. The
Group does not have a standardised and universal credit period
granted to the non-distributor customers. The credit period of an
individual non-distributor customer is considered on a case-by-
case basis and is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate.
Sales to small, new, or short-term customers are normally
expected to be settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly after
the goods delivery. No credit term period is set by the Group for
small, new and short-term customers,

AEENETEEF/TEMNE L HERA
IARTIRAZEE FHERERN ABF
ERBRMEBEEHA - AREEFHR ™
SRR EEFHOEE AIREEBEY D
HENEZRFABRARTAEEETLR
By —R—EAKENERHR (WE
B)  AKBEVYEGL-AIFEDHEAELRT
BRENERBR - @RS HEREPOE
RERGEFENBRIME  LEHERD
O (AEE) - HRER MK EHE
FrIHE —REHUBAR T A IR RER
MHANGEHE AKEYESNEE HR
RHIEPRIERHAR
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31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
loss allowance, is as follows:

25. BoEWRIERER (&)

EZREWFERERSABEEREEE -
RIMEBER REENE ZEWZRIENE
BB ZH BT HNBREEREERENERERS
Wi -

2023 2022

RMB'000 RMB0OO
AR®TR | ARBTIT

Not more than 3 months NZ 5 1E A 1,562,030 1912294
Over 3 months to 6 months SEANREZ=6MEA 663,173 819,347
Over 6 months to 12 months 6MEA EZ=12MEA 884,132 829,209
Over 1year to 2 years TFLAEE2F 897,964 973127
Over 2 years to 3 years 2FEAN EE3F 352,300 212,998
Over 3 years 3FME 173,869 126,968

4,533,468 4,873,943

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the
Group's trade and bills receivables are as follows:

AL EE 5 e R KRR B R 5 1E B
eI -

2023 2022

Note RMB’'000 RMB'000

B 5 ARET ARBTIL

At1January ®W1A1H 1,792,754 1264,048
Impairment losses recognised ERRBEERE 7 579,675 547,056
Amounts written off as uncollectible i H A AT U E B € B (14,453) (18,350)
At 31 December R12 A31H 2,357,976 1,792,754

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on the invoice date for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e, by
geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. B 5 EIRIERERE (&)
Impairment provision amounting to RMB1,612,849,000 (2022: RBERR KERENTFOHBEER
RMB1,253,460,000) were provided for trade and bills receivables BER il K2 B 75 AR 0 A0 7K 5k (B ) {2 B 45 58 4E B
from certain individual customers at the end of the reporting % ERETEINEFNEZERZKER
period after taking into account of the restriction on financing SEFTRBER B ARK1612849,0007T
management and the financial position of these individual (20224 : AR®12534600007T) °

customers and credit enhancement held by the Group.

Except for the receivables from certain individual customers Br b atE FERIE P e EKRIESN - H R
mentioned above, the remaining trade and bills receivables are BORBRBELZEBEREARELZ TILEFA
related to a large number of diversified customers and set out B AT RASEFEREBERGTENE
below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the HEZHRYFIARZBENEERBRER
Group's remaining trade and bills receivables using a provision

matrix:

2023
Within 1to 2to Over
1year 2years 3years 3years Total

1R 122%F 2835 3FELL At
RMB'0O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARBTR AR®TR ARWTRT AR®TR

Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 3.65% 15.46% 28.61% 65.54% 14.36%
Gross carrying amount BREAE 3,172,144 1,019,149 493,478 504,579 5,189,350
Expected credit losses TBEEEER (n5,631) (157,608) (141178)  (330,710)  (745,127)

3,056,513 861,541 352,300 173,869 4,444,223

2022
Within 1to 2to Over
| year 2 years Syears 3years Total

1R 1E2%F 2%3F  3FHUL A8t
RMBOOO  RMB0OOO RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB0O0OO
ARBTT ARBTI ARBTT ARBTT ARETZT

Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 368% 8.38% 1767% 7023% 10.82%
Gross carrying amount FEmaE 3,530,667 766104 258,71 426,476 4981958
Expected credit losses TBHEEER (129,910) (64163) (45713)  (299508)  (539,204)

3400,757 701,941 212,998 126968 4442664
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31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

26.

194

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

26. FR - RERAMBEKRKIE

2023

RMB’000

AR T
Prepayments TR 657,846 1,654,529
VAT recoverable R I (E R 632,189 373788
Corporate income tax recoverable FEMEEMEN 19,858 26,481
Deposits birgia 204,508 244,008
Current portion of long-term lease receivables & HITH & UGB R BN B 5 58,555 83,851
Other receivables Hh W IR 445,031 408,699
Other loan receivables Hoth JE B R 410,102 224240
2,428,089 3,015,596
Less: Provision for impairment B R E R (241,849) (91288)
2,186,240 2,924,308

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the
Group's prepayment and other receivables are as follows:

24 85 B 98 0 T 5 A L1 5
BERBIT

2023 2022

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

B =% AR®T T ARETRT

AtTJanuary R1ATH 91,288 77,696
Impairment losses recognised ERRREER 7 181,702 20,748
Amounts written off as uncollectible WEE AT RO M & EE (3114) (18,156)
At 31 December K12 A31H8 241,849 91288

Except for the other loan receivables, the financial assets included
in the above balances are unsecured, interest-free and receivable
on demand. The effective interest rates of the other loan
receivables range from 4.80% to 12.00% (2022: 480% to 12.00%) per
annum.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

27. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 27. HERMITHEXR
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T
Restricted cash: ZEHRS
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities ERRITRENEREZS 1,397,504 626,582
Cash and cash equivalents: RekReEHEY :
Time deposits with original maturity of three & 8377 3k (R EBES [R A HAR
months or less when acquired B=EAHAT) 59,102 572,982
Cash and bank balances & RIRITAE 84 5,096,378 5162206
5,155,480 5735188
Cash and bank deposits R RBITER 6,552,984 7361770
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank FRRIBITHER KT BRITEFERFED
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying F BRI R BREUR S o 52 HATE BATF A BARR
periods between one day and twelve months and earn interest at NF—RE+_EATFLIREREHEH
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances AR R BRERA B - IRITAE A R X PR HI 3R
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with no SFEMPAITHEE LB EERIFARIT o
recent history of default,
28. ASSET HELD FOR SALE 28. FHEHEEE
The Group decided to sell one of its investment properties located HRASERBEENEANERE
in Toronto, Canada because the Group changed its development IAFHEREMRMERZRMER—IER
plan in Canada. At the end of the reporting period, this investment BYME -PREPR ZBEREVECR
property was ready for sale and therefore was classified as asset A EARRE - Bt D ERFELEEE -
held for sale.
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%STR | ARBTE
Asset held for sale FIELEEE 331,001 -
This investment property was written down to the fair value of ZEREMER DB RFEL S EERM
RMB331,001,000 before it was classified as asset held for sale, and WMERXREEARKS300000T KA
a fair value loss of RMB32,137,000 was included in profit or loss for REEEBEARK 32137000 LB AREF
the vear. EiEam o
29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 29. BSEMRERER
2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBTT
Trade payables B P RNIA 3,280,076 2,395,833
Bills payable FE 4R 5,089,109 5,640,406

8,369,185 8,036,239

The trade payables are interest-free and are normally settled on BEEMNRTEBEINRE  SEHHRERBRE A30
terms of 30 to 90 days. FO0K e
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30.

196

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

29. BOEMNRIERER (&)

RESHER AEENEHENKARE
BRERAHNRESTAT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB000
ARBTT

AR®TR

Not more than 3 months T% R 3ER 4,881,254 4,450,477
Over 3 months to 6 months SEALAEZE6REA 2,936,292 2,382,825
Over 6 months to 12 months 6ME A EZ=12ME A 420,588 1,077,242
Over 1year to 2 years TN EE2F 48,906 62,797
Over 2 years to 3 years 2ENEESF 29,619 7,776
Over 3 years 3FELLE 52,526 45122

8,369,185 8,036,239

The Group's trade payables include RMB1,047,186,000 (2022
RMB359,040,000) due to suppliers that have signed up to a
supply chain financing programme, under which the Group issues
standard debt certificate based on the supplier's invoice. The
suppliers can receive the payment on the basis of each debt
certificate with the following two options: (i) to receive the payment
in accordance with the originally agreed payment terms from the
Group; or (i) to receive an early payment that is lower than its value
by discounting the debt to the participating bank. If option (ii) is
selected, the Group's liability is assigned to be due to the
participating bank rather than the supplier. The value of the debt
by the Group remains unchanged and should be paid by the
Group in accordance with the originally agreed payment terms.
The Group assesses the arrangement against those indicators if
the debt the suppliers have assigned to the participating banks
under such programme continues to meet the definition of trade
payables or whether it should be classified as borrowings. At the
end of the reporting period, the balance of debts assigned to the
participating banks that meet the criteria of trade payables is
RMB773,514,000 (2022: RMB206,020,000).

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

AEENESREMNFERERERD 2 HEH
FEEmETENEERINMNARE
1,047,186,0007C (20224 : AR ¥
359,040,0007T) * I A E B R IEHERE
BT BIZEERRE o HIER A FEEUA
TREEEy —WRESEEEERENMNR:
() 1% PR ZN £ B JR S0 109 S8 A0S SR 3R UL R+ 3%
(NFE @M ERTETESITE A NIRA
WERREEBENN R - HIBEFE()E -
AREBNEBELRAEMNZERT  MIEEN
HEm AEEESNEEEETE B
75 B JE 1R 8RR So 0 E B9 G SRS A e
AEBRBHEBIEZTEZTHE  WBRE
FZETEBHERNESEEALERETH
BERRHERAEIRNRENES
NZEEBRTESEAE R - REH
K BEEFLERTMXFTLEZEN
RIEZENEB L& e B AR 773514000
7T (20224 + AR¥206,0200007T) °

30. HttFEFHRRIER FESTE A

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%STR | ARBTE

Accruals FERT & 240,780 264,966
Salaries and welfare payables e % & REF 286,365 279,846
Payable for acquisition of an associate Uiz B — PR Bt & B A9 B S 3R 0B - 450,000
Other payables H fth fE AT 501 1,168,149 1187,965
1,695,294 2182717

The financial liabilities included in the above balances are interest-
free and repayable on demand.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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31. BORROWINGS 31. &=
2023 2022
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Current B
Unsecured bank loans IR ITER 6,549,400 6,764,902
Current portion of long-term REOEERRITER
unsecured bank loans KR ENEB 1,631,858 318,000
Secured bank loans BEBEITER 141,355 129,322
Current portion of long-term REPBHEMRITER
secured bank loans KR ENEB 115,934 10,933
Current portion of unsecured syndicated loans 43K 18 45 B & KA R 8 26 2,236,969 -
QOther borrowings H A fE 5 17,037 34,482
10,692,553 7257639
Non-current FERE
Unsecured bank loans IR RIRITE N 3,624,296 3411533
Unsecured syndicated bank loans AR 1 SR B BN 4,921,822 0,088,342
Secured bank loans BEMIEITER 105,915 278168
8,652,033 12,778,043
19,344,586 20,035,682
Analysed into borrowings repayable: DITRBBERER
Within one year or on demand —FAYIEE K 10,692,553 7257639
In the second year E-FR 1,909,172 5761502
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEEIFTRN(REEEMTE) 6,528,650 6,780,831
More than five years ZHAF 214,211 235,710
19,344,586 20,035,682

Note:

The effective interest rates of the Group's borrowings range from 2.50% to
7.07% (2022: 2.80% to 8.37%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans are secured by
land and its concession rights of subsidiaries, investment property of a
subsidiary, personal guarantees provided by shareholders of subsidiaries and
the guarantees provided by shareholders of subsidiaries. .

At 31 December 2022, the secured bank loans are secured by land and its
concession rights of a subsidiary, leasehold lands and buildings of
subsidiaries, loan receivables of a subsidiary, the concession rights of a
subsidiary and a personal guarantee provided by a shareholder of that
subsidiary and the guarantee provided by shareholders of a subsidiary.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's borrowings are denominated in
US dollar, HK dollar, Renminbi, Australian dollar, Canadian dollar and Baht
which are equivalent to RMB4,242,510,000 (2022: RMB7,264,407,000),
RMB4,492,342,000 (2022: RMB3,297,713,000), RMB10,281,695,000 (2022:
RMB9,251,835,000), RMB281,206,000 (2022: RMB179,124,000), RMB622,000
(2022: RMB504,000) and RMB46,211,000 (2022: RMB42,099,000), respectively.

AEEBBRNEREMNEN F250%F7.07%
TE (20224 : 280% E6.37%) ©

RIBEHMR - BEBRTERTIANBRARN L
R RS ERE  —RBRARMNREDE -
o I8 2 R BCR A (B A B AR T BT S 2 B AR SR 0 42
IRIEIEA -

MR202F12A318 - BEBRITERTIUA—FH
B S A AR L R HAFRF A& - B A RIMTE
EXELRIET - —HBA RN ERER
—FNBAR M EEERZNBAR &
% 38 A Ml A PR AR DA K2 — B BB A A) AR BB M9 FE IR
VEH R o

REREBER  AEBUET - B AR R
T M EEHRAENERDBSERARKE
4242510000 7T (20224 = A R #7264,407,000
JL) ~ AR# 44923420007 (20226 « AR#E
3,297,713,0007T) + AR ¥10,281,695000 7T
(20224 : AR#0,251,8350007L) - AR#
281206,000 7T (2022 £ : AR#179,24,0007T)
AR B6220007T (20224 + AR 5040007T)
kAR 46,211,000 (2022F : AR
42,099,0007T) °
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32. PROVISION FOR LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE 32. REESRAEE
BENEFITS
The movements in the present value of the defined benefit RERMNEEREZHNT

obligations are as follows:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETE
At1January R®1A1R 6,387 5219
Current service cost (note 7) BIVEARR 5 A AR (M 5E7) 851 774
Interest cost BB 90 76
Benefit paid [=ENE=Fl (616) -
Exchange realignment b 54, o B 196 318
At 31 December M®12A31H 6,908 6,387
The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the REBMNBEERENROIBBEREH
defined benefit abligations were carried out by NIDA Consulting NIDA Consulting Center (R BBt B 5 &
Center, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. B MERET -
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the REEMREANEERERRNAT :

reporting period are as follows:

2023 2022

Discount rate REIR = 1.4%-1.9% 14%-19%
Expected rate of salary increases TE B T & AR g 3.0% 3.0%
Staff turnover rate BIRAE 0.0%-31.0% 00%-310%
The Group expect to pay RMBILO million of long-term employee AEBEBEAT - FEIXNRHARERIA
benefits in the next year (2022: RMB0.6 million). EB1088T (202F : A\REBOSEET) °
At the end of the reporting period, the weighted average duration RBEHR REEESBN A EHNEF
of the liabilities for long-term employee benefits is 6 to 10 years HHR A6 EI0F (2022F : 6EI0F)

(2022: 6 to 10 years).

198 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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32. PROVISION FOR LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE 32. REIEEEFEE @
BENEFITS (Continued)
A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at RBERREABRINEEHRE DTS
the end of the reporting period is shown below: AT :
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in defined in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
inrate  obligations inrate  obligations
Bk REBHEME Bk REBHEME
B ¥ GRS wmA i CRA)
RMB’000 RMB’'000
% AR®T T % ARET R
2023
Discount rate 838 = 1 (394) ) 415

Expected rate of salary TEEITE

increases R & 1 581 ) (519)
Staff turnover rate B IRAR 1 (394) (U] 83
2022
Discount rate 838 & 1 (346) (1) 385

Expected rate of salary TEETE

increases R 1 443 0 (404)
Staff turnover rate BImAkE 1 (346) (1) 7
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a PR GURE AT T E R ERERN R
method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit EMRELECEEPMBARERNEES
obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions REZEN T EETE - UREDHIDER
occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity —EAEXRBEREEE - MAAEHEMERRRE
analysis is based on a change in a significant assumption, BIE BREIMRLRXRAERINE
keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis ETNERES  DHARNRKEEH I KRAT8E
may not be representative of an actual change in the defined BEEL -

benefit obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions
would oceur in isolation of one another.
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33. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Selling right from non-controlling FEERAR &
shareholders e

Note RMB’000
MI=E AR® T

33. Hih 2R aE

2023 2022
RMB'0O00

Note:

i) The fair value of this financial liability has been estimated using valuation
technique with unobservable inputs. Management has reviewed the valuation
result by verifying all major inputs and assumptions as well as assessing the
reasonableness of such valuation.

The Group entered into certain sale and purchase agreements to acquire
70% equity interest in Jiangsu Yongbao during 2018. Pursuant to the
agreements, the non-controlling shareholders have the right to sell the
remaining 30% equity interest to the Group within a two-year period after
three years from the date of acquisition. The right lapsed in the current year.

200 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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FEMBHmRMEE
31 December 2023
R2023F12 A31H
34. DEFERRED TAX 34. BEHIR
The major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and their RAEAFERBAFECERNEZIRTER
movements during the current and prior years are as follows: BHEE/ (BB REEBHOT :
Fairvalue
adjustments Withholding loss  Fairvalue  Fairvalue
arising from Fair value taxon availablefor adjustments  adjustments
investment adjustments  distributable offsetting  arising from of equity Re-
properties  Provisionfor  Accelerated  arising from profits of against financial ~ investments measurement
andother  impairment tax acquisitionsof ~ subsidiaries Deferred future  instrument  atfairvalue  ondefined Right-of-use lease
properties ofassets depreciation  subsidiaries  inthe PRC income taxable profit atFVTPL  throughOCI  benefit plan assets liabilities
BOAEE
RENE BOAEE HARERE
= BRKEAR FENEAR TREEE  HAREN  GEORE
HEN  MESE TRKEHH RAERE  SHIAN REH
HERR il ] RRAER 4 ERhES AAEESERE A ERER
RBOO R R 0 R RUBI Al R
At31 December 2021 R202%12A3R (337230) 253366 (68555) 3094) (644627 18636 8398 (7804 56001 1043 - - 851713
Ffiect of adoption of amendments B BEEEIFNR
toHKAS 12 (note 22(8) BAAHYE (W22 - - - - - - - - - - - 4584 4584
At1January 2022 restated) R0N%F AR (BE5)) [337.230) 253366 (68555) 3094) (644627 18636 8398 (7804 56001 1043 - 1584 (806072
Creditedcharged)toproftarloss 5tA/(H18) £& Bk
forthe year (estated) note &) (BE31) (H&£0) [0202) 90848 128448 19302 - 5204 90902 26495 - 10 o) 5756 18101
Credted/[charged) toother HA/(ME)ER
comprehensive income ifezE
for the year Wi - - - - - - - (37996) - - - 37996)
Exchange realignment EXAE 834 253 157 1625) - - Rl - 64 - - (9426)
At31 December 2022 And RO2ELATIA
1 anuary 2003 estete) RODSEIRIB(EER) (37504 344467 (97060) (13264 (A48 23840 99,681 18691 18,005 127 (108) 5307 (835393)
Creditedcharged) to profitorloss 5tA/(118) FR B3
forthe year ote ) (Hito) nRY R 99889 676 109679 [96)  (3673)) (10122 - 8 106 7309 46074
Credited/charged)toother — 3tA/(H18)EE
comprehensive inoome pida]
forthe year [V - - - - - - - - (11,636) - - - (1,636)
Bxchange realignment EiRE (5.437) 82 184 4 - - 1,040 - - 39 - - (4,018)
At 31 December 2023 R0BELAIA (415,702) 4733 (97,087) (107,014) (444,948) 23,344 63,988 8,569 6,369 1381 = 58,796 (424,973)
# During the year ended 31 December 2023, the amount represented that the # HE2023FRANBILFE  ZEBEARRA
realised deferred tax liabilities of RMBI199,679,000 arising from dividend FERMBEARMEIMEEESRREMEEN
declared by the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC to their foreign investors. EERREHREEEARK1996790007T ©
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the amount represented that HE202FRANBILFE  Z2EA/RRA
deferred tax provision of RMBI83,384,000 on the distributable profits of the P BB X B AT 3 R g I E A I A B IE
Company's subsidiaries in the PRC after offsetting the realised deferred tax B ARI183384000T WA K EZZEH B R
liabilities of RMB183,384,000 arising from dividends declared by these RAIMAEINEEEERREMEENETREL
subsidiaries to their foreign investors. FIEAEARE1833840007T
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34. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

34. EEHIA (&)

2023
RMB'000
AR®T

2022
RMB0OO
ARBT T

(Restated)
(&)

Gross deferred tax assets recognised inthe  R4RA BB IR AR
consolidated statement of financial position  FIRER B E ERA 661,170 572255

Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised inthe  R4RE B Ak R R R IER
consolidated statement of financial position  HIRIER BB E4A%E (1,086,143) (1407,648)
(424,973) (835393

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in China in respect of their
earnings generated from 1 January 2008, The applicable rate for
the Group is 5%.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities of RMB388,914,000 (2022: RMB279,496,000)
in respect of temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries, amounting to RMB7,778,285,000 (2022:
RMB5,589,928,000), that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

35. DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents government grants received by the
Group as financial subsidies for the renovation of factories and
machineries or the construction of new factory premises in
Guangdong, Changchun, Hunan, Hainan, Daging, Hubei, Yunnan,
etc. and rental income received in advance from certain of the
Group's employees for leasing the staff quarters.

The government grants are released to profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant premises by equal annual
instalments, while rental income received in advance is
recognised on the straight-line basis over the respective lease
terms.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited

202 ¢ g s mERERA R

Pz S H R B A 3 B BT B A B B 2008 4F 1
R1BREREAEFNMOIRMBEMS » A%
EEBMNTERMERH - ASE/EAMRE
B 5% o

RBERR ARARRZEHZEHBE A
AR BEHEK  BZEEFRARKBERS
KA REME R K MAEB Y BERZS
WBARAD RaMNEREREABARE
7,778,285,0007C (2022F : AR
5589928000 T) MIEER B A E (AR
K% SR 5 A 2 ) AR 388,914,000
7T (20224 : AR#2794960007T) °

35. BTN

EEW SR AR EPRIBF B - 1R
HEER K& P 88 KE #i
K B F 8 TR sk BLE ¥ TR
XM B UEEAKERETRE
BEARWBRWEEE T EEHEekE -

RN AEREERRAIERFRARK
FUFSHRBAR D AR - IR UERA
A& U e %% B H A B AROARER ©
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. IzX
Shares B 4 2023 2022
Authorised: HE

20,000,000,000 (2022: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000000 (20224 : 20,000000,000) fx ~ HK$1,000,000,000 HK$1,000,000,000

ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SREESETNLE AR 1,000,000,000%t 100000000077
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
3102418400 (2022: 3102,418/400) 3102418400 (20224 : 3102418,400) f& HK$155,120,920 HK$155,]120,920
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SREAELSETNLE AR 155,120,920 % 7t 15512092087
Equivalent to EER RMB135,344,000 RMB135,344,000
AR#135,344,000t AR™1353440007T
37. RESERVES 37. f#tE

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign joint
venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
subsidiaries which are established in the PRC has been
transferred to reserve funds which are restricted for use.

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 38.
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group's subsidiaries adopted a share option scheme on
15 January 2021 (the 2021 Share Option Scheme’) and
another share option scheme on 25 October 2022 (the 2022
Share Option Scheme’), respectively, for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.

AEEAFERBEFENHESBELE
BYPORNGEAEREHRAZT -

REEBERARFING EEENOBEREERR
B AKBEETSBEKAH B QAR D
HENEBREMARYRINFEREES -

LI B B A9 3% £

(A) EERRFESTE
BHE R BB AREEN KL EE
HEBMNAEERSE A REBHK
B AT DRIR20214E1 815 B # M —
TEERAE 2 ([2021 F R T2 ])
ER2022FI0 25 B M S — B
REAE T &) ([2022 FRERHERTEI) -
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 38. LU {3 B ERE ST @)
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) (A) BB RESTE (40
The following share options were outstanding under the FRN - BRESEIETHRITENE
Share Option Scheme during the year: M -
2021Share 2022 Share
Option Scheme Option Scheme
2021 F B RS & 2022 FRE R RERT &
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price Number price Number
pershare ofoptions pershare of options
SR mE B IR i
FHTEE BREKE FHTEE BREXKE
HK$ RY=
BT AR
At1January 2022 M2022%F1H1H 228 29,666 - -
Granted during the year FABEH - - 195  15000,000
Exercised duringtheyear ~ ERE{TE 228 (29,666) 195 (15000,000)
At 31 December 2022 and 2022412 A 318
1January 2023 and K 2023F1H18
31 December 2023 AR 2023412 A 318 - - - -
No share options have been exercised during the year (2022: FAMETEBERRE (20224F -
15,029,666). 15,029,666 17) °
No share option was granted and no share option expense REBZE2023F12ANBIEFE  #E
was recognised during the year ended as at 31 December R BB R RE R B AR B o
2023,
A total of 15,000,000 share options were granted and share REBZE202F12A3BIEFE B
option expense of RMB47,850,000 was recognised during i & #£15,000,000 17 i A% 7 K 52
the year ended 31 December 2022, & #E A 2 A R ¥ 47,850,000 7T ©
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no RERE R - AR B P % A B AR
share option outstanding under these two share option ST 81T T I 8 15 R AT 2 B AR (2022
schemes (2022: Nil). F:E) -
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
(B) SHARE AWARD SCHEME

38. LU AR T (@)
(B) M7 # Mt &

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the "Share Award Scheme’) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons to the Group and to
offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted talent
and persannel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group.

Eligible persons include any individuals being employees,
directors, officers, consultants or advisers of any members
of the Group or any affiliate who the Board or its delegate(s)
considers, in their sole discretion, to have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, Shares will be
purchased by the trustee from the open market out of cash
contributed by the Company and held on trust for the
selected participants until such Shares are vested with the
relevant selected participants in accordance with the
Scheme Rules. No new Shares will be granted under the
Share Award Scheme.

The total amount of the funds contributed to the Scheme by
the Company shall not exceed HK$750,000,000 and the
Board shall at its absolute discretion to determine the
amount of fund contributed to the Share Award Scheme for
each financial year of the Company.

AR 20184 8 A28 B R4 17 82
Bhat a8l ([RR 2B AT &) LB ER
FEEBATEHEAEEMRELHER
KAA T & - #E RSl ik &
AT RABUBEREBNTEL
B RRER o

BERALBREFELAHERREE
FIERBE R R/AKEEHER
EEERIA L - BMEAIAREEK S
NEAREBBEARNES &% -
THAER  BRHEAA -

RIFR D R B R A FREAR
MARRRHENRE B ARTSEEA
Bty > WIAGEFEHEAREES BAR
B BEERBABROREFERNEE
REBREEZ2EABLL - ARAHA
SIRBER D BB R LR -

AATEZTERNENESBRETS
HBiB7500000008 L MEFE2 K
PRNEEFAQRERTRERY
ORI LENES S -
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
(B) SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

38. Uizt AEREN (@)
(B) MRt} EEE =& ()

The Company shall not make any further grant of award
which will result in the aggregate number of Shares
underlying all grants made pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme (excluding award shares that have been forfeited in
accordance with the Share Award Scheme) to exceed 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company without
sharehalders’ approval. The total number of non-vested
award shares granted to a selected participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of issued shares at all time,

During the year, no ordinary shares of the Group on the
Stock Exchange were purchased for the Share Award
Scheme (2022: Nil). At the end of the reporting period,
22,991,000 ordinary shares have been purchased (2022:
22,991,000 ordinary shares).

No shares have been awarded under the Share Award
Scheme since the adoption.

fim AR AR R AR (D SR B 5T 819 K A By
EEBERG CReERER D EE
EE 2 r SRENRR D) BB BB A
NAEIE BT AR S A REREH
A BTN SEEREAMER - 528
TE 28 AR IR 2B AT &l AT R B
MR B DA TEBBE
IR R B B 1T AR D A B/ 1% ©

FAAEEBRERBIMEELR
f& AR R 0 B2 R &l (2022 4F « 4&) -
REEBMR AEEDEE
22,991,000 E B (2022 4F :
22001000 L E @A) -

ARE) AR LR B DA - A
AR () SRR A B AR

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. SAE®E

RBEHRR  AEMTETMEAKRE
& (20224 : &) -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

40. COMMITMENTS 40. %1

The Group had the following contractual commitments at the end RIEBR - AEEHEF AT & LR :

of the reporting period:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'O00O

AR®BTRT AR®TET

Property, plant and equipment and W - BB KR EM

investment properties KEME 2,072,082 1663163
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 41. BN B R &R
BALANCES
(A) THE GROUP’'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH A) FRAXAEEHEBFEBALTHEKX
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR X%
2023 2022
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B &E ARET ARBTT
Connected transactions BEXS
Transactions with companies under B % B 2R — (7 E BZH 8
the common control of a director: NAINR S -
Sales of goods, services, utilitiesand  $HE&dn - RH - AREE
others K E (i) 1,350 6,804
Rental income e = (i 1,349 1269
Rental expenses HemEZ (iiiy 1,383 4,086
Purchase of materials e MR (i) 16,817 18198
Purchase of machinery and/or R, 3
equipment & (v 206,151 181,660
Purchase of electronic accessories BT TR+ (V) 10,285 3121
Purchase of other intangible assets IR H M EF EE v)* 407 2,088
Hotel expenses HIEE R (i) 3,200 1261
Non-connected transactions FEERS
Purchase of goods, equipment, mEtENRRESER
utilities and rental services BECVNES 95
from associates HER® (vii) 201,576 18,831
Sales of goods, services, ) — el 2 2 Al
utilities and others to HEE® - k% -
an assoclate NASEREM (0 3,820 2166
Loans to associates M &N EE K (Vi) 31,138 67,022
Borrowings from an associate and R 8 — & QA RMER X
related interest expenses EEF B (ix) 779 16,508
Design and maintenance services &2 EREHIERS
from a joint venture K& RS (x) 21,292 3,600
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A 31H

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(A) THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

208

Note:

(i)

(1)

()

(viii)

(x)

Sales of goods, services and others to related companies were made
with reference to the prices and conditions offered by the Group to the
third-party customers, Utilities were provided by related companies at
cost.

Rental income from related parties was made with reference to the
prices and conditions offered by the Group to the third-party
customers.

Rental expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

Purchases of materials from related companies were made based on
mutually agreed terms.

Purchases of machinery, equipment, electronic accessories and other
intangible assets from related companies were made with reference
to the prices and conditions offered by the related companies to their
third-party customers.

Hotel expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

Purchases of goods, equipment, utilities and rental services from
associates were made on normal commercial terms negotiated on an
arm'’s length basis by the parties with reference to the prevailing
market prices.

The covenants of loans to associates were based on mutually agreed
terms.

The covenants of borrowings from an associate were based on
mutually agreed terms.

Services provided by a joint venture were based on mutually agreed
terms.

These related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules but are exempted from complying with the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules,

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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a1. BABEE N 35 R4 (&)

(A) FRAEEEBBALTHEKX
X5 (@)

L

(i)

(viil)

(i)

i

R ARHEER  REREATIIA
AEBERE=7FP RO ERREE
RBRETT - AMFEETHIRAA BB
nEEft -

KEREHALHESKETI AR EE R
E=NEFPRLMERRGERSRETT
HeMXHRET BENGRAE
METIZE T HE N R AREBE o
Hes o RS BEFERMNAGETEED
BE2ZREBMARMNE - TEFPALNE
REGIHEFBEBARBE
EIEEBRET BTN GREE
B 'k AREENAERBHIRYE

FLEER TS ERERTERHEN
ERBEERABERFBE -

A ERRRERERNEHEDRIEES
B K IRREE -

kA — & AR A E KA R TR IR
8877 W TE MY R R EEE -

BEDETHRETT 9 E R R R -
ZERA LR 5 I EK LT R A 14A
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(B) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

a1. BABEE N T3 5 R (&)

(B) EEEAEEALHAER

Note
M

2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®STR | ARBTET

Balances with companies underthe B ZMHARZ - ES

common control of a director B A B R A R
arising from: xa -
Deposits paid for the purchase of BEMEE R R
machinery and/or equipment X T HRE (i 199,372 165,577
Purchase of machinery and/or FEEMEE R,
equipment Fl (i 14,414 36,366
Sales of module, utilities and others  $H&REIE - AAEE R HEA (i) 3,454 1,895
Balances with assocliates arising from: BB 4 N B AR 5K S -
Purchase of goods, equipment, RBEEm ®E 2AFE
utilities and rental services MHEE R (i 5,408 1567
Sales of module, services, utilities HEBLR - RS -
and others NASEREM (i) 1,463 784
Borrowings from an associate and 2R B —EH & 2 A ME R K&
related interest payable MR A (V) 16,779 16,508
Note: MEE

(i) The balances are included in the Group's deposits paid for the
purchase of land, property, plant and equipment.

(1) The balances are included in the Group's trade payables and other
payables and accruals,

(ifi) The balances are included in the Group's trade receivables and other
receivables.

(iv) The balances are included in the Group's borrowings and other
payables and accruals,

fi)

()

EMFTAREEBE L  UE  BER
RTINS -

BB ARKENE BENREME M
BN RBERERER

BT AR KB E S EYUGRRME
FEUFRIR

B BR AT A S B AY i SR EL B SRR
RERTER -
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31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

210

(C)

(D)

COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into lease
agreements with a director and a company under the
common control of a director to lease properties for
operations, and sale and purchase agreements with a
company under the common control of a director to
purchase machinery and/or equipment for production. The
capital commitments of RMB35,185,000 (2022:
RMB183,211,000) have been included in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements,

COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP'S KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of the Company's directors and the senior
management was as follows:

a1. BABEE N 35 R4 (&)

(C) EEEEEEAN LM AREEIE
REBAETHERARAHEWEEL
ERRE-—RZEER—HERT A
EFEHHOQRTLAERZ U A
BEREL SREFEERGE—
MERE —NEEEHNARGLE
E i o AR 351850007 (2022
F£ - AR¥I183211,0007T) B & A&
BERGRETBMERM L0 -

(D) XEBMETEEEAEHMH

AAREFRSREREOFIHIT

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARBTT

Short-term employee benefits HEEEREA 28,709 28,863
Post-employment benefits RIKEREH 282 283
28,991 29146

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 42. e TRMAREENE
INSTRUMENTS
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) €T E¥EEA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBERR FEeRIANKEE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as OB
follows:
Financial assets TREE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000O
AR T ARET T
Financial assets at amortised cost: 15 #E 15 5 K Z R 69 & B B & -
Loan receivables JE W 1E 5K 20 319,341 1139,316
Trade and bills receivables E 5 EWRIE M EE 25 4,533,468 4,873,943
Financial assets included in A CE Ath B W SRR Y
other receivables TREE 898,845 878214
Financial assets included in STAREMIERBEERN
other non-current assets TREE 1,546,637 1,590,603
Cash and bank deposits Be MIRITFER 27 6,552,984 7361770
13,851,275 15843846
Financial assets at AT EBEFAELMEE
FVTOC) Wasm T fEE -
Debtinstruments at BEAREBEFAEMEZE
FVTOCI WammEE LA 19 141,873 33,580
Equity instruments at BARBEFAEMEE
FVTOC! W m AT A 19 1,469,331 2,242,382
1,611,204 2276462
Financial assets at BT BEE A Bz
FVTPL: LHEE
Debtinstruments at BRAABEGABESN
FVTPL BEBETH 19 106,848 148,037
Equity instruments at BARBEFABRY
FVTPL AT AR 19 230,876 828,961
Funds at FVTPL BEARBEFABENES 19 13,328 14,882
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMIT A 19 - 16,762
351,052 1,008,642
15,813,531 19,128,950
Annual R

eport 2023
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M2023F12 A31AH

42. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

212

(A)

(B)

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 15 # #55% K7 Br ey & g B 1&

42. SR TANAREENE @
(A) €mIAER (@)

TRaE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT

AR®TR

Trade and bills payables ZHRENFIERER 29 8,369,185 8,036,239
Financial liabilities included in other  5F A E {th FE 1~ 3k 78 &
payables and accruals ErERNSREE 1,408,929 1,902,931
Borrowings fa& K 3 19,344,586 20,035,682
Other long-term payables Hfth = B JE (< 5008 5,472 8,903
29,128,172 29,983,755
Financial liabilities at BT BE A Bz
FVTPL: THRE
Other financial liabilities HEthesrAE 33 - 5230
29,128,172 29,088,085

FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

Assets measured at amortised cost:

The fair values of loan receivables, trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in other receivables,
cash and bank deposits, trade and bills payables, the
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
current portion of borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIRVALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Assets measured at amortised cost: (Continued)

The fair values of financial assets included in other non-
current assets, non-current partion of borrowings and other
long-term payables have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The difference between carrying
amount and fair value of the non-current portion of the
borrowings as at 31 December 2023 were assessed to be
insignificant because most of them bear interest at floating
interest rates. The carrying amounts of the other long-term
receivables and other long-term payables are not materially
different from their fair values due to the immaterial amount.

(B)

Assets measured at fair value:

Level1
F—%&
RMB’'000

42. SRTENARBETE @)

EMIANAAEEE

REBERNTENEE - (H)
FFAEMIERBEENSREE &
SREIIETR B B Bo H A = HA FE T 5RIB
MAREBEBEAEERELUER  FEER
b N R EAR A T AR A BUIE A
ﬂy%ﬁﬁ%*Xﬁ%miﬁuw
R2023F 12 4318 ERBIERB
ITHEREEEAAREEEREWTES
MARE BAEMARISIZZEF
Rt B - HERHEWREREME
HENFENEMEARSETTE
A WEEARBEYEEAER -

BEAREETENEE:

2023
Fair value hierarchy

DNRABEEERE

Total
ot
RMB’000

Level 3
%Eﬂ&
RMB’000

Level 2
EZR
RMB’'000

ARBTT AR TR AR TR AR¥ TR

Other financial assets He@mEE

Debtinstruments at BAREBESAEMMEE

FVTOC! WaEmEBTE - 141,873 - 141,873
Debtinstruments at RAREBEAEBRD

FVTPL BB LA - - 106,848 106,848
Equity instruments at BARBETAHM

FVTOCI 2EBENRATA 367,776 289,000 812,555 1,469,331
Equity instruments at RARBEFTAERE

FVTPL AT A 30,000 - 200,876 230,876
Funds at FVTPL BARBEABENES - 13,328 - 13,328

397,776 444,201 1,120,279 1,962,256
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 42. ERITRAMAARBEE @)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIRVALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) EMIAMAAREE

(Continued)

2022
Fair value hierarchy
ARBERE

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
B E-® B T
RMB'000 RMB'0O00O RMB'000O RMB'000
AREBTT AREBTT AREBTT ARETT
Other financial assets HithemEE
Debt instruments at BRAREBETAHM
FVTOCI FHBRNESIA - 33,580 - 33,580
Debt instruments at BAREETABEN
FVTPL EF LA - 3500 144,537 148,037
Equity instruments at RARBETTAHM
FVTOCI THBRHOBRATA 1,038,151 206,871 907860 2242882
Fquity instruments at BRARBEFAEBREY
FVTPL AT A 631,230 - 197,731 828,961
Funds at FVTPL BEAREBEBEFAEEZNES - 14,882 - 14,882
Derivative financial TSR
instruments TA 16,762 - - 16,762
1,686,143 348,833 125028 3285104
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 FRNE—HFANAREEBTEEEH N

during the year are as follows:

T~

2023 2022

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETE

At1January R1A1H 1,250,128 870,224

Additions NE 66,597 393,577

Acquisitions of subsidiaries W i Bf /&8 2 ) - 41000

Unrealised loss recognised RE R AR

in profit or loss BELBE (38,297) (4,21
Unrealised (loss)/gain recognised in P E 2 T W 2 A T RR

other comprehensive income KER (BB, M= (56,313) 8783

Disposal e (76,336) (3218)

Transfer to Level 1 EREE R (30,000) -

Exchange realignment HE 5, 58 B 4,500 (27,127)

At 31 December M2 A3 A 1,120,279 1250128
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

42. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIRVALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

42. SRTENARBETE @)

(B) ERMITANQAEE G

BARBEFENGRE:

2023
Fair value hierarchy

DAREEREE

Level 2 Level 3 Total
HE =1 E=1 T

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

Other financial liabilities EmmemasE

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

2022
Fair value hierarchy
NRBERE

Level 2 Level 3 Total
B4 BE=M BET
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMB0QO

Other financial liabilities EmmemasE

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

- 5230 5230

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level T and
Level 2 (2022: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain equity
instruments measured at FVTPL were transferred from Level
3 to Level 1 due to successfully listed on National Equities
Exchange and Quotations. During the year ended 31
December 2022, there were no transfers into or out of Level
3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities.

REZE2023F 2 AIBLEFE  gi&
MEEREHEBEAABENEMNS
BB A 2 M0 A A A 6
(20224 : 4®) -

REE2023F12AIBLEFE  FF
BEARBEFABSENBRATAERAK
WEZBEPNEEROEZZGEE
MAEF-AEEETE—H -REE
PONFRRAIBLEFE HEmEE
Memafms  FZREEMBER
2 B AT (e 3B o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

42. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIRVALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of financial instruments together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at the end of the reporting
period:

Significant
unobservable input

EXTUEERALE

Valuation technique

fEER %

42. SR TAENARBETE @
(B) T AMNAAREE G
ATARHBERReRTAGENE

ATNABRGABBERTEHHE
DMTHBE

Sensitivity of
fair value to the input

ARNEEHRARENHEBE

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

BRAABEG AR M2ERE

AT A

Funds at FVTPL
BARBEFABRNES

Equity instruments at FVTPL
BRAABEFARRL
BRATA

Debt instruments at FVTPL
BARBHEFABRN
BHETA

Net asset value approach

BEFER

Recent transactions approach
RAZH%E

Net fund value approach
BEREE

Recent transactions approach
REZ 5%

EV/S Ratio Method
EEE/HERL RS

Net asset values

BEFE

Recent transaction prices
A HER

Net asset values of the funds,
determined with reference to
observable (quoted) prices of
underlying investment
portfolio

ReMEEFE(K2EIEH
REBAMUBRBREET)

Recent transaction prices
REZ5ER

Conversion probability of 20%
20% B F AR E

N/A
i

N/A
TR

N/A
NEH

N/A
NEH

10% increase in probability would result
in decrease in fair value by
RMB1,581,000

HAE 0% BB DA BERD
AR #1581,0007T

10% decrease in probability would result
in increase in fair value by
RMB1,581,000

FAETHKIO% BB A BEEN
AR#15810007T

BRZ MBS REERITRTIE A K E P

The discount for lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the
Group that market participants would take into account
when pricing the investments,

BEMS2HREGRRETEREZE
R ERITEEE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. £REGEEBERBR

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise borrowings
and cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade and other receivables and trade and other payables,
which arise directly from its operations,

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. As the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to a
minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The
Board reviews and agrees palicies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK

In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group is
subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the fixed
interest rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair value interest
rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax by assuming the floating
rate borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole vear.

AEBENTZESRIABEERARRS
FIEHER - ZEeMTANTIERRET
RARENEEERES -AKETEH
MWEEGERELNTREREERAE
105 5 FE WOk IR M B A R IR B 5
AN SR IR B HL A A A

AEEMTAEENTERRSMNEE
BoNERR FEERR RBESEAR
KB AN B A o B0 AR SR B AT AR R 3%
FRE g FRREKE  NEELEER
ERTETAREMTEAES 2 -
AEBEWBFARBETITES B TAIAE
BEEZM EFSCERILREZFAR
EEMBE  ZAnT -

R ERR
FPNEXTAKEYASEERRRESRE
MR - B ENE T A FEHAEE
R~ EENXERE

TRETBRNRERARH R EENZD
MEEFREFDREE BEMAEEM
BERFIAEOBRT  ARERBAR
AR B A R BB GURIE o

Increase/
(decrease)

Increase/
(decrease)

in basis in profit
points before tax

EEY  BREMER
2/ 08) & ()

RMB’000

ARBT

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 12 A3HIEFE 50 (67,720)
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 2 AIBILFEE (50) 67,720
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F 12 A31HILFEE 50 (66,462)
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE202F2ANBILERE (50) 66,462
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e M BIRRME

31December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’'s main businesses are located in China and most of
the transactions are conducted in Renminbi. Most of the Group's
assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi, except for
certain cash and bank deposits, trade and bills receivables and
borrowings denominated in HK dollar and US dollar. The Group
has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Renminbi
against the relevant currencies, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and loans).

REMEEBERBUEE @)

S L B

ARBNEEEBHARGE  TABS
ZHHINREIET - AEBAHH BE
REEIAREEHE  EETFRSRET
R B 5 RENOROR B A RAE T
RETHE - AR E L ® AR ERERE
T8 -

TRETRBESHR  EMAEBEHR
RAZOBRT - AN RBBR A G A EH A
REXRAEMEBAERNAEAEES (AN
EEUBEEMNERNAARBEEZIHMZ) N

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in HKS/USS in profit
rate before tax
BT ERT
Ex  R¥ANEF
EFH(RER)  EmCR2)
RMB’'000
% ARETx
2023
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBHLETRE 5 9,599
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ i AR ¥E HETLHAE (5) (9,599)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ i AR BT (B 5 (14,805)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ fid AR BT A (5) 14,805
2022
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBHETRE 5 1,084
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ i AR HETTHAE (5) (1,084)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ MARBEBTLE 5 46,257
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ i AR H BT HE (5) (46.257)

218 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
B2023F12 A31R

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. SRiEMEEEEHIERBUK (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk in
relation to its trade and bills receivables, contract assets, loan
receivables, other receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI and
cash and bank deposits.

The concession operating right of the Group represents sewage
treatment service concession financial receivables in respect of
Build-operate-transfer (‘BOT’) arrangements. Since the parties to
BOT arrangements are local government authorities in the PRC
and Thailand, the Group considers the credit risk is low at the end
of the reporting period. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

In relation to the Group's financial service business, the Group has
a credit team which is responsible for the evaluation of customers'
credit ratings, financial background and repayment abilities. The
Group only provides credit to customers with creditworthiness
and collateral is narmally required. Except for the individual
customers which bear specific credit risk and whose balances
have been impaired, the risk of default in payment by these
customers is considered not significant.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk as the Group's
major customers are from or are related to the real estate
industry, but the Group has paolicies in place to ensure that sales
are made to purchasers with an appropriate financial strength
and appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recaver overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade and bills receivables
and contract assets to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

EERE

FERAREARSHFELIBITER A
TAFXEFPANBTEEMRZMBER
MER AKEMEEBNEERRELE
ZFRWFBAREE GHEE - BEER
HibEUWRIE RAREBEFARLMEE
W EB TAANR S MRITFREH -

AEENFHAEEREEHRE 2ER
Br((gdE 2ERBR]) RS
K ERIE AR M) & BRI MR IR - MR E HIK -
ENEE SERBRIZHENTNTHS
TEEFEMTRAKE  AAEERR
FEERBRIREE - NEBEY &L A BERET
BT E o

BRAASENSRRBES AKEHEE
FEEKAERFHEFPNEENR MK
BERREEEN - AEEEREERIN
EPRHEEER—RARHKEAR KA
HEGERRABEGEHCRENENEP
Sh - B EFEREF N RERERSIL T
BEXe

HRASENTIEZEXPRAFEREHR
HENTE AEEAETERERRET
B EAKRETAERRABRAEER
BMBENRAIXNEEB DL &
FWETFEHEE TRAELMBERREF
VARELR SRERBRAE 1T B YR D B ERE 7% © 1t 5h -
AEEEHENZTRMERNE S REFAR
SEMAHNEEMN AT YD SRR - LERL
TRk ESBEELRANBERE K&
BONEERRRAEZARIUFRER
B BBEBAREERBETHIBER
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43.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

For other receivables, an impairment analysis is performed by
management at the end of each reporting period by considering
historical settlement records, past experience and future
economic conditions. The directors of the Company believe that
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding
balance of other receivables,

The Group's debt instruments at FVTOCI comprised solely of
quoted bonds that are graded in the top investment category and
therefore, are considered to be low credit risk investments.

Bank deposits are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of financial assets and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is
mainly based on the invoice date unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at the end of each reporting period. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the
exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR
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EE R (#)

REMEKKRENS  EREBEEERE
RBEHELE  BELR &K REERRR
EREMRETREIN - ARAEER
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BEABEBEERR -

AEBZARBESAECEEEENE
BTAEHENRSZSRELARNN ETE
AR - AR AEEERRIE -

ROTIGFAREIEZERAREECHEBERESE
RAFEIRTT

AEERTEEREREEREBEOX
ARE - WEEEREHANEERRES
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

12-month
ECLs

128 A
REEEEE

Stage1
F-KER
RMB'000
AR®TR

43. £REMEEBERBEK (&)

EE R (@)
&S R B R R B ()

Lifetime ECLs
EEGENRAGEERR
Simplified
approach Total
7% st
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%T:R

Stage 2
FoER
RMB’'000

AR®TR

Stage 3
F-ER
RMB'000

AR®TR

Loan receivables 1S 171,866 529,91 - - 701,777
Contract assets BHEE" - - - 388,251 388,251
Trade and hills receivables® BHRUGEREE" - - - 6,891,444 6,891,444

171,866 529,91 - 7,279,695 7,981,472

12-month
ECLs
218 A Lifetime ECLs
BHEEER BEFENENEERSE
Simplified
Stage Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
FER EZRE E=RRE Bt A%
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBOO0O
AREBTT AREBTR ARBTT ARETR ARET:T
Loan receivables FEUER 861273 658963 - - 1520236
Contract assets’ BHEE" - - - 566,031 566,031
Trade and bills receivables? BHRNFBREE" - - - 6666697 6666697
861273 658,963 - 7232728 8,752,064
# For contract assets and trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies # BRAEBERABLEAEAAERENEGNEEN

the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in notes 24 and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

B RWHIERREN S - EREHERENER
DRIRBEIRE MR R 24 ] 25 ©
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and available funding through various sources of finances to meet
its commitments.

The maturity profile of the Group’'s financial liabilities at the end of
each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

43. £REMEEBERBE (&)

REBETER

AEEBRNERFTRORE RS FEY
WEBTFRREREAEESES -

UNAEHNARTBEANRBERE  REERZR
SHRNERAERHERET

Within
1year

1R
RMB’'000

AR®T

1to 2
years
1224
RMB’000
AR®T T

Over
2years
2B
RMB’000
AR%T T

Total

4ot
RMB’'000
AR¥T T

Trade and bills payables B REMFIERERE 8,369,185 - - 8,369,185

Financial liabilities included in -~ & AE ftb fE A k18 &
other payables and accruals EFrERMEmAa’E 1,408,929 - - 1,408,929
Borrowings & 1,342,424 2,332,506 6,880,237 20,555,167
Lease liabilities HEBE 199,219 184,853 1,516,827 1,900,899
Other long-term payables E 4th = HA e A~ 3008 - - 5,472 5,472
21,319,757 2,517,359 8,402,536 32,239,652

\Witalla
1year

L3
RMB000
ARBETT

1to 2

years
1E24F
RMB'0O0O
ARBTIT

Over

2 years
2F M E
RMB'000
AR¥T T

Total

HRET
RMB'000
ARBET T

Trade and bills payables B HRNFIERER 8,036,239 - - 8036239

Financial liabilities included in FTAE b FE AT 5K &
other payables and accruals EFrERMNEma’E 1,002,931 - - 1,002,931
Borrowings &k 8057814 6326920 757318 21957,852
Lease liabilities HEAE 19131 92,61 550479 762221
Other long-term payables H th & BAFE 1 5R18 - - 8,903 8903
18116,115 6,419,531 8132500  32,66846

222 GEmwEmBRARAY
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HFEMBRRMEE

31 December 2023
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. SRR EEEERBE (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

EQUITY PRICE RISK

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from equity instruments at FVTPL and equity
instruments at FVTOCI (note 19) as at 31 December 2023. The
Group's listed investments are listed on the PRC and Hong Kong
stock exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity instruments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, for the equity instruments at FVTOC], the
impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

B% 25 (8 4% 3 B

A% AN (B #% [ B T A% 72N 38 BUK T K (R Bl 3
EEEDMEBRNBRAFSFLAALBETK
FEE - PRA2023F 12 8318 » NEEE TR
RIEAARBEFABRRATAEREZA
AEEFAEMZEWEARATE (M
19) 3 BHRERRK - AEEM EWHRER
FEREBESFR S LT WHRHREH
RIZFTRMERE ©

TRIRETA H b B BRFT T R AR
BREEMZBERLT RRERRZEE
BFE BRATAZAABESZEEH% L
BRE -BLADTME - HiIRARBER
AR EERSOBRATEANEERED
HANBEREBNEE -

Carrying
amount Changein
of equity profit Changein
instruments before tax equity*
RATEN BRBE AT
ARTE B i Fl 4 B gy
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARTRT AR%®TR AR®TR
2023
Equity securities listed in the PRC A E AR AR E % 178,362 1,500 7,418
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong IR & LT IR ATE 5 219,414 - 10,971
Unlisted equity securities FE L THARANE 2
at fair value (HBRARBEIIE) 1,302,431 10,044 55,078
2022
Equity securities listed in the PRC R E ETRAFES 1,269,556 29,403 34,075
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong IR &S LT IR AE % 356,660 - 17,333
Equity securities listed in the REE R
United Kingdom 7 5 43165 2158 -
Unlisted equity securities FE E TR GE 55
at fair value (BAREEIE) 1402462 9,887 60,237
Excluding retained profits NEFERE T
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43.

224

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern and to
maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
optimise the debt and equity balance, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment  to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or new debts or the redemption
of existing debts. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the year.

The Group monitars capital using a net debt to equity ratio, which
is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes borrowings and
lease liabilities, less cash and bank deposits. Capital represents
the total equity.

The Group's strategy is to maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a
healthy level in arder to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, without limitation,
reviewing future cash flow requirements and the ability to meet
debt repayment schedules when they fall due, maintaining a
reasonable level of available banking facilities and adjusting
investment plans and financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that
the Group has a reasonable level of capital to support its business.
The net debt to equity ratio, at the end of the reporting periods are
as follows:

43. £REREEBFERBUER (@)

BXER

AKBANEENEER FAREARE
BB EEREE D  ARER S
B E AL R KRR DRI A
BERAZRS -

AEERBEERNES EELEARRE
REHAE RELCEBREDER K
SETHEINTRREROERE - AKRER
BIEA - BITHAR S ELERRAER
FRCEEEANBR BHRIBERBRIE

= °

AREBMAER FREN B RETEAN
AU RBEHFERAER - B FEE
RERLBEEERREMRITER-&
RTyIERE AR -

AEBENRBERERERFEEEELX
EREKT  AFEHER - REBERN
MEZREEEETIRNEMAARKRER
EFRKERNEB DR BITERHEES
e REFARRITREESEKRTR
HEREFILBMETE (MBE) - U
RAEEHRASIEKFHNEAIFEER -
RBERRNERFREEELENT

2023 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARSI @ ARBTE

(Restated)

($&&E5)

Borrowings fa& ik 19,344,586 20,035,682
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,351,051 578406
Less: Cash and bank deposits W RE RIRITER (6,552,984) (7,361,770)
Net debt B FE 14,142,653 13252318
Total equity R 24,311,078 22,641,086
Net debt to equity ratio B R s L 58% 59%

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(A) MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

44. FER LR ERME

(A) EEHFREXRF

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- FRN REELHNS AKEEH
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB934,244,000 and EEENMNEBERENIFRSIE NS H
RMBO34,244,000 (2022: RMB221,140,000 and B AR Q934244000 b AR #&

RMB221,140,000) respectively, in respect of lease 934,244,0007C (2022%F : AR

arrangements. 221140000 7T R AR ¥ 221140000 7T) °
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to FR - AEBREERFIELEREEM
property, plant and equipment and investment properties of EEYME BMEEIKBNREDED
RMB95,600,000 and RMB666,832,000 (2022: nil and nil) FER B N0 B A AR 95600000
respectively, from receivables settlement arrangements. TR AR 666,832,000 7T (2022 4 -
B E) o
(B) RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING (B) MEEEBIELMNAEYHK

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The tables below detail changes in the Group's liabilities

TERFAARERERSAELENE
B (BRREMIFRSED) - &

arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash

BEEMMEAZABRREMELEN
IR AEBGERERERAND I
ﬁﬁﬂé/ﬁ@iﬁi/mgmgfg °

flows as cash flows from financing activities,

Non-cash changes

FRE2H
Amortisation
of borrowing Foreign
New arrangement exchange Other
1January Cash flow leases fee  movement changes 31December
ERRH
1A18 BeRE HHE EREH HNERE Hit2 g 12318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBIT ARETr ARETz AR¥TxT AR%®Trn AR%®Tx AR¥ET:
Borrowings & 20,035,682 (871,492) - 37,128 151,508 (8,240) 19,344,586
Lease liabilities HERE 578,406 (193,280) 934,244 = 5,520 26,161 1,351,051
Interest payables FERFIE 13,449 (1,100,889) - - - 1122,004 34,564
Dividends payable to ERARRREA
ownersofthe Company B2 = (831,903) - - - 831,903 -
Dividends payable to B3R RS
non-controlling interests ~ BR& = (25,47) = = - 25,47 -
Payables for acquisition of ~ Ye&& J2 4
non-controlling interests R E(FE - (7,041) - - - 7,041 -
Total ligbllities from RARHNER
financing activities BE 20,627,537 (3,030,076) 934,244 37,128 157,028 2,004,340 20,730,201
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(B) RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

44.

BE

GZERLERERME (@

(B) MEFBHELNBEHR @

: AREF7 7
Borrowings EE 17159105 1823859 - 37271 1015447 - 20035682
Lease liabllities REEE 492368 (36,022) 221140 - 1B (589) 578406
Convertible loans THARER 624430 (716,236) - - 31850 50,047 -
Interest payables ERFIE 76532 (675386) - - - 612303 13449
Dividends payable to ERARREERA
ownersof the Company RS - (649,.336) - - - 649,336 -
Dividends payable to N FEEbIER
non-controllinginterests R & - (1293) - - - 1293 -
Payables for acquisition of ~ Yt B JE# 3
non-controlling interests 5 e FE - (150,687) - - - 150,687 -
Total liabilities from BETHMER
financing activities ek 18352435 (516,739) 221140 3120 106417 1469313 20627537
(C) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES (C) HERSRHAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the BREERARERERNEERESR
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: AR T ¢
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARET T
Within operating activities KREEBNA 37,472 24,824
Within investing activities LEEEA 433,313 44,149
Within financing activities BMEEEBNA 193,280 136,022
664,065 204,995
226 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. T EM B AT

ARAEENBRAOEBMT -

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/
registration
and business
REFHH

Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital
BRTEER/
A RA

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Direct Indirect
KAFEGERL R

E& 3

Principal activity

TREH

Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100% Investment holding and sale of
building materials and home
improvement products

BEEEARAT Bk 1300000077 RABRRHERNREER

Guangdong Liansu Technology Industrial the PRC HK$2,800000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co, Ltd."® pipes and pipe fittings

ERBENBEREARARY i 28000000007 HERREEHEEREN

Heshan LessoIndustrial Development Co, Ltd. ™ the PRC HK$269,930,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

BILBEEXERARARA e 260,930,000 T RERHEEREBREN

Lesso Technology Development (Wuhan) the PRC HK$11,000000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co, Ltd."® pipes and pipe fittings

BEMRER(UE)ERARY # 1000000 T RERBERHEERES

Lesso Technology Development (Guiyang) the PRC HK$115,000000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co, Ltd, ™ pipes and pipe fittings

BERBER(BR)BRARA" i 150000007 HERBEEHEERES

Nanjing Lesso Technology Industrial Co, Ltd. ™ the PRC US$26750000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

ARBENREXARAR il 28750000% 7 HEREERHEEREN

Lesso Municipal Pipe (Hebe) Ca, Ltd. ™ the PRC US$32790,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

SEMREE (1) BRARY e 32790000% 7T RERHERHEERES

Henan Lesso Industrial Ca, Ltd, " the PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

AEBEEEXBRARC RE AR%2000000007C HERREEHEEREN

Hainan Lesso Technology Industrial Co, Ltd. ! the PRC RMBI50,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

BEBENREZERAAC il ARE1500000007C HEREERHEEREN

Yunnan Lesso Technology Development Co, Ltd. the PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

ERBBNRRRARAR" il AR$52000000007 RERHERHEERES

Hunan Lessa Technology Industrial Co, Ltd, the PRC RMBI00,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

HEBZNRERARAAY i AR1000000007 NERHELHEEREN

Guangdong Shunde Lesso Management Co, Ltd. " the PRC RMB682,000,000 - 100% Property investment

ERIBEERNEERERARC G AR6820000007C NERE
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

46.

228

(Continued)

45.

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/
registration registered
and business share capital
AL/ R ERTEER/
REXHEY EfRA
Lesso Mall Development (Long Island), Inc. @ the United States UUS$104,000,000
FHANERE (RB)BRAT B 104000000 % 7T
Lesso Mall Development (Jurupa Valley) Limited the United States US$1000
FRANEE(RERS) AR B 1000% 7
Guangdong Century Xinghui Creative Park the PRC RMB189,654000
Technalogy Co, Ltd*®!
EREEEBAEERE M AR¥189654000 7T
BRARC
PT Samanea Tangerang Development © Republic of Indonesia IDR40,000,000000
PT Samanea Tangerang Development ® HE R D AME 4000000000012 /&
@ Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of the PRC
® Registered as an equity joint venture under the laws of the PRC
« Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of the PRC
@ Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of the United States
e Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of Republic of

Indonesia

The above table lists the Company's subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directars, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the Group's net assets. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
resultin particulars of excessive length.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the consolidated financial
statements, due to the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs
during the current year, the accounting treatment and
presentation of certain items and balances in the financial
statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have
been made, and certain comparative amounts have been
reclassified and restated to conform with the current year's
presentation and accounting treatment.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEBEEEERARLR

46.

FEMBATINFE (8)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
Direct Indirect Principal activity
LN LT Sl
B mE  TERH
- 100% Property investment
- 100% Property investment
- 100% Property development
ES
- 100% Property investment

@ BRETEEEEAMA—MIEBELE
® RETEEEEMA—MEELE
@ REPEDEZEMA—MERAF
@ BREBEEEEZZMA—FMERRIA

e RFHNERASHMBEREIMA—MAERR
Gl

EZRA ERMEINARRRMNE AR
BAFENEEAEATENLAERAE
BEEFENERID - EEZR/MFT
HMMBARMWER HektAmERB
RITEK »

PLEg >

AR A BRI 22/ i - AR AFE
R RRERBERMBRE LN ¥
BHEATETEHEREHRN G ERERT
WOIEER] ARNEHME - Bt - 2 1F
HETANFERE  ETHREFHC
FEFDERES - LNERNEENIHRE
SRTREEH -
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M2023F12 A31A

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47. KATHMBRAE

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RIERR BEAANARTBMRAERNE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BHOT

2023
RMB’000

ARBTR

2022
RMB000
ARBTIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries REBRRNERE 5,025,936 5,010,706
Other financial assets Hih & mEE 40,081 174,378
Total non-current assets EMBEELTE 5,066,017 585,084
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE

Other receivables H A 8 W SR IR 3,646,774 3,350,497
Amount due from subsidiaries JEUR B B A &) FRIE 1,209,758 1542549
Other financial assets Hiv e & E - 33,580
Cash and bank deposits Be MIBITHFER 9,176 43,447
Total current assets MEVE EATE 4,865,708 4970,073
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Other payables and accruals Hin e IBERETE A 230,237 100,314
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS BT B A &1 IR 142,537 137,556
Borrowings EEN 3,815,889 5450428
Total current liabilities MEVBEATE 4,188,663 5,688,298
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE (B FHE 677,045 (718,225)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES XE#BERABEE 5,743,062 4,466,859
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE

Borrowings EEA - 779,998
Total non-current liabilities B El= N - 779,998
Net assets BEFR 5,743,062 3,686,861
EQUITY 5

Share capital [N 135,344 135,344
Reserves (note) e (faE) 5,607,718 3,551,517
Total equity RSB 5,743,062 3,686,861
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47. XATIMBRATR (@)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: s
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARKFEHEHENT ¢

Shares
held for Exchange
Share share award Fair value fluctuation Retained

premium scheme reserve reserve profits

IR 40 3
RGEE ARG E B % B 1 R & 5 A

At1January 2022 R2022%1 818 1905618 (85440) (175,204) 153169 M5,329 2913472
Total comprehensive income R ZE K
for the year @i - - (63214) (180.967) 1531562 1287381

Dividends recognised as REAEEADED

distributions to owners BRE - - - - (649,336) (649,336)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 K202 12 A318 Kk

January 2023 2023 1A18H 1,905,618 (85,440) (238,418) (27,798) 1,997,555 3,551,517
Total comprehensive income for A2 T4

the year Pk = = (57,607) (4,700) 2,950,411 2,888,104
Dividends recognised as BRARAEBADIED

distributions to owners iz & = = - - (831,903) (831,903)
At 31 December 2023 202312 A 318 1,905,618 (85,440) (296,025) (32,498) 4,116,063 5,607,718

48. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 48. HL L S M BERE
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and GAPBHRRN204FEIAEEEES
authorised for issue by the Board on 28 March 2024, BB AR E -
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FRREUEME

As at 31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

Detalls of the Group's investment properties at the end of the reporting  RIREHIER - KEBIREMEDFBOT ¢
period are as follows:

Site area/ Stage of
Location Type gross floor area Lease term completion
WREE
ith B 5l HBREEE HAH 58 B P BR
sq. ft.
FHER
79-99 St Hilliers Road, Australia 1B 266,874 Freehold Existing
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney,
New South Wales
79-99 St Hilliers Road, M B 266,874 KA B"E
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney,
New South Wales
5631-5671 Steeles Avenue East, Canada CB 138,982¢ Freehold Existing
Toronto, Ontario
5631-5671 Steeles Avenue East, mEX CB 138,082" KAKRE RE

Toronto, Ontario

South of Longzhou West Road, PRC CL 1775496 Leasehold Under
East of Dengdong Road, development
Longjiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan, Guangdong Province”

BERAHLTIEEEETHE h CL 1775496 HEXE RSB
EMAEEARETRERAIXA

West of Foshan-Kaiping highway, PRC CL 1665995 Leasehold Under
North of Longgao Road, development
Longjiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan, Guangdong Province”

BEREFLTIEEEETHA B CL 1665995 HEXE BRP
BRI =R IAT ~ BEESBRIALL

Shennan Yango Building, West side of the PRC CB 44,922% Leasehold Existing
Interchange of Xinan Road and Chunfeng Road,

Luohu District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province”

& R R 2 W8 R 22 B M & L B A2 T R B CB 44,922* HEXxE BAE
ARRFEB N E

Yango Times Center, No19 Tigiang Road, PRC CB 750487* Leasehold Existing
Liangging District, Nanning, Guangxi Province”
ERAEENRERBEREKION B CB 750487¢ HE¥% B"E

B B (R
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
EFEREMEBME

As at 31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31AH

Site area/ Stage of

Location Type gross floor area Lease term completion
WEREE

1t 2 Y]l RIEHEES HAH 55 7P BR
sq. ft.
FAR

Tangerang New City Estate, Indonesia CX 1,060,073 Leasehold Under

Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Pasir Gadung, development

Kecamatan Cikupa, Kabupaten Tangerang,

Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, EERfE CX 1060,073 HE¥E BERP
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Pasir Gadung,

Kecamatan Cikupa, Kabupaten Tangerang,

Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, Indonesia IL 1071181 Leasehold  Planning stage
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Sindang Jaya,

Kecamatan Sindang Jaya,

Kabupaten Tangerang, Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, HERERD: IL 1071181 HERE BIER
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Sindang Jaya,

Kecamatan Sindang Jaya,

Kabupaten Tangerang, Banten, Indonesia

Prey Rokar Village, Cambodia CX 5,519,034 Freehold Under
Chhak Chheu Neang Commune, development

Ang Snuol District,

Kandal Province, Cambodia

Prey Rokar Village, RIHZE CX 5,519,034 KAKENE ERSD
Chhak Chheu Neang Commune,

Ang Snuol District,

Kandal Province, Cambodia

Plot No 2,4, 8,9, Block 59 Myanmar CX 3232,162 Leasehold Under
Zawtika Yeik Mon Housing, development
Dagon Seikkan Township, Yangon

Plot N0 2, 4,8, 9, Block 59 i) CX 3232762 HE¥% BRT

Zawtika Yeik Mon Housing,
Dagon Seikkan Township, Yangon
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FEREVERE

As at 31 December 2023
M2023F12 A31A

Site area/ Stage of

Location Type gross floor area Lease term completion
WEREE

1o E5l REHEES HAH 5 7 PR BR
sq. ft.
FAR

Plot 6218674, Al Warsan First, Dubai United Arab CL 570,487 Freehold Under

Emirates development

Plot 6218674, Al Warsan First, Dubai B4 R & CL 570487 AR ERT

BRE
NWC Wineville Road and Bellegrave Avenue, us CX 4775918 Freehold  Planning stage
Jurupa Valley, Riverside County, California
NWC Wineville Road and Bellegrave Avenue, e CX 4775918 KA KRR BRI

Jurupa Valley, Riverside County, California

1500 Old Country Road, us CB 712,341 Freehold Existing
Westbury, Nassau County,

Long Island, New York

1500 Old Country Road, EH CB 712,341 KA FERE BB
Westbury, Nassau County,

Long Island, New York

Note: CL  Commercialland EEMH
Mz :  CX  Complexland e A

IL Industrial land TEMAH

CB  Commercial building EEET

B Industrial building TEEBF

# Represents gross floor area ERIEEEE
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GLOSSARY
Al 52

‘Board"
=

BVI'
[RBHEARES]

‘China" or "PRC"
[
‘Code’
(=8Il

‘Company’ or “China Lesso”

(AR e[ B8 |

‘Current Ratio”
[mENL |

"EBITDA’
[ R 8754 5 38 A 282 )

"FVTOCK
[Z At BEF AR 2E K]

"FVTPRL
M2 AR EER AR

"‘Gearing Ratio”
[BEAEEX]

‘Group”
[R&E]

‘Guangdong Liansu Machinery
[EIR B 2B 25

'HK$"
[t

"Hong Kong' or "HK’
[HH]

234 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited

HEBEEEERERAR

the board of directors of the Company

ARREES

the British Virgin Islands
REEBARES

the People’'s Republic of Ching, for the purpose of this report, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
PEARKAE  BARETE - CAREES  RFIRAE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1to the Listing
Rules

EAR RIS CI B M R X E AT A

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
IR B R BT A R A A

the ratio of current assets to current liabilities
RBEERIRD R ENLE

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
BRI - BE - I8 R HATE A

fair value through other comprehensive income
BRAREBEFAREMMEEK S

fair value through profit or loss
BARBEFARR

the total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity
RIS R ABE AR LS ATENEAM

the Company and its subsidiaries
RRBREMBAR

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co, Ltd.", a company indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the
Company as defined under the Listing Rules

ERBEPRF[HEERAR ERELLEMEE2ERANLRF AN
RANBEEALT(FER EHRAD

Hong Kong dallar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREZEEE® - BT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEEBEFRITE R



GLOSSARY
Al 5K

‘Indonesia”
[ENEEdgs]

loT’
[ )

‘Listing Rules”
[ EmAR A

‘Model Code’

‘New Fortune”
[#TE 2]

‘pE
[PE]

"PP-R’
[PP-R]

"PVC
[PVC]

"Quick Ratio”
[:RE) LK |
‘RMB’
[AR¥ ]

"SFO

[7& 7 M ' 5]

‘Share(g)'
[ A& ]

‘Shareholder(s)’
e

Elehing
[FITR]

Republic of Indonesia
EEfEermae A

Internet of things
) Bt 4

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B A5 E AR A

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
setout in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
FHRAIMSRCIFEE T EITAZERETIE SRR FHHIRLETA

New Fortune Star Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
New Fortune Star Limited » —FAIREBEBRASTMA L2 A7)

polyethylene
Ro&

polypropylene random
BRHEBBRRGE

polyvinyl chloride
BEL%

the ratio of current assets less inventories, properties from receivables
settlement and asset held for sale, to current liabilities

MBEERTSE HEEERUSMENDERFELEEE  BHRUR
PREML X

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
TEZEEER - AR

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
FEDIE SN EFEH MHEHB

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company
AR EIRA S FREE 005 LA A7

holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
PA/NElSRESTE DN

square feet
FHERR
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GLOSSARY

==

At €

"Stock Exchange' The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ Bk 32 P | BEEBMARHMAERAF

“tonne(s)’ a unit measuring weight, equal to 1,000 kilograms

[ 0 | | EXEEMEN  HFERI000AT

‘us’ the United States of America

== | EMNBERE

‘Us$’ US dollar, the lawful currency of US

El | EHZEEE® - %

Xi Xi Development’ Xi Xi Development Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI

[PIEER] | FEZERARAR  —ERRBEAREESEMAILZ AT

"Yan Sing Fu Sing” Yan Sing Fu Sing Real Estate (Holdings) Limited, a company ultimately and
wholly-owned by four connected persons of the Company

[BEEE] ¥ REEEMNESERRAR  HORARABEATERRE2EREEN
NG

%" per cent

(% | BOL

The English or Chinese translations in this report, where indicated, denote for identification purposes only.

AR B B R SRR (IR ) B A -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ATEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr.Tao Zhigang
Mr. Cheng Dickson
Ms. Lu Jiandong
Dr.Hong Ruijiang
Ms. Lee Vanessa

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Dickson

Ms. Lu Jiandong

Ms. Lee Vanessa

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Ms. Lu Jiandong

Dr.Hong Ruijiang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Lu Jiandong (Chairlady)
Mr.Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Dr.Tao Zhigang

Dr.Hong Ruijiang

Ms. Lee Vanessa

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

EEE

BITES
EMIERE (EF)
RS (B4R
EXERL

Vot Pk 2
EIR13 ot 3

PR B P 4 A
VLR
BERRSE

Cgedl s

BUFHITES
FE 5 18+
Wzt
BERLZL
AT+
FRBLL

BEXEEE

BEAEmIE L (/E)
b by e
RERZE
FRELLT

HMEEE

FERE L (£E)
mERELE
LimfmiE
AERLZLT
HImTIE LT

REBEESE
BRRLLT(EE)
BEHE A
TR E
BRI L
ESTPNE
FRBLL

ATHE
B L L
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARAH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zuo Manlun
Mr. Kwan Chi Wal Samuel

REGISTERED OFFICE

Third Floor, Century Yard
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA

Liansu Industrial Estate
Longjiang Town

Shunde District

Foshan City

Guangdong Province 528318
China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1A, 10th Floor, Tower 2
South Seas Centre

75 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East
Kowloon, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code:

2128
SHARE INFORMATION
As at 31 December 2023
Share issued 3,102,418400 shares
Market capitalisation HK$12,658 million
Board lot size 1,000 shares

2023 DIVIDENDS

Proposed final dividend  HK20 cents per share
Dividend payout ratio 23.7%
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EERR
R SEE
BEEELE

ot i 3% 5 B2

Third Floor, Century Yard
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103
Cayman Islands

PEEEE A,

P

BERA (54 : 528318)
i

B

B TIE

Y8 T ¥4

EETESEME
BENBE
L) R ED
JEHb I8 75 5%

B EAH
F_FEIOBAE

trE#H
L8
EEBERSMERA A

RAPRE:
2128

Rzt E#

MR2023F12 A31H ¢

BEITROHEE 3102418400 A%
miE 126581BE T
BFEEEMN 1000 A%

2023 FERRE

BOR KA B B 207811
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREE

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual results announcement:
28 March 2024

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS:

— for determining the entitlement to attend, speak and vote at
annual general meeting from 22 to 24 May 2024 (both dates
inclusive)

—  for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend from
310 5 July 2024 (both dates inclusive)

2024 annual general meeting:
24 May 2024

Payment of 2023 proposed final dividend*:
on or around 18 July 2024

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Third Floor, Century Yard

Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman, KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 17121716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

iPR Ogilvy & Mather

40th Floor, United Asia Finance Centre
333 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

Emall: r@lesso.com

+ Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2024 AGM.

A% B 58

FEFRERSE
202493 A28 H

TEREROGBFEERETFE -

— BTEERERBEFARSUTRE EBEFRIE
EMERB2024F5 2B E 248 (B2
HEMKX)

—  BETEUREUER K 2R A% BB B A% R 2024 F
7TRA3ESH(BREEEMX)

2024 FRRBF KR -
202455 A 24 H

IR 2023 F#HE R R B9 8.
202447 R18 BEi#EiT H F

Rz 1538 2 5L 4B B2

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Third Floor, Century Yard

Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman, KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

BB EZER S E
BAEPRELSELARAT
B

T 25 RIBR18358
AR

717121716 &
BREERZ

PREZERXE

BB RB3I33%
NS B0 4018
E:E ¢ (852) 2136 6185
fEHE : (852) 3170 6606
FH : ir@lessocom

+ WRFRRR 2024 FRRBFEREG LIOER - HAEE -

Annual Report 2023
ws * 239



CORPORATE INFORMATION
A &E#H

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
Hong Kong

SOLICITOR
Baker & McKenzie

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Co, Ltd.

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Development Bank

DBS Bank Ltd.

Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

http//www.lesso.com
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Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include,
without limitation, statements related to revenue and earnings. The words "believe’, ‘intend’,
‘expect’, "anticipate’, 'forecast’, "estimate’, “predict’, “is confident’, "has confidence” and similar
expressions are also intended to represent forward-looking statements. These forward-
looking statements are not historical facts. Rather, the forward-looking statements are based
on the current beliefs, assumptions, expectations, estimates and projections of the directors
and management of China Lesso about the businesses, industries and markets in which
China Lesso operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are
subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the Company's
control and are difficult to predict Consequently, actual results could differ materially from
those expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect only the
views of the directors and management of China Lesso as at the date of this report only. The
Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements to
reflect events or circumstances that arise after publication of this report.

70 BfE 22 B
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BN - mIAE] - (58] [F8st] - [BH) - (T8 Tth
TR DRE]  TREREL] REMURE TR RAE
BH IERAINTEBEEEREREEREEYE TER
MEBEEENTISmARBIIELNBRES  BR B2
AETRIERAELE  MAFFELEE -

I ERTIE AT IR AR EBRBEHRE - MESEABRA
B THANREREAMEARMEZE AR ALRETFIFAR
BIATREIR I ELEEATER » UMt - EWRAE R T AL B AR B AP
AR BRKERANBEREERER

PR ERERRTEREEEREEERARERRER
FrFs e es - B AT — BT R S ATIE 28 - ARFAL
BEERRER DAATIEE - ARBRAIR S R L AT 3 £ R
EHRIBER

fORRER R E A AR BIARXARE



LESSO BxZE

Unit 1A, 10th Floor, Tower 2, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BBNERVDERBEMBE75REEDINE _EZI0ZIAR

L (852) 25921388 \ MIX
(852) 2592 1385 " Paper | Supparting

1 www.lesso.com ey FSC® C116866
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